Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON

Ma] O r Appllcatlons To Councillors on the Committee
P la N n] n g Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman)

. Councillor lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman)
CO mmi ttee Councillor Peter Curling
Councillor Janet Duncan
Date: WEDNESDAY, 1 C illor H Higai
FEBRUARY 2017 ouncillor Henry Higgins
Councillor John Morgan
Time: 6.00 PM Councillor John Oswell
Venue:  COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - Counillor Brian Stead
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH Councillor David Yarrow
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8
1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Tuesday, 24 January 2017

Contact: Luke Taylor
Tel: 01895 250693
Email: ltaylor3@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=325&Year=0

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1
2
3

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 26 October
2016 and 11 January 2017

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items marked in Part 1 will be considered in public
and those items marked in Part 2 will be heard in private

PART | - Members, Public and Press

ltems are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

1-10

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Major Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | Warrender Primary Eastcote & | Provision of new two-storey | 11-48
School East classroom block comprising eight
Ruislip new classrooms, staff room, | 156 - 167

4311/APP/2016/4295

library/ICT suite, technology suite,
studio, breakfast club, plus
ancillary  facilities; increased
parking provision; rearrangement
of sports pitches and provision of
new multi-use games area
(MUGA) together with associated
steps and ramp; removal of
existing modular building and
demolition of existing breakfast
club  building; and ancillary
development.

Recommendation: Approval




Berkeley Apartments

31642/APP/2016/4411

Heathrow
Villages

Proposed Change of Use from C1
(APARTMENTS HOTEL) to SUI-
GENERIS Homeless persons
hostel use and associated external
works.

Recommendation: Approval

49 - 62

168 - 176

Harefield Place, The
Drive

12571/APP/2016/3950

Ickenham

Section 73 application to vary
condition 2 (drawing nos.) for a
Minor Material Amendment (MMA)
to planning permission  ref.
12571/APP/2015/3649 (Demolition
of existing modern U-shaped
extension. Conversion of existing
Grade Il listed building and
erection of a replacement
extension building to provide 25
self-contained apartments (Class
C3), with associated basement
car, cycle and motorcycle parking,
private and communal amenity
spaces and landscape
enhancement, retaining existing
entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and
existing  secondary  servicing
access with ancillary outbuildings)
comprising changes to basement
layout.

Recommendation: Approval

63 - 92

177 - 181




9 | Harefield Place, The
Drive

12571/APP/2016/4137

Ickenham

Application under Section 19 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 for
variation of condition 2 (drawing
nos.) for an amendment to Listed
Building Consent ref.
12571/APP/2015/3650 (Demolition
of existing modern U shaped
extension. Conversion of existing
Grade Il listed building and
erection of a  replacement
extension building to provide 25
self-contained apartments (Class
C3), with associated basement
car, cycle and motorcycle parking,
private and communal amenity
spaces and landscape
enhancement, retaining existing
entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on 'The Drive' and
existing  secondary  servicing
access with ancillary outbuildings
(Application for Listed Building
Consent) comprising changes to
basement layout).

Recommendation: Approval

93 - 106

182 - 186

10| Former West Drayton
Police Station

12768/APP/2016/1580

West
Drayton

Residential development of 53
units, comprising 13 houses and
40 flats, together with associated
parking, access road and
landscaping, involving the part
retention of the listed walls and
demolition of the existing Police
Station, outbuildings and concrete
hardstandings.

Recommendation: Approval

107 - 154

187 - 208

Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee

155 - 208




Minutes

Agenda ltem 3

i
T RORTARS

FHILLINGDON

LONDON

MAJOR Applications Planning Committee

26 October 2016

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Henry Higgins,
John Morgan, Brian Stead, David Yarrow, Peter Curling (Labour Lead), Janet Duncan
and John Oswell

LBH Officers Present:

Kate Boulter (Democratic Services Officer), Roisin Hogan (Planning Lawyer), Peter
Loveday (Highway Development Engineer), Neil McClellen (Major Applications Team
Leader), Jyoti Mehta (Trainee Solicitor) and James Rodger (Head of Planning and
Enforcement)

74.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

There were no apologies.

75.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Peter Curling declared a pecuniary interest in agenda item 10, arising from
the fact that he was an employee of Brunel University, and stated that he would leave
the meeting during the discussion of the item.

76.

TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda
Item 3)

There were no minutes for approval.

77.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

None.

78.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED
INPUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE
(Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all items were Part | and would be heard in public.

79.

WATERLOO WHARF, WATERLOO ROAD (Agenda Item 6)
Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the application.

A petitioner, speaking in objection to the application, made the following points:

Page 1




o The proposed development was in a busy community area which would be
impacted by the size and scale of the development, which would not complement
the area. The building would be up to five storeys in height which would overlook
residents' properties and invade privacy.

o The community was concerned about the impact on Uxbridge Boat Centre. It was
estimated that it could suffer a 50% loss of business if the development went
ahead.

o Access to and from the development would put pressure on the surrounding
roads and cause safety concerns as it was located on a bend with poor visibility.

o Residents believed there would be overspill parking from the development which
would impact on surrounding roads. The development was on the outskirts of
town and people tended to drive there rather than use public transport. The
petitioners asked if the residents of the new development could be excluded from
the area parking scheme.

The agent for the applicant addressed the meeting and made the following points:

o The area was characterised by large developments of residential and commercial
buildings of various styles. The building currently on the site was prominent at
three storeys high with significant plot coverage. The proposed development was
more visually appealing and would improve the area. A high quality building finish
had been selected and there would be a landscaping scheme.

o Historic England had recognised the tall gabled fronted bays incorporated into the
design preserved the character of the area.

o The applicant had carried out extensive negotiation with the Planning Department
and taken into consideration objectors' comments.

A Ward Councillor, speaking in objection, raised the following points:

o The owners of the boatyard were worried that they would be pushed out.
Residents and businesses were concerned about the impact of the development
on their lives, both during demolition and construction, and after the building was
erected.

In response to questions from Members, officers advised that:

o It would not be possible to exclude residents of the new development from the
area parking scheme.

The following points were made by Members during discussion on the item:

o A site visit had taken place which Members had found useful.

o The proposed development was of a high quality and the gables were an
attractive feature. A condition should be added to make clear that the space
behind the gables could not be occupied.

o Some Members were concerned about the height and would have preferred a
development one storey lower.

o The officer's recommendation included protection for the Uxbridge Boat Centre.

A motion for the application to be refused on the grounds of size, height and bulk was
moved and seconded. Upon being put to a vote, this was lost.

Page 2




A motion for the application to be approved with an additional condition was moved,
seconded and upon being put to a vote was agreed.

RESOLVED: The application was approved as per the officer's recommendation with
the following additional condition:

"Condition 28:

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 55 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, the roof space(s) shall not be used or converted to any form of habitable room or
for any purpose ancillary to any of the dwellings hereby approved, including as a living
room, bedroom, kitchen, bathroom, study or storage area."

80.

KINGSWAY HOUSE, HORTON ROAD (Agenda Item 7)

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the application and drew
Members' attention to the amendments on the Addendum.

A motion for the application to be approved with an additional informative was moved,
seconded and upon being put to a vote was agreed.

RESOLVED: The application was approved as per the officer's recommendation in the
report and Addendum, with the following additional informative:

"The Council will expect the applicant to take into account the following comments of
the Canal and River Trust in any future reserved matters application: "We are keen to
avoid a canyoning effect on the canal corridor. We would therefore like to the see the
future reserved matters proposal move the development further back from the towpath,

nn

with a reduced height, stepping down towards the canalside...”.

81.

BOWLS PAVILION & GREEN HILL END ROAD (Agenda Item 8)
Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the application.

A motion for the application to be approved was moved, seconded and upon being put
to a vote was agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application was approved.

82.

THE ARENA, BENNETSFIELD ROAD, STOCKLEY PARK (Agenda Item 9)

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the application and drew
Members' attention to the amendments on the Addendum.

During discussion on the item, Members expressed disappointment that the proposed
development was not visually attractive, particularly in view of Stockley's status as a
landmark business park.

A motion for the application to be approved with an additional informative was moved,
seconded and upon being put to a vote was agreed.

RESOLVED: The application was approved as per the officer's recommendation in the
report and Addendum, with the following additional informative:

Page 3




" The Council will expect the external materials and details submitted pursuant to
condition 17 to compliment the external materials and detailing of the adjacent Grade Il
Listed Arena building."

83.

BRUNEL UNIVERSITY, KINGSTON LANE (Agenda ltem 10)

Councillor Peter Curling, having declared a pecuniary interest, left the meeting for
consideration of this item.

Officers introduced the report and provided an overview of the application.

A motion for the application to be approved with an additional informative was moved,
seconded and upon being put to a vote was agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application was approved.

The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.07 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact on . Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers,
the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 4




Minutes

FHILLINGDON

LONDON

MAJOR Applications Planning Committee

11 January 2017

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:
Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), lan Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Peter Curling,
Janet Duncan, Henry Higgins, John Morgan, Brian Stead and David Yarrow

LBH Officers Present:

Nicole Cameron (Legal Advisor), Neil McClellen (Major Applications Team Leader),
Manmohan Ranger (Transport Consultant), James Rodger (Head of Planning and
Enforcement) and Luke Taylor (Democratic Services Officer)

107. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

Apologies of absence were received from Clir John Oswell, with ClIr June Nelson
substituting.

108. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Peter Curling declared an interest in Item 9, as an employee of Brunel
University, and left the room during the discussion of this item.

109. | TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda
Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2016 were agreed.

110. | MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

None.

111. | TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED
INPUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE
(Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all of the items on the agenda would be heard in public.

112. | LIDL, FORMER IMPERIAL HOUSE AND UNITS 1 & 2, VICTORIA ROAD -

5039/APP/2015/4395 (Agenda Item 6)

Construction of a 2,5654sqm GIA (1,687sqm sales area) Class A1 discount food
store with associated access arrangements, car parking and landscaping
(involving the demolition of Imperial House, former Comet building and vacant

Page 5




Value Windows Ltd building) and external refurbishment / re-cladding of
Bensons for Beds unit. REVISED PLANS.

Officers introduced the report and highlighted the addendum. The proposal sought to
re-develop the site of Imperial House for a part-single, part two-storey retail foodstore
for use by Lidl, with the re-configuration of the car parking, access and delivery
arrangements across the site, together with the external refurbishment of the Benson
for Beds building and associated landscaping.

It was confirmed that there was a petition in support of the application, although the
petitioner chose not to speak at the meeting, and instead were available to answer any
questions from Councillors.

Members commented that the report stated that if the s106 agreement was not agreed
by 31 January 2017, then the application would be delegated for refusal. It was
proposed that the date be changed to 31 March 2017 to allow further consultation on
the s106 agreement, as the current date was too soon.

Responding to questioning, Officers confirmed that it would be possible to change the
wording of Condition 18 so that it read "no deliveries can occur in the following hours"
and that authorisation be delegated to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
confirm this.

The officer's recommendation, subject to the s106 agreement and additional
conditions, was moved, seconded, and upon being put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

— RESOLVED: That the application was approved subject to s106 agreement and
additional conditions.

113.

MUSIC BOX, TOVF - 59872/APP/2016/4461 (Agenda Item 7)

Details pursuant to the discharge of Condition 3 (Proposed Imagine) of planning
application reference 59872/APP/2016/1930 (Reserved Matters Application
regarding the appearance and landscaping for Phase 5 'The Music Box' (formally
the Record Stack) of The Old Vinyl Factory site, as required by Conditions 2 and
3 of planning permission reference 59872/APP/2013/3775).

The Chairman confirmed that Item 7 and 8 would be considered concurrently as they
considered applications at the same site, although both items would be put to a vote
separately.

The report that was introduced by officers proposed images to be included on the
building's external cladding, and the addendum was noted.

The Committee considered the proposed images and confirmed that they were very
supportive of the second image, which was iconic, relevant, and reflects the history of
the site. There was some concern that the first image, while distinctive, may not be as

Page 6




widely recognisable and was not representative of the ethnic diversity in Hayes.

Members confirmed their personal preference for the second imagine, and asked that
the applicants take the opinion of the Committee onboard.

The officer's recommendation on Item 7 was moved, seconded and put to a vote.
Members voted in favour of the proposal, with five votes in favour and two votes
against.

— RESOLVED: That the application was approved.

114. | MUSIC BOX, TOVF - 59872/APP/2016/4462 (Agenda Item 8)
Details pursuant to the discharge of Condition 3 (Proposed Image) of planning
application reference 59872/APP/2016/1930 (Reserved Matters Application
regarding the appearance and landscaping for Phase 5 'The Music Box' (formally
the Record Stack) of The Old Vinyl Factory site, as required by Conditions 2 and
3 of planning permission reference: 59872/APP/2013/3775).
The minutes for Item 8 are included in Item 7, as both items were considered
concurrently.
Members moved the officer's recommendation and voted unanimously in favour of the
application.

— RESOLVED: That the application be approved.
115. | BRUNEL UNIVERSITY, KINGSTON LANE SITE 3 (S73) - 532/APP/2016/3489

(Agenda Item 9)

(Variation of Condition 1 (in order to permanently extend opening hours until
22:00 Monday to Saturday) of planning permission reference 532/APP/2014/4036:
Provision of replacement sports pitches (including new synthetic playing
surfaces), erection of floodlighting, boundary fences and storage building,
together with associated parking and access improvements (Site 3) (S73
application).

Councillor Curling had declared an interest in Item 9 as an employee of Brunel
University, and left the room during the discussion and vote on this item.

Officers introduced the report which sought to extend the opening hours of the sports

pitches on Brunel University's campus until 22:00 Monday to Saturday. Members
proposed, seconded and unanimously agreed the officer's recommendation.

— RESOLVED: That the application be approved.

Page 7




116.

HILLSIDE JUNIOR & INFANT SCHOOL - 18495/APP/2016/3957 (Agenda ltem 10)

Provision of a new Junior School building including new hall, kitchen, admin and
teaching facilities set over 2/3 storeys; rearrangement of existing retained grass
pitches; provision of new multi-use games area, alterations to vehicular access;
increased parking provision; creation of a parent drop-off facility; internal
reconfiguration works to Infant School; landscaping; and associated works.

The report was introduced by officers, who also highlighted the lengthy addendum to
the Committee and additional condition for approval. The proposals included the
provision of a new classroom block with associated facilities, reconfiguration of the staff
car park and playing field, and provision of a multi-use games area and landscaping.

Responding to questioning, Members heard that the two-storey building has been
subject to 111 consultations, and only two objections had been received, both
regarding highways issues and not the impact on neighbouring properties.

The officers recommendation was proposed and seconded, and upon being put to a
vote, was unanimously agreed.

- RESOLVED: That the application was approved, subject to additional
condition.

117.

PHASE 6, ST. ANDREWS - 585/APP/2016/3733 (Agenda Iltem 11)

This item was withdrawn prior to the start of the meeting.

118.

1 UNION BUSINESS PARK - 43562/APP/2016/3401 (Agenda ltem 12)

Change of use of the existing B8 unit to uses within classes B1c, B2 and B8 of
the use classes order. Alterations to the layout of existing parking areas and
associated landscaping and alterations to part of the external alterations.

Officers introduced the report which sought to change the use of the eisting warehouse
building to light industrial, general industrial and storage/warehouse uses, together with
alterations to the layout of the existing parking and associated landscaping, and
alterations to the external elevations of the building. Officers also highlighted the
addendum, and commented that five motorcycle spaces would also be proposed in the
application adjacent to parking space nine, with the wording delegated to the Head of
Planning and Enforcement.

Members expressed concern that noise from light industrial work on the site may have
an impact of residents, and confirmed that power be delegated to the Head of Planning
and Enforcement to condition noise, hours of operation and HGV use on the site.

The Committee proposed, seconded, and unanimously agreed the officer's
recommendation.

Page 8




— RESOLVED: That the application was approved, subject to additional
conditions.

119.

PADCROFT WORKS - 45200/APP/2016/3886 (Agenda Item 13)

Variation of conditions 2 (Accordance with approved plans), 15 (Pedestrian Link)
and 23 (Car Parking Stackers) of planning permission reference
45200/APP/2014/3638 dated 10/12/2015: Demolition of all existing buildings on
the site enclosed by Bentinck Road and Tavistock Road (as shown outlined in
red on the submitted application site plan) including Globe House, Globe Court,
Padcroft Works, the former Dairy Crest dairy and TiGi Warehouse and
comprehensive redevelopment to provide three buildings rising from three to
eight storeys comprising 308 residential units, 175sqm of Class B1 floorspace,
public and private amenity space, hard and soft landscaping and lower ground
floor parking space for 293 vehicles, to allow for the extension of the basement
car park involving the omission of car parking stackers and an infill extension
between blocks to add 645sqm of additional residential floorspace.

Officers introduced the report and Members noted the addendum. The proposal sought
an extension to the basement, removal of car-parking stackers, an infill extension to
add additional residential floorspace and changes to the distribution of the unit mix
across the site.

The officer's recommendation was proposed, seconded, and upon being put to a vote,
was unanimously agreed.

— RESOLVED: That the application was approved.

The meeting, which commenced at Time Not Specified, closed at Time Not Specified.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Luke Taylor on 01895 250693. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 9




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WARRENDER PRIMARY SCHOOL OLD HATCH MANOR RUISLIP

Development: Provision of new two-storey classroom block comprising 8 new classrooms,
staff room, library/ICT suite, technology suite, studio, breakfast club, plus
ancillary facilities; increased parking provision; rearrangement of sports
pitches and provision of new multi-use games area (MUGA) together with
associated steps and ramp; removal of existing modular building and
demolition of existing breakfast club building; and ancillary development.

LBH Ref Nos: 4311/APP/2016/4295

Drawing Nos: Surface Water Drainage Strategy Design Note, prepared by Arcadis datec
13/01/17
Design & Access Statement Rev.4, prepared by Callison RTKI dated
13/01/17
A-10000 Rev.E (Proposed Site Plan)
A-12000 Rev.4 (General Arrangements Plan
M289-200 Rev.P2 (Landscape Plan]
UA008837-ARC-M2-MM-H-014 Rev.P1.1 (Roof Plan Indicative Layou
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, Third Issue, prepared by
Waterco dated 17/01/16
Unnumbered Topographical Survey
Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment, prepared by AOC dated July 2015
Lighting Strategy Report, prepared by Arcadis dated November 201¢
Stage 1/ 2 Road Safety Audit, prepared by Local Transport Projects datec
November 2016
Transport Assessment, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated
November 2016
Travel Plan, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated November 201¢
Arboricultural Constraints Report, prepared by SES dated August 201¢
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, prepared by SES dated 22/11/16
Energy Statement, prepared by Arcadis dated September 201¢€
Bat Building and Tree Inspection, prepared by EPR dated August 201!
Ecological Appraisal, prepared by EPR dated July 201¢
35311100/WAR/PLO1 (Site Location Plan)
35311100/WAR/PL02 (Existing Site Layout Plan’
Noise Impact Assessment, prepared by PaceConsult dated 30/09/16
A-10100 Rev.A (Existing Tree Retention Plan
A-10100 Rev.A (Existing Tree Retention Plan
A-30100 Rev.A (Proposed Site Sections & 3D images)
A-20100 (Large Scale Elevations,

Date Plans Received: 29/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 29/11/2016
Date Application Valid: 29/11/2016 16/01/2017
1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the provision of a new Junior School
building and associated works at Warrender Primary School in Eastcote. The proposals
involve the provision of a new 2-storey classroom block comprising eight classrooms and

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



associated facilities, reconfiguration of the car park and provision of a Multi-Use Games
Area (MUGA) in addition to removal of two existing modular buildings and ancillary works.

The proposals would enable the expansion of the school from one form of entry (1FE) to
two forms of entry (2FE) allowing them to cater for a total of 460 pupils (including nursery).

The Education Act 1996 states that Local Authorities have a duty to educate children
within their administrative area. The Hillingdon School Expansion Programme is part of the
Council's legal requirement to meet the educational needs of the borough.

In the main metropolitan areas throughout the country there has been a significant
increase in the need for school places and this holds true for London. This increase
reflects rising birth rates, migration changes and housing development. The latest
forecast for school places indicates a sustained residual need for additional forms of entry
in primary schools in the north of the borough and there is therefore a requirement to
expand Warrender Primary School to help meet this need.

The existing school would be expanded from 1FE to 2FE to provide additional places for
the children of the borough. Internal reconfiguration works would take place to the existing
school building such that it would provide for an expanded nursery and Key Stage 1 cohort
and the new building would be occupied by Key Stage 2 pupils.

The proposal fully complies with the aims of the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), London Plan policy 3.18 and Local Plan: Part 2 policy R10, which seek to
encourage the provision of new and/or enhanced educational facilities. Furthermore,
whilst it would result in some loss of playing field, it is considered that the provision of
alternative high quality sporting facilities and improvements to the existing drainage would
be of sufficient benefit to sport so as to outweigh this loss, such that the proposals would
not be contrary to current policies which seek to preserve existing playing fields and
sports provision. Despite being contacted and asked various times if they have comments
on the application Sport England have not commented on the scheme. Should Sport
England object to the scheme with respect to loss of playing field land a referral to the
Secretary of State would be required.

It is not considered that the proposed development would result in an unacceptable impact
on the visual amenities of the school site or on the surrounding area. Furthermore, it is
not considered that the proposal would have any significant detrimental impact on the
amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring residential units.

The proposal is supported by a detailed Transport Assessment and provides for mitigation
measures to reduce its impact on the local highway network. The Council's Highway
Engineer has reviewed this information in detail and confirmed that the proposed
development would be acceptable in terms of traffic impact, pedestrian and highway
safety.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant UDP and London Plan policies and,
accordingly, it is recommended that delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning
and Enforcement to approve the scheme, subject to any referral that might be required to
the Secretary of State.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 SPO1 Council Application Standard Paragraph

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



(This authority is given by the issuing of this notice under Regulation 3 of the Town and
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and shall enure only for the benefit of the
land).

2 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers
35311100/WAR/PL01, A-10000 Rev.E, A-12000 Rev.4, A-30100 Rev.A, A-20100, M289-
200 Rev.P2 & UA008837-ARC-M2-MM-H-014 Rev.P1.1, and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

4 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, Third Issue, prepared by Waterco dated
17/01/16

Surface Water Drainage Strategy Design Note, prepared by Arcadis dated 13/01/17
Archaeological Desk-Based Assessment, prepared by AOC dated July 2015

Lighting Strategy Report, prepared by Arcadis dated November 2016

Stage 1 / 2 Road Safety Audit, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated November
2016

Transport Assessment, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated November 2016
Travel Plan, prepared by Local Transport Projects dated November 2016

Arboricultural Constraints Report, prepared by SES dated August 2015

Arboricultural Impact Assessment, prepared by SES dated 22/11/16

Energy Statement, prepared by Arcadis dated September 2016

Bat Building and Tree Inspection, prepared by EPR dated August 2015

Ecological Appraisal, prepared by EPR dated July 2015

Noise Impact Assessment, prepared by PaceConsult dated 30/09/16

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies . Specify
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 COowm7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall proceed beyond the steel/timber/concrete superstructure (including
roof structure) of any building proposed until details of all materials and external surfaces
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



the development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 COM8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Within three months of commencement of works on site a landscape scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Refuse Storage

2.b Cycle and Scooter Storage for 40 bicycles/scooters (exact ratios to be agreed)

2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.d Car Parking Layouts (to show 20 car parking spaces and one motorcycle parking
space, including demonstration that 20% of all parking spaces are served by electrical
charging points, 10% to be active and 10% passive)

2.e Hard Surfacing Materials

2.f External Lighting

2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Living Walls and Roofs
3.a Details of the inclusion of living walls and roofs
3.b Justification as to why no part of the development can include living walls and roofs

4. Details of Landscape Maintenance

4.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

4.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

5. Schedule for Implementation

6. Other
6.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
6.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policies 5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2015).

8 COM10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or
shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the
new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position
to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size and
species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the
first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial
works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be -carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

9 COM17 Control of site noise rating level

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be
at least 5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be
determined at the nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall
be made in accordance with British Standard 4142.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

10 COM26 Ecology

Within three months of commencement of works on site a scheme for the protection,
creation of biodiversity features and enhancement of opportunities for wildlife shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plans shall
detail measures to promote, encourage and support wildlife through the use of, but not
limited to, bat and bird boxes and specific wildlife areas within the landscape scheme.
The development must proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

REASON

To ensure the development makes a positive contribution to the protection and
enhancement of flora and fauna in an urban setting in accordance with policy BE1 of the
Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policies, policy EC5 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (2016) Policy 7.19.

11 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall adhere to 'Secured by Design' principles as set out in the document
'Secure by Design Design - New Schools 2014' published on behalf of the Association of
Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until relevant security
measures have been implemented.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2016) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

12 NONSC Travel Plan

Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved a full Travel Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the Travel
Plan shall be implemented in perpetuity and it shall be reviewed at regular intervals to
monitor its impact and, if required, it shall be updated and/or amended in order that its

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



aims and objectives are achieved.

The Travel Plan shall demonstrate a commitment to the ongoing promotion of sustainable
travel to users of the development and include targets for sustainable travel
arrangements, effective measures for the ongoing monitoring of the Travel Plan, a
commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives and details of effective mechanisms
to achieve the objectives of the Travel Plan. It shall also include measures, such as
expansion of breakfast/after school clubs, staggering of the start/end school times,
implementation of car sharing initiatives and the promotion of walking and cycling
initiatives, aimed at reducing peak time congestion.

REASON

To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with London Plan (July 2016) policies 6.1 and
6.3.

13 NONSC Traffic Management Plan

Prior to the commencement of development a traffic management plan shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall provide details in
relation to access (vehicular and pedestrian) and the parking provision for school and
contracting staff and the delivery of materials during construction.

REASON

To ensure that the construction does not have an unacceptable impact on residential
amenity and in the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policies
AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

14 NONSC Car Park Management Strategy

Prior to occupation of the development a Car Park Management Strategy shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The submitted strategy shall contain details of parking allocation of the staff car park;
details as to how the drop-off and pick-up area will be managed to ensure its efficient
operation; security measures; any parking management equipment such as barriers/ticket
machines, etc; and a detailed scheme of management for the areas including within and
outside of peak school pick up and drop off hours.

Thereafter the area shall be maintained and managed in accordance with the approved
details in perpetuity.

The drop-off/pick-up area must be provided prior to occupation of the development.

REASON

To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (July 2011)
Policies 6.1 and 6.3.

15 NONSC Delivery & Servicing Plan

Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved a Delivery and Servicing Plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall
incorporate measures to minimise vehicle deliveries during am and pm peak hours.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



Thereafter and prior to occupation, the scheme shall be completed in strict accordance
with the approved details and thereafter maintained for the life of the development.

REASON

To encourage out of hours/off peak servicing to help mitigate the site's contribution to local
congestion levels in compliance with Policy AM2 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

16 NONSC Fire Strategy

No development shall proceed beyond the steel/timber/concrete superstructure (including
roof structure) of any building proposed until a comprehensive fire emergency plan that
demonstrates how disabled people will be safeguarded from fire and enabled to evacuate
the building has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policies AM13 and AM16 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and London Plan (2015) Policy 7.2.

17 NONSC Automatic Light Switch Off

Measures shall be put in place to ensure that lights, including car park lighting, are
automatically turned off when the buildings are not in use.

REASON

To safeguard residential amenity in accordance with policies BE13 and OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to reduce
energcy demands in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policy 5.2.

18 NONSC Construction Training

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, detailing how Construction
training will be provided for construction workers on the site. The approved means and
timescale of providing the proposed improvements shall then be implemented in
accordance with the agreed scheme.

REASON

To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to the provision of
construction training within the surrounding area, arising from the proposed development,
in accordance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Planning
Obligations.

19 NONSC PV details

No development shall proceed beyond the steel/timber/concrete superstructure (including
roof structure) of any building proposed until full details, including specifications, of the
Photovoltaics, as required to deliver the CO2 reductions and set out in the Energy
Statement (September 2016, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The details shall include the type and size of PVs, as well as a roof
plan showing their incorporation on the roof space and the method for fixing them to the
roof. The details shall also include the methods for monitoring the use of the PVs and the
collection and use of any 'feed in tariffs'. The development must thereafter proceed in
accordance with the approved details.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



Reason
To ensure the development achieves CO2 reductions in accordance with London Plan
(2016) policy 5.2.

20 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to commencement of development, a scheme for the provision of sustainable water
management shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority.

The scheme shall follow the strategy set out in the hereby approved 'Flood Risk
Assessment and Drainage Strategy,' produced by Waterco and the additional design note
produced by Arcadis.

The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it manages water and demonstrate ways of
controlling the surface water on site by providing information on:

a) Suds features:

i. incorporating sustainable urban drainage (SuDs) in accordance with the hierarchy set
out in Policy 5.15 of the London Plan. Where the proposal does not utilise the most
sustainable solution, justification must be provided,

ii. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume to Greenfield run off rates
at a variety of return periods including 1 in 1 year, 1in 30, 1 in 100, and 1 in 100 plus
Climate change,

iii. where it is intended to have above ground storage, overland flooding should be
mapped, both designed and exceedance routes above the 100, plus climate change,
including flow paths depths and velocities identified as well as any hazards, (safe access
and egress must be demonstrated).

b) Capacity of Receptors

i. Capacity demonstrated for Thames Water foul and surface water networks, and provide
confirmation of any upgrade work required having been implemented and receiving
watercourse as appropriate.

c) Minimise water use.

i. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

ii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

d) Long Term Management and Maintenance of the drainage system.

i. Provide a management and maintenance plan.

i Include details of Inspection regimes, performance specification, (remediation and
timescales for the resolving of issues where a PMC).

iii Where overland flooding is proposed, the plan should include the appropriate actions to
define those areas and actions required to ensure the safety of the users of the site
should that be required.

iv. Clear plans showing all of the drainage network above and below ground. The
responsibility of different parties such as the landowner, PMC, sewers offered for adoption
and that to be adopted by the Council Highways services.

e) From commencement on site

i. How temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood risk from
commencement on site including any clearance or demolition works.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to:

* Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies
(Nov 2012),

* Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (March 2016) and

* To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13
Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (March 2016), and

* Conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the
London Plan (March 2016).

* National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), and the

* Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R4 Proposals that would involve the loss of recreational open space

R5 Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community,

religious, cultural or entertainment facilities

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



R10 Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iif) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
LPP 3.18 (2016) Education Facilities

LPP 3.19 (2016) Sports Facilities

LPP 5.1 (2016) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.2 (2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2016) Renewable energy

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 6.1 (2016) Strategic Approach

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling

LPP 6.12 (2016) Road Network Capacity

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands

LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

4 11 Building to Approved Drawing
You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

5 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

6 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

7 111 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor
who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive,
Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

8 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

9 113 Asbestos Removal

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

10 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work
Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

1 119 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

12 123 Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council. This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway. For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

13 128 Food Hygiene

The Council's Commercial Premises Section should be consulted prior to the use of the
premises so as to ensure compliance with the Food Safety Registration Regulations
1990, Hygiene (General) Regulations 1970, The Food Act 1984, The Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and any other relevant legislation. Contact: - Commercial Premises
Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Telephone 01895
250190).

14 134 Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development.

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

- The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



buildings', or with
- BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice. AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005.

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995. The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments. This duty
can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it is
reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance. For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

- The Disability Discrimination Act 1995. Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

- Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements. Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

- Code of practice. Rights of access. Goods, facilities, services and premises. Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002. ISBN 0 11702 860 6. Available to download from
www.drc-gb.org.

- Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you. A guide for
service providers, 2003. Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation. For further information
you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

15
The Council's Access Officer has advised as follows:

a) The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with
a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment
can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think
ahead to take steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

b) Inclusive design principles should be applied to all learning activities and school
functions. This ensures an environment to help children with Special Educational Needs
and disabilities take part in school activities on an equal basis alongside their non-disabled
peers.

c) Fixtures, fittings and furnishings, particularly hard materials should be selected to
ensure that sound is not adversely reflected. The design of all learning areas should be

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



considerate to the needs of people who are hard of hearing or deaf. Reference should be
made to BS 8300:2009+A1:2010, Section 9.1.2, and, BS 223 in selecting an appropriate
acoustic absorbency for each surface.

d) Care should be taken to ensure that the internal decoration achieves a Light
Reflectance Value (LRV) difference of at least 30 points between floor and walls, ceiling
and walls, including appropriate decor to ensure that doors and door furniture can be
easily located by people with reduced vision.

e) Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and a
term contract planned for their maintenance.

f) Care must be taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction
loops in different/adjacent areas does not occur.

g) Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected and
installed to ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect
people with epilepsy.

16
The Council's Waste Strategy Manager has advised as follows:

General points on waste storage area: -

a) The bin enclosures must be built to ensure there is at least 150 mm clearance in
between the bulk bins and the walls of storage area. The size and shape of the bin
enclosures must also allow good access to bins by school staff, and if multiple bins are
installed for the bins to be rotated in between collections. The dimensions of an 1,100 litre
bulk bin are 1,370 mm x 990 mm x 1,260 mm.

b) Arrangements should be made for the cleansing of the bin stores with water and
disinfectant. A hose union tap should be installed for the water supply. Drainage should be
by means of trapped gully connected to the foul sewer. The floor of the bin store area
should have a suitable fall (no greater than1:20) towards the drainage points.

¢) The material used for the floor should be 100 mm thick to withstand the weight of the
bulk bins. Ideally the walls of the bin storage areas should be made of a material that has
a fire resistance of one hour when tested in

accordance with BS 472-61.

d) The gate / door of the bin stores need to be made of metal, hardwood, or metal clad
softwood and ideally have fire resistance of 30 minutes when tested to BS 476-22. The
door frame should be rebated into the opening. Please ensure the doorway should allow
clearance of 150 mm either side of the bin when it is being moved for collection. The
doors should open outwards from the chamber. The door(s) should have a latch or other
mechanism.

e) The collectors should not have to cart a 1,100 litre bulk bin more than 10 metres from
the point of storage to the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard).

f)The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no
more than 1:20, with a

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the storage area is raised
above the area where the

collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move the bin to level of
the collection vehicle.

g) The roadway should be strong enough to withstand the load of a 26 tonne refuse
collection vehicle.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Warrender Primary School occupies an approximately 1.2 hectare plot located on the north
west side of Old Hatch Manor in Ruislip. The school comprises a single-storey building
located towards the centre of the site, a number of temporary classroom units,
playgrounds, playing field, parking and associated development. A single-storey caretakers
bungalow occupies the eastern corner of the site. Vehicular and pedestrian access is
currently via Old Hatch Manor, although a maintenance vehicle access also exists via
Eastcote Road.

The site lies within a predominantly residential area, largely characterised by two-storey
detached and semi-detached properties. It is bounded by residential gardens on all sides.

The site generally slopes down towards Eastcote Road to the north west and there is a
notable level change between the areas of hardstanding to the south east of the site and
the playing fields to the north west. There is also a significant level change between the
residential gardens to the south and the school playground, reflected by relatively steep
grass banks/bunds around parts of the school's south east and south west boundaries.
Mature trees and play equipment located on grass verges define the site's boundaries,
particularly around the playground areas.

The site falls within the developed area as designated in the Hillingdon Local Plan. Eastcote
Road to the north is designated as a Local Distributor Road and falls within an
Archaeological Priority Area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a new two-storey
classroom block and associated works including the provision of a Multi-Use Games Area
(MUGA), reconfiguration of the car park, landscaping, removal of two modular classroom
units and ancillary works at Warrender Primary School in Ruislip.

The new classroom block would be located on the current playground to the north east of
the existing school building. At ground floor level it would accommodate two standard
classrooms, a design technology room, studio, breakfast club room, small group room, a
staff room and separate staff work room, a Special Educational Needs Co-Ordinator
(SENCO) room, WCs, plant rooms, circulation spaces and associated facilities. At first
floor level the building would accommodate six standard classrooms, an ICT suite and
library, a small group room, WCs, strores, circulation space and ancillary facilities.

A Multi-Use Games Area, enclosed by 2.4m high fencing and capable of accommodating a
range of sports, including tennis, netball, basketball and five-a-side football, would be

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



provided to the north east of the playing field. The remaining grassed area provides
sufficient space to accommodate two smaller or one larger football pitch and running track
as per the existing.

The existing car park would be reconfigured and adjacent footpaths and grassed areas
remodelled to accommodate an additional eight car parking spaces, such that a total of 20
car parking spaces, including two disability standard spaces, and improved access for
refuse collection would be provided.

Some tree removal would be required to accommodate the new building and the increased
need to maximise playground space. Replacement planting would however be provided
around the site boundaries to enhance the visual amenities of the site and to maintain
screening to adjoining residential gardens.

Once complete, the new building would accommodate the school's KS2 pupils. Internal
refurbishment works, not requiring planning permission, would take place to the existing
building to allow the expansion of the KS1 cohort into the newly created space. It is
understood that refurbishment works would also seek to improve some of the existing
shortcomings of the building where several classrooms are undersized. The additional
space provided through the provision of new accommodation would also enable two
existing single-storey modular classrooms, currently located towards the north west of the
existing building, to be removed.

Following the expansion, the school would cater for a total of 460 pupils (including nursery)
and 40 full time equivalent (FTE) staff. This would represent increases of 210 pupils and 20
FTE staff.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no relevant planning history.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



PT1.EM5
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM7
PT1.EM11

(2012) Sport and Leisure

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
)

(2012) Sustainable Waste Management

Part 2 Policies:

BE13
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22

BE24
BE38

OE1

OE7
OE8

R4
R5

R10

R16
AM7
AM9

AM13

AM14
AM15
LPP 3.18
LPP 3.19

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Proposals that would involve the loss of recreational open space

Proposals that involve the loss of sports, leisure, community, religious, cultural or
entertainment facilities

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

(2016) Education Facilities

(2016) Sports Facilities

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



LPP 5.1 (2016) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.2 (2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction
LPP 5.7 (2016) Renewable energy

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 6.1 (2016) Strategic Approach

LPP 6.3 (2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
LPP 6.9 (2016) Cycling

LPP 6.12 (2016) Road Network Capacity

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.2 (2016) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature
LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands

LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 23rd December 2016

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 128 local owner/occupiers and the Ruislip Residents' Association.
Site and press notices were also posted. 11 letters of objection have been received which raise the
following concerns:

i) The Travel Plan fails to address existing parking issues, including illegal parking.

ii) The Travel Plan fails to address the impact of the 84% increase in pupil numbers on parking.

iif) CCTV and traffic wardens are needed.

iv) A Cabinet Member Petition Hearing was held on 9th November following a call for on-street
parking restrictions from 28 households in Old Hatch Manor, half of the street.

v) The regular parking attendant patrols and numerous H-Bar markings, which attempt to restrict
parking across driveways, signify an existing problem.

vi) Safety is a high priority as the pupils are all under 12 and crossing the road is hazardous.

vii) The Transport Assessment relies on surveys all taken on an exceptionally warm and dry July day
just before the end of term. The statistics quoted are therefore unrepresentative of normal traffic
conditions. Failure to disclose this information is disingenuous.

viii) The Transport Assessment makes a number of inaccurate assumptions which understate the
parking demand from commuters, staff and parents in Old Hatch Manor.

ix) Eastcote Road and Windmill Hill do not lend themselves to on-street parking and Old Hatch
Manor, The Ridgeway and Warrender Way are at saturation from Warrender and Bishop Ramsey

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



Schools.

X) Increase in peak time traffic.

xi) Use of Windmill Hill for dropping off slows traffic and impedes access to/egress from residents'
properties.

xii) The Transport Assessment is based on historic data and it underestimates the numbers
travelling by car and parking demand.

xiii) Ecological and Bat Surveys were carried out 12 months prior to any traffic surveys. If the
Transport Assessment is approved in its current form this would suggest the Council gives greater
consideration to its bat population than to pupils or residents.

xiv) The school has drainage problems and the field is rarely used due to waterlogging. This will
worsen the situation.

xv) When it rains the after school building floods. Existing problems need to be sorted.

xvi) Properties in Eastcote Road and The Ridgeway have experienced significant flood damage due
to run-off from the school site. Measures must be put in place to prevent a reoccurrence of this
problem.

xvii) Houses in Eastcote Road are inaccurately shown. These have attached extensions meaning
extra water cannot escape.

xviii) The opposite corner of the playing field should be hardsurfaced instead and a drain installed
along the school's boundary with The Ridgeway.

xix) Overlooking.

xX) Tree planting should be provided along the northern boundary to provide screening and a noise
buffer.

xxi) Removal of trees (group G6), which will not be directly replaced, will cause a detrimental impact
on screening currently provided to properties in Windmill Hill.

xxii) The existing hall is woefully inadequate to meet the schools existing needs. The proposals do
not do enough to address this issue. There is space to provide a new stand alone sports hall
between the existing and proposed buildings, which would have limited visual impact.

xxiii) New planting should be provided but tree roots could damage property.

xxiv) No information is provided regarding lighting of the MUGA and playing field. Assurance should
be given that none will be provided.

xxv) Overdevelopment of the site.

xxvi) Overshadowing.

xxvii) Noise from out of hours use.

METROPOLITAN POLICE DESIGNING OUT CRIME OFFICER (DOCO)
The Design and Access statement clearly identifies Secured by Design adherence and as such, |
would insist on this development meeting the Secured by Design Schools 2014 design guide.

The developers / architects should make early contact with the CPDA.

GREATER LONDON ARCHAEOLOGICAL ADVISORY SERVICE (GLAAS)
Recommend No Archaeological Requirement

Having considered the proposals with reference to information held in the Greater London Historic
Environment Record and/or made available in connection with this application, | conclude that the
proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest.

The site does not lie within an Archaeological Priority Area and, as noted in the desk-based
assessment, it has low archaeological potential for all periods reflecting a paucity of recorded
archaeology in the vicinity and its historical location within medieval open fields. The site will also
have been disturbed by construction of the school. Whilst some as yet undiscovered archaeological
features could be present there is no evidence for a significant heritage asset.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



No further assessment or conditions are therefore necessary.

SPORT ENGLAND
To be reported at Committee.

Internal Consultees

FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER

Detailed comments were provided by the Flood and Water Management Officer and a revised Floor
Risk Assessment provided. The Flood and Water Management Officer has advised that this does
not address her concerns so planning conditions will be required.

TREES/LANDSCAPING OFFICER

The site lies within a 1.22 hectare plot surrounded by residential properties whose rear gardens
contain the site.

The main entrance is off Old Hatch Lane to the south and there is an emergency access between
the houses to the north onto Eastcote Road.

The existing built development, comprising low single-storey buildings, and hard surfacing is
concentrated in the southern half of the site on elevated ground. The playing fields occupy the
northern half of the site at a lower level, surrounded by short embankments.

Boundary structure planting around the southern half of the site is composed of established trees
which contribute to the character and appearance of the area and provide a high level landscape
buffer between the school and its neighbours.

An Arboricultural Cosnrtraints Report and Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been prepared by
SES. 9No individual trees and 7No. groups have been surveyed and assessed.

No 'A' grade trees have been identified. 'B' grade trees include: G1 is a double row of mature trees
on the east boundary (including maples, cherries, alder and whitebeam), T3 a white poplar, off-site
on the west boundary, G2 maples, thorn (centre of site), T4 white poplar and T5 ash, both off-site in
the south-east corner, G5 mature maples, on the southern boundary immediately west of the site
entrance and T8, a pine on the southern boundary to the east of the site entrance.

The remaining trees are 'C' rated. However, most of the trees, collectively, add landscape value to
the site, creating visual interest, screening and wider environmental benefits.

In order to accommodate the development the inner row of mature trees in G1 will be removed, as
will G2 and G3, together with 'c' grade trees G6 (on the west boundary).

No tree protection or arboricultural method statement has been prepared at this stage.

A minimum of 15 trees will be removed, many of which are large trees with high landscape / visual
value. However, due to the changes in level across the site and the need to cut into earth
embankments / root protection areas it is very likely that additional trees will be sacrificed to
accommodate the proposed works (T7 part of G5).

A Landscape Plan, by IJLA, indicates approximately 20No. new young trees planted mainly along the
east boundary, west boundary and in the north-east corner of the site.

In my view the selected species should be reviewed in the north-east corner where potentially large
trees with spreading habits (Q. robur) are shown next to the MUGA - where more upright / fastigiate
trees might be more suitable.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



Additional tree planting should be indicated along the southern boundary (west side) and along the
west / northwest boundaries. - Tree planting along the northern boundary could usefully contribute to
the control of surface/ ground water run-off which is known to be an issue on this site.

If the application is recommended for approval, landscape conditions will be necessary to protect
retained trees and ensure that a robust landscape scheme secures suitable replacement planting.
At the moment the replacement provision is inadequate.

Recommendation:

If the application is recommended for approval please add conditions COM6 (levels), COM7
(materials), COMS (tree protection), COM9 (parts 1,2,3,4,5 and 6) (landscaping) and COM10 (trees
to be retained).

Officer comment:

Amended plans have been received which show additional tree planting and amendments to the
species proposed. The Trees/Landscape Officer has confirmed that this adequately reflects the
above mentioned recommendations, but has re-emphasised the need for conditions requiring tree
protection and a method statement to ensure no harm occurs to retained trees.

WASTE STRATEGY MANAGER
Overall satisfactory from the point of view of waste storage.
Informatives relating to waste storage should be attached should approval be granted.

ENVIRONMENTAL OFFICER
Energy comments:

No objections are raised to the proposed development.

The energy strategy shows the development will achieve the minimum requirement of a 35%
reduction in CO2 from 2013 Building Regulations. However, the solution proposed relies on the use
of PV panels on the roof of the new building. The elevations and CGI images do not show any PVs
on the roof of the new building.

Accordingly, the following conditions are necessary:

Condition

Prior to the commencement of development full details including specifications of the Photovoltaics
as required to deliver the CO2 reductions and set out in the Energy Statement (September 2016).
The details shall include the type and size of PVs, as well as a roof plan showing their incorporation
on the roof space and the method for fixing them to the roof. The details shall also include the
methods for monitoring the use of the PVs and the collection and use of any 'feed in tariffs'. The
development must proceed in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason
To ensure the development achieves COZ2 reductions in accordance with London Plan Policy 5.2.

Ecology Comments:
No objections are raised to the proposed development.

The development needs to make a positive contribution to wildlife protection, creation and
enhancement. The ecology assessment provides no recommendations. Accordingly, the following

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



condition is required:

Condition

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for the creation of biodiversity features and
enhancement of wildlife shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include plans showing the incorporation of measures such as bird and
bat boxes and a specific wildlife area for educational purposes. The plans shall also show the use
of living walls/screens and living roofs. The development must proceed in accordance with the
approved plans.

Reason
To ensure the development makes a positive contribution to the protection and enhancement of flora
and fauna in an urban setting in accordance with Policy BE1 of the Local Plan.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER
This is a major extension to the existing Warrender Primary School at Old Hatch Manor. The school
has been on the site since 1971. There were pre-app discussions over the expansion proposals.

The applicant provided a Transport Assessment (TA) by Local Transport Projects (November 2016)
as part of the application.

The school has a a vehicular access off Old Hatch Manor, a local road in the Council's Road
Network. The access leads to staff parking with 12 spaces. The properties in Old Hatch Manor are
predominantly detached houses with their own off-street parking available.

The site has a PTAL value of 3 (moderate) which is a result of nearby bus services.

The school access off Old Hatch Manor is shared with an adjacent property. There is also an
emergency access off Eastcote Road (B466 - a classified road). There are 'School Keep Clear'
markings at the school access in Old Hatch Manor.

The 2012 School Travel Plan showed that approximately 32% of pupils were car borne so there is a
large percentage of trips by sustainable modes (over 60% walk).

There were traffic and parking counts carried out by the consultants on a warm day in July and this
data was used as the basis for analysis. This trip making along with non-school traffic meant that
there were approximately 160 two-way vehicle movements per hour in Old Hatch Manor.

The TA provided results of parking surveys that showed parking levels in close proximity to the
school were already approximately 50% of capacity at 7 am before school started as a result of
resident and commuter cars.

The existing school arrangements produce parking stress generated by drop-off and pick up
activities in the morning and afternoon respectively which is the case in most primary schools in the
Borough.

It is proposed to expand the school from 250 pupils to 460 pupils and staffing will increase from 20
FTE (currently 27 staff) to 40 FTE. This 84% increase in the number of pupils will result in additional
traffic along with additional parking demand.

The proposals for the site involve the re-configuration of the existing staff car park to increase the
number of staff car parking spaces by 8. This will help to reduce the impact of the proposals on the
surrounding streets.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



The parking surveys undertaken showed that within 200m of the existing school entrance that the
average parking capacity was 58%. Close to the school entrance the available parking spaces were
full during peak pick up and drop off times. The parking surveys showed that prior to the start of
school the parking stress was approximately 46% whereas at peak times it was 55%.

With the new school in place the level of traffic in Old Hatch Manor would approximately double from
160 vph to 320 vph which would be significant but not such that capacity was being met.

A new School Travel Plan is proposed in support of the latest application and measures should be
considered that help to reduce car travel for a school that already has a small catchment. These
measures should also include initiatives that ensure that any on-street parking does not create
safety issues and does not penalise local residents in terms of their access and egress.

It is recommended that a Construction Management Plan is also conditioned.

In light of the above comments, notwithstanding the proposed significant growth in numbers of pupils
and staff and localised congestion at peak times, there is adequate on-street car parking capacity
within the wider locality.

Therefore, no significant concerns over the proposals are raised providing a School Travel Plan with
appropriate trip reduction measures as well as the involvement of local residents is progressed.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
The noise report prepared by Paceconsult dated 30 September 2016 ref: PC-16-0229-RP.1.1 has
been reviewed.

The report addresses the indoor ambient noise levels as per BB93 for the new building but has not
addressed the noise impact on sensitive receptors from the new football and athletics pitch, the new
MUGA facilities which will be operational all season.

The report also recommends in table 4, page 14 the rating level for new mechanical plants. The
rating levels recommended are the same as the the current background noise. Our
recommendation is that the rated level should be at least 5dB below the background noise.
Accordingly, a condition to require this should be imposed, should approval be granted, in addition to
the standard informative regarding the control of environmental nuisance from construction work.

EDUCATION

The Council subscribes to the GLA School Rolls Projection Service. Its forecasting model is robust,
having been developed over many years. The number of pupils in the borough has grown due to
rising birth rates and changes to migration patterns. A successful programme of primary school
expansions and new schools has already taken place across the Borough. This will meet the
majority of forecast need.

However, a few localised place pressures remain and this includes some areas in the north of the
Borough. In these areas, it can be difficult to place pupils within a reasonable distance of their
homes due to the travelling distance to the nearest available place and further places are needed to
manage demand.

Warrender Primary is centrally located in the north of the Borough and is therefore well-located for
expansion, as the additional places will be accessible (i.e. within the 'statutory' two mile walking
route) to a wide area. Being an over-subscribed school, the additional places will also reduce
pressure on other popular local schools. Therefore, in addition to increasing overall capacity, the

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



expansion of Warrender Primary will also result in a geographical distribution of available places that
better matches demand.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is an established educational facility which falls within the developed area as
designated in the Hillingdon Local Plan. It does not fall in or adjacent to the Green Belt and
does not comprise land designated as public open space. It has no other specific
designations. Accordingly, the key issues pertaining to the principle of development relate
to education and impact on the playing fields.

Policy R10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to encourage the provision of enhanced educational facilities across the borough,
stating:

"The Local Planning Authority will regard proposals for new meeting halls, buildings for
education, social, community and health services, including libraries, nursery, primary and
secondary school buildings, as acceptable in principle subject to other policies of this plan."

This is reiterated in the London Plan Policy 3.18 which states:

"Development proposals which enhance education and skills provision will be supported,
including new build, expansion of existing facilities or change of use to educational
purposes. Those which address the current projected shortage of primary school places
will be particularly encouraged."

Furthermore, on 15/08/11 the DCLG published a policy statement on planning for schools
development, which is designed to facilitate the delivery and expansion of state-funded
schools. It states:

"The Government is firmly committed to ensuring there is sufficient provision to meet
growing demand for state-funded school places, increasing choice and opportunity in
state-funded education and raising educational standards. State-funded schools - which
include Academies and free schools, as well as local authority maintained schools
(community, foundation and voluntary aided and controlled schools) - educate the vast
majority of children in England. The Government wants to enable new schools to open,
good schools to expand and all schools to adapt and improve their facilities. This will allow
for more provision and greater diversity in the state-funded school sector to meet both
demographic needs and the drive for increased choice and higher standards."

It goes on to say that:

"It is the Government's view that the creation and development of state-funded schools is
strongly in the national interest and that planning decision-makers can and should support
that objective, in a manner consistent with their statutory obligations. We expect all parties
to work together pro actively from an early stage to help plan for state-school development
and to shape strong planning applications. This collaborative working would help to ensure
that the answer to proposals for the development of state-funded schools should be,
wherever possible, "yes."

The statement clearly emphasises that there should be a presumption in favour of the

development of schools and that "Local Planning Authorities should make full use of their
planning powers to support state-funded schools applications."

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



Paragraph 72 of the NPPF reiterates the objectives set out in the DCLG Policy Statement
on Planning for Schools Development. It clearly confirms that the Government attaches
great importance to ensuring that a sufficient choice of school places are available to meet
existing and future demand.

The Council's Education Team have provided a strong justification in terms of the future
demand for the development. It is also noted that the NPPF and ministerial statement are
strongly supportive of all educational provision and it is not therefore considered that it is
necessary to establish a need for educational development under the current policy
context. To the contrary the context is quite clear that all enhancements to educational
provision are supported.

The proposal is considered to fully comply with this strong local, regional and national
policy support for new, enhanced and expanded educational facilities. However,
notwithstanding this, it should be noted that the proposed development would result in a
loss of playing field.

Policies R4 and R5 of the Local Plan: Part 2 seek to resist the loss of playing field "unless
adequate, accessible, alternative facilities are available."

Part B of London Plan policy 3.19 states:

"Development proposals that increase or enhance the provision of sports and recreation
facilities will be supported. Proposals that result in a net loss of sports and recreation
facilities, including playing fields should be resisted."

Sport England's Playing Field Policy - A Sporting Future for the Playing Fields of England,
confirms that Sport England will oppose the granting of planning permission for any
development which would lead to the loss of, or would prejudice the use of, all or part of a
playing field, unless one of five exceptions applies. Exception E5, quoted below, is
considered to be most relevant to this application:

"E5 The proposed development is for an indoor or outdoor sports facility, the provision of
which would be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport so as to outweigh the
detriment caused by the loss of the playing field or playing fields."

Paragraph 74 of the NPPF reiterates the objectives set out in Sport England's Policy
Statement. It confirms that sports and recreational buildings and land, including playing
fields, should not be built on unless (amongst other criteria)

i) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or

ii) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the needs for which
clearly outweigh the loss.

The applicant's Planning Statement seeks to justify the development against the relevant
policy criteria by demonstrating that there would in fact be no overall loss in quantity and a
marked improvement in quality of sports facilities to be provided at the site.

With regard to existing sports provision, this is currently very limited at the site. The internal
layout of the building and small size of the existing school hall is such that it does not lend
itself to formal sports provision. Furthermore, the shape of the playgrounds and their close
proximity to buildings restricts their use for formal sport. The Design and Access
Statement (DAS) confirms that the existing playing field typically accommodates two five-a-

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



side pitches and a running track. Aerial photos suggest it alternatively accommodates
rounders pitches during summer months. The DAS goes on to confirm that due to the
relatively narrow shape of the playing field, the maximum sports provision it would be
capable of providing, taking into account Sport England recommended pitch sizes, would
be a single U9/U10 pitch and a single five-a-side pitch, although insufficient space would be
available for recommended run-off areas. The applicant has advised that the existing
playing field suffers from poor drainage, which renders it unusable for much of the year.
This was confirmed by the school during officers' site visit and has also been confirmed by
residents in their comments on this scheme.

By comparison, the proposed scheme would provide a playing field which could be laid out
to accommodate the same size and quantum of pitches in addition to a purpose built
MUGA capable of accommodating a range of sports. Drainage improvements would also
be carried out to reduce existing issues of waterlogging and flooding which restricts use of
the playing field for much of the year. It is considered that the proposed drainage
improvements in addition to the provision of a MUGA would, in effect, result in superior
sports facilities to the existing, which are more capable of meeting the school's year-round
sporting needs and curriculum delivery.

Notwithstanding the above, officers have undertaken a search of appeal decisions
concerning new education developments that affect either playing fields or open space to
understand how Planning Inspectors have interpreted the above mentioned Ministerial
Statement and the 'weighting' that should be given to this as a material planning
consideration.

A search of a national appeals database identified 3 appeal cases where loss of open
space or playing field was involved.

Where the schemes are of direct relevance is that in each case the decision maker had, in
effect, to decide whether a clear education need outweighed other strong material planning
considerations. All 3 appeals (namely the appeal by Chapel Street Community Schools
Trust for a free school on open space in Oxfordshire, a new free secondary school by
'Great Schools for all Children' in Warrington on public open space involving the loss of a
sports pitch and Poulton Church of England Primary and Nursery School's planning
application in Poulton-Le-Flyde Lancashire which proposed modular buildings on urban
open space) were allowed and significant weight was given by the appeal inspector to the
education need in every case.

In the Warrington case (which is a 2014 case and therefore was based on the NPFF,
Ministerial statement and most up to date national Planning Policies) the Council in refusing
the planning application stated:

"The playing fields offer significant benefits to the local community due to the sports pitches
available and their accessibility and close proximity to residents, community groups and
schools."

Sport England did not object subject to,
"Conditions regarding the submission, agreement and implementation of a sports
development plan and community use agreement, the details and specifications of the

sports hall, changing rooms and artificial grass pitch and a scheme for the improvement of
the remaining playing fields are required to ensure that there is sufficient benefit to the

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



development of sport, suitable arrangements for community access and that the loss of
the existing playing fields on the site is effectively mitigated."

It should be noted that Sport England therefore appear to have been satisfied that
conditions could be used to address potential policy conflicts.

The Inspector in allowing the appeal stated;

"There are differing views as to the potential effects on existing schools and the justification
for the proposed school in terms of the need to raise educational standards. What is clear
however is that the proposal will create an additional school, increasing the number of
school places available and creating greater choice and diversity for secondary education
in the area. In the context of the Framework and the Ministerial Policy Statement, this
constitutes a significant benefit that carries substantial weight."

It should be noted that the appeal was then called in by the Secretary of State who then
confirmed that he agreed with the Inspector's original decision letter.

In the Poulton Church of England Primary and Nursery School case the Planning Inspector
cites the text in the Ministerial statement which says that the development of state-funded
schools is in the 'national interest' and that planning decision makers should support that
objective, in a manner consistent with their statutory obligations. The Planning Inspector
then openly criticises the Local Planning Authority in his decision letter for not giving
sufficient consideration to the Ministerial Statement.

What these recent appeal cases show is that decision makers are expected to place
substantial weighting on the Ministerial Statement and that it is a very important material
planning consideration. As such officers consider that the educational need argument
outlined by the applicant and the Council's Education Team with respect to Warrender
Primary School should be given substantial weighting as a material planning consideration.

In this instance Sport England are a statutory consultee. However, despite acknowledging
receipt of the Council's consultation on 30th November and subsequent follow-up emails
from officers chasing for a response, no comments have been received at the time of
writing this report.

Whilst every application must be assessed on its own merits, Sport England's approach to
past applications is of relevance. Officers are aware of several primary school sites within
Hillingdon where Sport England have raised no objection to the provision of MUGAs on
playing fields. Also of note is Sport England's more recent objection to loss of playing field
at nearby Northwood School (application ref: 12850/APP/2014/4492), which was neither
upheld by the GLA or the Secretary of State. It is difficult to argue that those decisions don't
set at least some form of precedent.

The applicant has put forward a strong, well reasoned justification for the proposal and
demonstrated that there would be no loss in overall sports provision in terms of quantity or
quality. Taking everything into consideration, including current planning policy wording at
local, regional and national level, even if Sport England were to object, it is very difficult to
see how this could be upheld in this instance.

Conclusion:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The proposal is considered to fully comply with current planning policy which seeks to
support the improvement, enhancement and expansion of existing school sites.
Furthermore, the proposal is also considered to comply with current policy which allows
the loss of existing playing fields, providing the loss resulting from the proposed
development would be off-set by alternative facilities. Even if it could be argued that a loss
in quantity of sports provision would occur, it is considered that this would be so negligible
that it would not amount to such exceptional circumstances that it would outweigh the
educational need for the development.

On the basis of the above, the proposal is considered to comply with current local, London
Plan and national policies relating to educational provision and sports facilities and no
objections are raised to the principle of the development, subject to the proposals meeting
site specific criteria.

Density of the proposed development

The application relates to new educational development. Residential density is therefore
not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

There are no Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings or Areas of Special Local Character
within the vicinity. Although the application site does not fall within an Archaeological Priority
Area, nearby Eastcote Road to the north west of the site does. An Archaeological Desk-
Based Assessment has been submitted in support of the application and the Greater
London Archaeological Advisory Service have been consulted. No objection or requirement
for conditions has been raised.

Airport safeguarding

Not applicable. There is no requirement to consult the aerodrome safeguarding authorities
on this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable. There is no green belt land within the vicinity of the application site.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policies BE13 and BE19 seek to ensure that new development complements or improves
the character and amenity of the area. The scale, bulk and siting of buildings are key
determinants in ensuring that the amenity and character of an area is not compromised by
new development.

The school's location, bounded by residential properties on all sides, combined with its
topography is such that public views into the site are very limited. The proposed new two-
storey building and the MUGA would be heavily screened from public view by surrounding
development and tree planting. Accordingly, it is not considered that the development would
have any significant detrimental impact on the Old Hatch Manor and Eastcote Road
streetscenes or the wider surrounding area.

At two-storeys in height the new building would be more visible than the existing buildings
on site from neighbouring residential properties. However, given existing on and off-site
planting, in addition to proposed new tree planting to infill gaps around the site boundaries,
it is not considered that it would appear as a visually prominent or discordant feature which
would be of such harm to the visual amenities of the school site or immediately
surrounding area that refusal could be justified.

Impact on neighbours

Local Plan: Part 2 policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24, in addition to the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document on Residential Layouts, seek to safeguard residential

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



amenity.

The Council's Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on Residential Layouts states
that in order to protect the daylight and sunlight available to adjoining properties, and to
protect against potential over domination, a minimum distance of 15m should be
maintained between adjoining two or more storey buildings. Furthermore, a minimum
distance of 21m should be retained between facing habitable room windows in order to
ensure there is no unacceptable overlooking.

The nearest residential properties to the proposed new building would be located in The
Ridgeway. A distance in excess of 40m would be retained between the rear elevations of
those properties and the nearest part of the proposed new building. Notably a distance in
excess of 27m would also be retained between the proposed fencing to the Multi-Use
Games Area and the nearest residents in Eastcote Road. Given these distances, which
exceed minimum Council guidelines, in addition to existing and proposed boundary
planting, it is not considered that the development would have any significant detrimental
impact on residential amenity in terms of overlooking, overshadowing or overdominance.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

This consideration relates to the quality of residential accommodation and is not applicable
to this type of development. However, it is considered that the proposed development,
which has been designed to accord with Department for Education standards, would
provide an appropriate environment for the future staff and pupils.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Local Plan: Part 2 policies AM2 and AM7 seek to safeguard highway and pedestrian safety
and ensure that developments do not have an adverse impact on the surrounding highway
network. Policies AM14 and AM15 seek to ensure appropriate levels of car parking are
provided.

A Transport Assessment, accompanied by a Travel Plan, has been submitted in support of
the application.

The proposals seek to expand the school from 1FE to 2FE. Total pupil numbers would
increase from 250 to 460 (including nursery) and staff numbers would increase from 20
(full time equivalent (FTE)) to 40 FTE, representing increases of 210 and 20 respectively.

Currently staff parking only is provided on site. Visitors and parents are required to use on-
street parking available along local roads. The proposals seek to increase the number of
on-site car parking spaces from 12 to 20. Furthermore, cycle storage facilities for 40
bicycles will be provided.

No reference is made to the provision of electric vehicle charging points in the submission.
In accordance with London Plan requirements 20% (10% active and 10% passive) of
spaces should be served by electric vehicle charging points. This would be required by
way of condition.

Based on current trip generation data, the Transport Assessment suggests that traffic
levels will increase on the surrounding roads by as many as 150 two way trips in the
morning arrival and evening departure hours. However, it concludes that whilst this will
create an increased demand for short-term parking in the surrounding roads, providing
appropriate mitigation measures are put in place through the adoption of a robust school
Travel Plan, there is capacity to cope with this within a short distance of the school.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



Residents' concerns that the Transport Assessment is insufficiently robust are noted and it
is acknowledged that commuter parking associated with nearby Ruislip Manor station
contributes to parking demand within the locality. It is also acknowledged that the surveys
undertaken were carried out on a warm summer day where a higher number of people are
likely to walk. Nevertheless, the school has a relatively small catchment area and a large
proportion of its pupils live within walking distance. Accordingly a large proportion of pupils
do already regularly walk to school. Given the relatively small catchment, through robust
Travel Plan measures there is opportunity to significantly increase existing numbers
travelling by sustainable modes of transport. The Council's Highway Engineer has
confirmed that residents' comments have been taken into consideration in assessing the
scheme but that the Transport Assessment is satisfactory in this instance.

Residents comments regarding inconsiderate driver behaviour and peak time parking
stress are also noted. It is also acknowledged that the Cabinet Member for Planning,
Transportation and Recycling heard residents' views on this matter at the Petition Hearing
of 9th November 2016, where it was agreed that their request for a parking scheme in Old
Hatch Manor would be taken forward for further investigation and more detailed
consultation when resources permit. That is a matter for the Council's Highway Authority to
investigate and not a matter for consideration as part of this application. The introduction of
a parking management scheme can have far reaching repercussions which would need to
be carefully considered and fall outside the remit of this application. Furthermore, whilst the
school undoubtedly contributes towards parking demand at peak times, it would not create
such a significant increase in traffic or parking demand and nor is it the sole contributor to
the problem such that it would be reasonable to require a parking management scheme
through this application.

Congestion associated with schools only typically occurs for relatively short periods of time
during peak drop-off and pick-up times for the school and traffic disperses relatively quickly.
Accordingly, it is not considered that the scheme would result in such a significant impact
on the surrounding highway network that refusal could be justified. Whilst it is
acknowledged that congestion along Old Hatch Manor increases at peak pick-up and drop-
off times, notably there is ample capacity within the surrounding area, a short walk away
from the school. Indeed, during sites visits to both Warrender Primary School and nearby
Bishop Ramsey School over the past year officers noted that on each occasion nearby on-
street parking was available.

The site constraints are such that the ability to provide a significant increase in on-site
parking and an on site drop-off/pick-up area for pupils is simply not viable in this instance.
However, the Travel Plan will assist in spreading the peak demand period and encouraging
use of more sustainable modes of transport.

In terms of staff travel this is unlikely to occur during peak times as the majority of staff
arrive before and depart after peak pupil start/finish times. Accordingly, it is not considered
that the additional trips generated by staff would lead to a significant demand for additional
parking or have any significant impact on the highway network.

It is not considered that the proposed development would have such a detrimental impact
on the local highway network that refusal could be justified, providing a robust school travel
plan is provided to encourage the use of more sustainable modes of transport to/from
school. This would be required by way of condition should approval be granted. Notably, the
Council's Highway Engineer has raised no objections to the proposed development. Whilst
residents' strong concerns are noted, the traffic impacts are not considered to outweigh

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



the educational need for the development in this instance.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

- Urban Design
This issue has been largely addressed in part 7.07 of the report.

Although the existing school buildings are all single-storey, the surrounding area is
predominantly characterised by two-storey properties and, as such, no objections are
raised to the height of the building in this location. The building's rectangular layout allows
for efficient use of indoor space, which in-turn allows the footprint to be minimised and its
location on the site and the presence of boundary planting helps to reduce its visual impact

The ground floor would be finished in brick, with the first floor finished in render. The
fenestration and coloured infill panels would punctuate the facades and add some visual
interest and colour. Such designs and materials are typical of many modern school
buildings across the borough and considered to be acceptable in this location.

Taking into consideration the site constraints and the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, the size, scale, height and design of the proposed development is
considered to be visually acceptable in this instance.

- Security

The submitted Design and Access Statement confirms that security has been carefully
considered by the applicant to ensure that a secure and welcoming environment is
provided for pupils, whilst limiting opportunities for trespassing and vandalism.

It demonstrates that daytime and out of hours security has been carefully considered and
that a series of measures would be employed to ensure a safe and secure environment is
retained. It confirms that access controlled entry would be provided and that the design has
sought to avoid isolated alcoves around the building perimeter or areas where passive
supervision would be limited. It confirms that the new building would adhere to the
principles of Secure by Design and that the following measures would be incorporated:

- The existing boundary fence will be retained. Where damaged or ineffective due to
adjacent property/trees, this will be reviewed and amendments made accordingly to
reinstate it;

- Lockable gates will be provided where appropriate;

- CCTV to cover pedestrian and vehicular access points. Further CCTV will be provided in
the ground floor common areas linked to the main alarm system;

- Appropriate zoning for site / building lock down for out of ; hours community use;

- Windows and doors are to be designed in accordance with SBD principles;

- New intruder alarm system to be provided and will be linked to the existing school alarm
system.

The Metropolitan Police Designing Out Crime Officer has raised no objections subject to a
condition requiring the development to meet Secure by Design criteria.
7.12 Disabled access

The submitted Design and Access Statement confirms that the proposed development will
achieve reasonable levels of accessibility with level access provided throughout,
appropriate corridor and door widths, disability standard parking bays and provision of lifts.
Ramped access would also be provided to the proposed MUGA.

It confirms that the development will comply with relevant educational design standards
(BB99), Part M of the Building Regulations, BS5839 and BS8300.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



Following initial comments from the Council's Access Officer amended plans have been
received which show that a hygiene room will be provided within the new building.
Accordingly, subject to a condition to ensure an appropriate emergency evacuation
strategy is put in place for disabled persons, the Council's Access Officer has raised no
objections.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this type of development.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The NPPF states that development proposals should seek to respect and retain, where
possible, existing landforms and natural features of development sites, including trees of
amenity value, hedges and other landscape features. It states that development should
make suitable provision for high quality hard and soft landscape treatments around
buildings. Landscape proposals will need to ensure that new development is integrated and
positively contributes to or enhances the streetscene. In addition, proposals should seek to
create, conserve or enhance biodiversity and improve access to nature by sustaining and,
where possible, improving the quality and extent of natural habitat enhancing biodiversity in
green spaces and among developments. Local Plan: Part 2 policy BE38 seeks the
retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision
of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

Planting across the site predominantly consists of boundary structure planting composed
of established trees which contribute to the character and appearance of the area and
provide a high level landscape buffer between the school and its neighbours.

Several trees would be removed to facilitate the development, including the inner row of
Grade 'B' trees along the north east boundary, one Grade 'B' tree to the south of the
existing car park and a number of Grade 'C' trees.

Following comments from the Council's Trees/Landscape Officer amended plans have
been received which show replacement tree planting (approximately 38 trees) would be
provided to fill gaps around the site boundaries and to provide screening along the
boundaries with the playing field and MUGA. Comments regarding species have also been
taken on board.

In terms of ecological impacts, an Ecological Appraisal and a Bat Building and Tree
Inspection Report has been submitted in support of the application. These confirm that
there are no protected species present on site. The Council's Sustainability Officer has
confirmed that no objections are raised. However, given the tree loss which would occur a
range of ecological enhancements should be implemented to ensure that biodiversity
features and enhancement of opportunities for wildlife are provided. A condition to this
effect would therefore be attached should approval be granted.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The plans indicate that refuse storage facilities would be provided within an accessible
location. The proposed facilities are considered to be acceptable in the location shown and
full details would be required by way of condition should planning permission be granted.
Notably, neither the Council's Waste Manager or Highway Engineer have raised any
objections to the proposals. However, it should be noted that the school ultimately has
discretion over which waste management methods are used on site.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan requires development proposals to make the fullest
contribution possible to reducing carbon emissions. Major development schemes must be

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



accompanied by an energy assessment to demonstrate how a 35% target reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions will be achieved from 2013 Building Regulations, where feasible.

In accordance with this policy the applicant has submitted an Energy Statement to
demonstrate how the London Plan objectives will be met. In addition to energy efficient
building measures such as ensuring the building will be well insulated, use of high
efficiency boilers, energy efficient lighting, natural ventilation, etc, photovoltaic panels would
be provided to provide a portion of the site's energy needs through the use of a renewable
energy.

These measures would achieve a 36% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions above Part L
of the Building Regulations in compliance with London Plan requirements. The Council's
Sustainability Officer has notably raised no objections to the details submitted, subject to a
condition requiring further details of the photovoltaic panels.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

London Plan policy 5.13 states that development proposals should use sustainable urban
drainage systems (SuDs) unless there are good reasons for not doing so and that
developments should aim to acheive green-field run-off rates. Policy 5.15 goes on to
confirm that developments should also minimise the use of mains water by incorporating
water saving measures and equipment.

The site does not fall within a flood zone or critical drainage area. However, officers are
aware that the playing fields suffer from poor drainage and that properties in Eastcote Road
have experienced flooding in recent years. This has been confirmed verbally by the school
and is reflected in residents' comments on this application. Accordingly, a robust drainage
strategy is required.

In accordance with London Plan policy a Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy has
been provided. This makes a number of recommendations regarding potential sustainable
drainage measures would could be be incorporated including the provision of permeable
paving, below ground cellular storage and rainwater harvesting.

Following initial concerns raised by the Council's Flood and Water Management Officer
additional information has been provided to demonstrate that a suitable and feasible
drainage strategy could be provided on site. These fail to fully address the Flood and Water
Management Officers concerns and, accordingly, relevant conditions will be required.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Air quality

It is not considered that the proposed development would lead to such an increase in traffic
over and above its existing consented use that it would have a significant impact on local
air quality. Notably, officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have raised no
objections on these grounds.

Noise

This is an existing and established school with no current restrictions over use of its indoor
or outdoor facilities. The MUGA, in particular, would increase the intensity of use of the
north east side of the existing playing field. However, no floodlighting is proposed and, as
such, use of MUGA (and other outdoor space) would be restricted to reasonable daylight
hours only. Notably, whilst officers in the Council's Environmental Protection Unit have
noted the intensification of use, no objections have been raised in this regard. Furthermore,
subject to a condition to control noise from plant and machinery, it is not considered that
the proposed building would given rise to any significant unacceptable increase in noise

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



levels.

Overall, it is not considered that the proposed development would result in any significant
increase in noise levels such that refusal could be justified.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

Points (i) to (xii) raised by residents relate to traffic and parking issues. These have been
addressed in the body of the report.

Point (xiii) questions why ecology surveys were carried out prior to traffic surveys. The
Local Planning Authority has no control over when applicants/developers choose to
commission surveys. However, an array of initial surveys would need to be carried out at
early feasibility stage to ensure development is viable. It is likely the ecology surveys were
carried out as part of that process.

Points (xiv) to (xviii) raise concerns regarding drainage and flooding. These matters are
addressed in the body of the report.

Point (xvii) suggests the plans are inaccurate as they fail to show residential extensions to
properties in Eastcote Road. The CGls provided are indicative only.

Points (xix) and (xxvi) respectively raise concerns regarding overlooking and
overshadowing. These matters are addressed in the report.

Points (xx), (xxi) and (xxiii) raise concerns regarding trees and landscaping. These are
addressed in the report. A landscaping condition would be attached should approval be
granted to ensure appropriate planting is provided.

Point (xxii) suggests the existing hall is too small and a new one should be provided. The
adequacy of the existing and proposed facilities for the school's needs would be covered
by Education rather than Planning legislation. It is however understood that the proposals
have been developed in consultation with the school and, notably, no objections have been
received from the Council's Education Team or the school in this regard.

Point (xxiv) raises concern over floodlighting. No floodlighting is proposed as part of this
application.

Point (xxvii) raises concerns over noise. This is addressed in the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Local Plan states that: 'The Local Planning Authority will, where
appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open spaces, facilities to
support arts, culture and entertainment facilities through planning obligations in conjunction
with other development proposals.'

In this instance no off-site mitigation works are proposed. A requirement for Construction
Training and also for a Travel Plan can be secured by way of planning condition.

Notably, as the development is for educational use it would not necessitate a contribution
towards the Mayoral or Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable.
7.22 Other Issues

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed development is considered to fully comply with local, regional and national
planning polices relating to the provision of new and/or enhanced educational facilities.
Furthermore, the development would provide alternative sports provision through the
creation of a MUGA and indoor hall, and other enhancements including drainage
improvements to the playing field, which are considered sufficient to outweigh the loss
playing field. It is also considered that, on balance, the educational need for the
development outweighs any impact the development might have on sports provision.

It is not considered that the proposed development would result in an unacceptable impact
on the visual amenities of the school site or on the surrounding area. The proposal would
not have any significant detrimental impact on the amenities of the occupiers of
neighbouring residential properties and it is not considered that the development would lead
to such a significant increase in traffic and parking demand that refusal could be justified on
highway grounds.

The proposal is considered to comply with relevant Local Plan and London Plan policies
and, accordingly, approval is recommended, subject to referral of the scheme to the
Secretary of State if needed.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Policy Statement - Planning for Schools Development (DCLG, 15/08/11)
London Plan (2015)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

Contact Officer: Johanna Hart Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



v
.

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Warrender Primary School
Eastcote & East Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
4311/APP/2016/4295 1:1,500
Planning Committee: Date:

Major Page 48 February 2017

LONDON




Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address BERKELEY PARK APARTMENTS MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT
HARLINGTON
Development: Proposed change of use from apartment hotel (Use Class C1) to a homeless

persons hostel and associated external works

LBH Ref Nos: 31642/APP/2016/4411

Drawing Nos: 2016/D/204/P/004 Rev A
2016/D/204/P/002 Rev A
2016/D/204/P/003 Rev A
2016/D/204/P/006 Rev A
2016/D/204/P/007 Rev A
2016/D/204/P008
2016/D/204/P/005
2016/D/204/P/001
Transport Statement 3249 _005_R01 v2

Date Plans Received: 08/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 07/12/2016
Date Application Valid: 08/12/2016 12/12/2016
19/01/2017

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks consent for the proposed Change of Use from C1 (APARTMENT
HOTEL) to SUI-GENERIS Homeless persons hostel use and associated external works
for the Berkeley Park Apartments on Marlborough Crescent, just behind the Bath Road in
Harlington.

The existing building has been designed as an apartment hotel which provides temporary
accommodation, as such the proposed use of the site to provide temporary
accommodation for homeless persons is considered to be appropriate and acceptable.
No alterations are proposed to the external appearance of the building or landscaping.
One of the existing car parking spaces will be reallocated for motorcycle parking as
requested by the Councils Highways Engineer.

No objections have been raised on highways grounds and a condition is recommended to
ensure the proposal meets Secure by Design standards.

The proposed Change of Use is therefore considered to accord with policies contained
within the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (November 2012), the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), London Plan (March 2016)
and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 CcOM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

2016/D/204/P/001

2016/D/204/P/002 Rev A

2016/D/204/P/003 Rev A

2016/D/204/P/004 Rev A

2016/D/204/P/005

2016/D/204/P/006 Rev A

2016/D/204/P/007 Rev A; and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

Design and Access Statement 2016/D204/P008

Transport Statement 3249 005 RO01 v2

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of Policies contained within
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 COM31 Secured by Design

The building(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No building shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2016) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

5 NONSC Non Standard Condition

Notwithstanding the submitted information, prior to first occupation a Site Supervision
Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Thereafter, the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the use hereby
permitted being commenced, and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in
accordance with Policy OE1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

6 NONSC Non Standard Condition

The parking areas shown on the approved plans shall be provided before first occupation,
and shall be allocated for the sole use of the occupants prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter be permanently retained and used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(ii) Shopmobility schemes

(iif) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

LPP 3.17 (2016) Health and social care facilities

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



LPP 8.2 (2016) Planning obligations

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

T2 Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is known as Berkeley Park, located on Marlborough Crescent, just behind the Bath
Road in Harlington. The site currently contains three 3 storey, pitched and hipped roofed
brick built buildings. The blocks are currently occupied by serviced apartments. There are
28 existing parking spaces, 5 of these are located outside the gates for visitors and there
are 3 disabled parking bays on site.

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) score of 3, and is situated within
a Developed Area whilst land to the north of the site is allocated as green belt as
designated by the policies contained within the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The current use of the site is of fully serviced apartments or apartment hotel (Use Class
C1) providing 50 fully furnished studios or one bedroom apartments. The current GIA of the
serviced apartments comprise of 2525m2. The proposal is to continue using the
apartments as designed but specifically for temporary accommodation for homeless
persons (Use Class Sui Generis). The proposed scheme involves some minor changes
internally to accommodate a small number of larger units. The proposed change of use will
be from a 50 Services Apartments into 43 units (1, 2 and 3 bedroom apartments) with no
change to the GIA.

No alterations are proposed to the external appearance of the building or landscaping. One

of the existing car parking spaces will be reallocated for motorcycle parking as requested
by the Councils Highways Engineer.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History

Consent was granted on 02/04/2001 for the 'ERECTION OF 43 APARTMENTS IN FOUR
BLOCKS TOGETHER WITH ACCESS ROAD, CAR PARKING AND LANDSCAPING
WORKS'.

Since that time there have been a number of applications to create small extensions to the
development leading to an increase in the number of apartments to 50. There have been
no applications submitted since the development was constructed to alter the use of the
site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (March 2016)

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

Part 2 Policies:
AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(i) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity
BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.
EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

LPP 3.17 (2016) Health and social care facilities
LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking
LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character
LPP 8.2 (2016) Planning obligations

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

R16 Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

SPD-NO Noise Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2006

SPD-PO Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008
SPG-AQ Air Quality Supplementary Planning Guidance, adopted May 2002

T2 Location of tourist accommodation and conference facilities

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 13th January 2017

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent out to circa 110 local properties and occupiers on the 21.12.17 and
three site notices were posted in the immediate vicinity of the site. 5 letters of objection to the
proposed change of use have been received that can be summarised to raise the following points:

- Inappropriate location in a small village for such a hostel

- Increase in crime/trespassing onto adjacent property/anti social behaviour

- Detrimental impact on residential amenity

- Inappropriate display of the planning notice

- Detrimental impact on the character of the area

- Extra car traffic and noise

- Devaluation of properties

Case Officer's comments:

The principle of the change of use, security, impact on residential amenity, impact on the character
of the area and traffic issues are discussed within the body of this report. The impact of the
development on property values is not a material planning consideration in this case and is not
therefore considered. Site notices have been displayed correctly and the statutory consultation
process has been adhered to.

SECURE BY DESIGN OFFICER

As this application seeks to develop 90 rooms for the homeless, | also note that a short distance
away, it has been indicated that The Former Douglas Webb Section site is seeking to develop a
possible similar type of premises. | have concerns about the impact of this on the local area. As
within the local area, there is a full range of crime types ranging from theft from motor vehicle, local
hotel crime and burglary.

| would say that at a minimum, the development has a Secured by Design condition imposed.
Security at this site will be an imperative and in the absence of a robust security strategy.

Case Officer's comment:

An appropriate Secure by Design condition is recommended to be attached to any grant of planning
consent for the proposed change of use.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



Internal Consultees

WASTE STRATEGY OFFICER
The site currently receives a waste collection from a private sector company. The space currently
allocated for waste storage can be allocated for the same purpose in the new site operation.

HIGHWAYS

Current use of the site is serviced apartments/apartment hotel providing 50 fully furnished studios or
1 bed apartments. Proposed use is for temporary accommodation for homeless persons
comprising 43 units of 2 and 3 bedroom apartments for tenants who will be rehoused when suitable
accommodation is found. There is no change in the GIA.

A transport statement has been provided with the application confirming a reduction in the vehicular
trips to the site and a much lower demand for on site parking. As such the existing parking provision
of 28 is acceptable, 5 of these are located outside the gates for visitors. 3 disabled bays have been
provided. One of the parking spaces should be used/marked for motorcycle parking.

Cycle parking, minimum 10 spaces, ought to be provided in a covered and secure location. Refuse
will be collected from within the site as is the current arrangement. Bin locations should be shown
on plans, and covered and secure.

Marlborough Crescent is not an adopted highway but has waiting restrictions in place. Subject to
amendments being carried out as mentioned above no objections would be raised on highway
grounds.

Case Officer's comments:
The Applicant has provided an amended layout plan to show the information required (plan reference
2016/D/204/P/002 Rev A).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

As this was a hotel it is expected there would be high level sound insulation already in place, and
having reviewed the application it appears there is no information on the level of existing sound
insulation and ventilation that will be provided. As such we would expect them to demonstrate
before occupation that internal noise levels of 35dB LAeq, 16 hours (07:00-2300) are being achieved
for living rooms and bedrooms for daytime and LAeq,30dB, 8 hours(23:00 -07:00 are being achieved
in bedrooms for night time. Alternative mechanical ventilation will need to be provided as the
windows will have to be kept closed due to high external noise levels.

Case Officer's comments:
The Applicant has provided the following response:

For clarity all the blocks are traditional construction comprising brick/cavity/block dab and plaster
finish with concrete floors and tiled pitched roof. Internal party walls, between units are either
250mm, 300mm cavity walls or solid 215 mm block walls. All the habitable rooms have upvc double
glazed windows with secondary glazing. In addition all the habitable rooms have acoustic
background ventilation units fixed to the external walls or through the roof.

All the doors to habitable rooms are 44 mm thick with self closing closures. The party floors are
150mm thick concrete planks finishes with resilient layer and 75 mm screed and soffit lined with
60mm insulation and plasterboard with skim finish. All the blocks appear to be well constructed. The
current use is designed to accommodates families with children and the proposed use is likewise to
accommodate families moving on to permanent homes after temporary stay.

Based on the construction details described above | believe the buildings are well insulated as being

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



nearer to the airport and the sound reduction values would meet standards set for the proposed use.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT 2nd comments:
Based on the information provided, a noise condition would not be necessary as the existing noise
mitigation measures are sufficient.

ACCESS OFFICER
Having reviewed the supporting Design & Access Statement, | conclude that the accessibility
measures proposed are commensurate with a proposal of this type.

Conclusion: acceptable
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The existing building has been designed as an apartment hotel which provides temporary
accommodation, as such the proposed use of the site to provide temporary
accommodation for homeless persons is considered to be acceptable.

Policy T2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the Local Planning Authority will encourage the provision of a range of
accommodation on sites that are easily accessible from Heathrow Airport, underground
and railway stations and from the main road network provided the development does not
conflict with the aim to maintain and improve the environment. Given that the proposed
scheme is an alternative type accommodation and no external alterations are proposed the
scheme is deemed to accord with Policy T2.

The proposed Change of Use from C1 to Sui Generis is therefore considered to accord

with policies contained within the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies

(November 2012), the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November

2012), London Plan (March 2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).
7.02 Density of the proposed development

The London Plan density matrix and HDAS density guidelines relate specifically to
residential developments. As such, the density of Sui Generis temporary housing schemes
needs to be assessed on a case by case basis taking into account issues such as urban
design, landscaping, parking and traffic impact. These issues are all discussed later in the
report.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site does not fall within close proximity to any listed buildings, conservation areas, or
areas of special local character.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to the proposed change of use as no external changes are proposed to the
building.

7.05 Impact on the green belt
The application site lies directly to the south of an area of land allocated as green belt.
However there are no external alterations proposed to the buildings and as such the impact

of the change of use on the adjacent green belt is deemed minimal and acceptable.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

No alterations are proposed to the external appearance of the building, parking provision or
landscaping.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

No external alterations are proposed to the existing buildings. Concerns have been raised

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

by some local residents regarding potential detrimental impacts on residential amenity as a
result of the proposed change of use. The predominant concern relates to an increase in
crime. The Metropolitan Police Designing out Crime Officer has been consulted on the
proposals and has raised no objections subject to the inclusion of a Secure by Design
condition. This condition is therefore recommended to be attached to any grant of planning
consent for the change of use.

A further condition which has successfully been used to mitigate harm caused by HMO
type changes of use (a site supervision management plan) is also proposed to ensure
neighbour impacts ar minimised.

Living conditions for future occupiers

The NPPF, London Plan and Local Policies on living conditions for new developments
relate specifically to residential developments (Use Class C3). As such, the living
conditions of Sui Generis temporary housing schemes needs to be assessed on a case by
case basis.

The existing building has been designed as an apartment hotel which provides temporary
accommodation, as such the proposed use of the site to provide temporary
accommodation for homeless persons is considered to be appropriate and acceptable.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Highways Engineer has reviewed the submitted proposals and raised no
objections to the development, noting that the existing parking provision is acceptable and
traffic would be reduced as a result of the change of use.

Urban design, access and security

No alterations are proposed to the external appearance of the building or landscaping. As
discussed above a Secure by Design condition is recommended.
Disabled access

The existing building has been designed as an apartment hotel which provides temporary
accommodation, as such the proposed use of the site to provide temporary
accommodation for homeless persons is considered to be appropriate and acceptable.

The Council's Access Officer was consulted as part of the application process and no
objections have been received.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposed change of use is to provide temporary accommodation for homeless
persons, as such the provision of affordable and special needs housing is not applicable to
this application.

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

No alterations are proposed to the existing landscaping.
Sustainable waste management

The existing facilities will be utilised for waste management. The Council's Waste
Management Officer has been consulted as part of the application process and raised no
objections to the change of use.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this change of use application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposals would not result in any significant change to the overall area of hardstanding
on the site and therefore there would be no significant implications for flood risk.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit have been consulted as part of the proposals
and have requested a condition to protect future residents from external noise. The
applicant has provided a response that details the build quality and design of the existing
building, including the existing acoustic background ventilation units. This information has
been passed to the Councils Environmental Protection Unit and no objections have been
received.

Comments on Public Consultations

The principle of the change of use, security, impact on residential amenity, impact on the
character of the area and traffic issues are discussed within the body of this report. The
impact of the development on property values is not a material planning consideration in
this case and is not therefore considered. Site notices have been displayed correctly and
the statutory consultation process has been adhered to.

Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

No enforcement issues are raised by this development.
Other Issues

There are no other planning issues raised by this development.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks consent for the proposed Change of Use from C1 (APARTMENT
HOTEL) to SUI-GENERIS Homeless persons hostel use and associated external works for
the Berkeley Park Apartments on Marlborough Crescent, just behind the Bath Road in
Harlington.

The existing building has been designed as an apartment hotel which provides temporary
accommodation, as such the proposed use of the site to provide temporary
accommodation for homeless persons is considered to be appropriate and acceptable. No
alterations are proposed to the external appearance of the building or landscaping. One of
the car parking spaces will be reallocated for motorcycle parking as requested by the
Councils Highways Engineer.

No objections have been raised on highways grounds and a condition is recommended to
ensure the proposal meets Secure by Design standards.

The proposed Change of Use is therefore considered to accord with policies contained
within the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (November 2012), the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), London Plan (March 2016) and
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (March 2016)

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



Contact Officer: Ed Laughton Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



[isheltey

i
iz

24.7m,

------------------ ‘

MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT

__________

El Sub Sta

s 4

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.
© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Site Address:
Berkeley Apartments
Heathrow Village
Planning Application Ref: Scale:
31642/APP/2016/4411 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 61 February 2017

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAREFIELD PLACE THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Section 73 application to vary condition 2 (drawing nos.) for a Minor Material
Amendment (MMA) to planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649
(Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing
Grade |l listed building and erection of a replacement extension building to
provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement
car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces
and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main
vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with
ancillary outbuildings) comprising changes to basement layout.

LBH Ref Nos: 12571/APP/2016/3950

Drawing Nos: 2009-PL-03 (Revised Basement Plan Sheet 2)
2009-PL-02 (Revised Basement Plan Sheet 1)
2009-PL-04 (Revised Basement Plan Sheet 3)
182-PL-2022-01 Proposed Second Floor Plan 2 of 2
182-PL-220-03 Ground Floor Alterations Plar
182-PL-221-03 First Floor Alterations Plar
182-PL-222-03 Second Floor Alterations Plar
182-PL-223-03 Roof Alterations Plar
182-PL-229-03 Basement Alterations Plan
182-PL-250-01-Proposed Out Buildings 1 of 2
182-PL-251-01-Proposed Out Buildings 2 of 2
182-PL-320-02 Alterations Elevation North East 1 of 2
182-PL-321-02 Alterations Elevation North East 2 of 2
Archaeological DBA
Contamination DBA
Energy Statement ES1 Rev 1
FRA Final 1 with Appendices
Great Crested Newt Survey Mitigation Report ER ST
Heritage Statement_PART 1
Heritage Statement_PART 2
Landscape Masterplan Statement Part |
Landscape Masterplan Statement Part |
Phase 1 Habitat Assessment Revised
182-PL-300-02 Proposed Elevations AB
182-PL-301-02 Proposed Elevations CD
182-PL-302-01 Proposed Elevations EF
182-PL-400-01 Proposed Site Sections
182-PL-1001-02 Proposed Site Plan
182-PL-2001-01 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 1 of z
182-PL-2002-01 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 2 of Z
182-PL-2011-01 Proposed First Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2012-01 Proposed First Floor Plan 2 of 2
182-PL-2021-01 Proposed Second Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-322-02 Alterations Elevation South West 1 of &
182-PL-323-02 Alterations Elevation South West 2 of &
182-PL-327-02 Alterations Elevation South West 3 of &

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



182-PL-324-02 Alterations Elevation South Eas
182-PL-325-02 Alterations Elevation North West 1 of Z
182-PL-326-02 Alterations Elevation North West 2 of Z
182-PL-2031-02 Proposed Roof Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2032-02 Proposed Roof Plan 2 of 2

SAP Report Refurbishment

SAP Report New Build Part 1

SAP Report New Build Part 2

D&A Accessibility Addendum

Supplemental Waste Response Statement

SPS APPDX 3 Landscape Addendum Report

Tree Survey

Transport Assessment

SPS APPDX 5 Visibility Splay Onto The Drive rev t
Flood Risk Addendum Report

Method Statements for Works to Listed Building
Ecological Enhancements Addendum TMA
AMENDED SAP CALCS 09-15-5418¢

Revised Energy Statement 09-15-54188 ES2

182- DAS sections 4-8

Supplemental Planning Statement

Planning Statement Part 2

Planning Statement Part 1

182-PL-010-03-Site Location Plan

182- DAS sections 1-3

Design and Access Statement Addendum

Date Plans Received: 26/10/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 04/11/2016
1. SUMMARY

The original planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 (Demolition of existing
modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed building and erection of
a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with
associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary
outbuildings) was granted on the 27th January 2016.

This application seeks a Minor Material Amendment (MMA) to change the basement layout
resulting in a reduction of floor area overall. However, it would not change the external
appearance of the original development. Despite the smaller basement, the level of car,
motorcycle, and bicycle parking would remain unchanged from the original scheme. The
Council's Highway Engineer raises no objection.

The Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has been consulted to consider the
impact of the proposed change on the Listed Building and archaeology of the site. No
objection has been raised as the proposed change is not considered to significantly affect
archaeology or the heritage value of the Listed Building.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



Overall, the development is considered to remain good quality and would be acceptable,
subject to the conditions and the satisfactory completion of a section 106 Legal
Agreement as per the original application.

2. RECOMMENDATION

The proposed Minor Material Amendment (MMA) is considered to be acceptable in
planning policy terms. Therefore, this application has been recommended for
approval, subject to a legal agreement and appropriate conditions.

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COoM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans referenced below and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence:

182-PL-300-02 Proposed Elevations AB
182-PL-301-02 Proposed Elevations CD
182-PL-302-01 Proposed Elevations EF
182-PL-400-01 Proposed Site Sections
182-PL-1001-02 Proposed Site Plan

182-PL-2001-01 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2002-01 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 2 of 2
182-PL-2011-01 Proposed First Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2012-01 Proposed First Floor Plan 2 of 2
182-PL-2021-01 Proposed Second Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2022-01 Proposed Second Floor Plan 2 of 2
2009-PL-02 (Revised Basement Plan Sheet 1)
2009-PL-03 (Revised Basement Plan Sheet 2)
2009-PL-04 (Revised Basement Plan Sheet 3)
182-PL-220-03 Ground Floor Alterations Plan
182-PL-221-03 First Floor Alterations Plan
182-PL-222-03 Second Floor Alterations Plan
182-PL-223-03 Roof Alterations Plan

182-PL-229-03 Basement Alterations Plan
182-PL-250-01-Proposed Out Buildings 1 of 2
182-PL-251-01-Proposed Out Buildings 2 of 2
182-PL-320-02 Alterations Elevation North East 1 of 2
182-PL-321-02 Alterations Elevation North East 2 of 2
182-PL-322-02 Alterations Elevation South West 1 of 3
182-PL-323-02 Alterations Elevation South West 2 of 3
182-PL-327-02 Alterations Elevation South West 3 of 3
182-PL-324-02 Alterations Elevation South East
182-PL-325-02 Alterations Elevation North West 1 of 2
182-PL-326-02 Alterations Elevation North West 2 of 2
182-PL-2031-02 Proposed Roof Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2032-02 Proposed Roof Plan 2 of 2

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

ENERGY STATEMENT ES1 Rev 1 received 1st October 2015 together with
recommendations in revised Energy Statement 09-15-54188 ES2 received 21st
December 2015 with regards to energy efficiency measures solely.

- Measures detailed in the Heritage Statement received 1st October 2015 and 'Methods
Statements for Works to Listed Building document' received 23rd December 2015.

Thereafter the development shall be retained/ maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

4 OM19 Construction Management Plan

The development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the details (Demolition
and Construction  Management Plan) approved under application ref.
12571/APP/2016/3054 dated 24-10-16. The approved details shall be implemented and
maintained throughout the duration of the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012).

5 COM®6 Levels

The development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the details (Ground
Levels) approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2647 dated 12-01-17.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012).

6 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

7 RES8 Tree Protection

The development shall be implemented and carried out in complete accordance with the
details (Tree Protection) approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/3054 dated 24-
10-16 and the fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed. The
area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of
the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012)

8 RES9 Landscaping (including for the refuse storage areas)

Prior to first occupation of the development, the landscaping scheme as approved under
application ref. 12571/APP/2016/3054 dated 24-10-16 shall be implemented and
completed in full accordance with the approved details and shall be retained/maintained in
perpetuity.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and contributes to a number of objectives in compliance with policies BE13
and BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012), and policy
5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2016).

9 NONSC Scheme for Ecological Enhancement

Prior to first occupation of the development, the ecological enhancement scheme as
approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2343 dated 30-08-16 shall be
implemented and completed in full accordance with the approved details and shall be
retained and maintained in perpetuity as agreed.

REASON

To ensure the development contributes to ecological enhancement in accordance with
policy EM7 in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 Strategic Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.28 of
the London Plan (2016); and National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



10 NONSC Inclusion of living walls/roofs

Prior to first occupation of the development, the living roofs as approved under application
ref. 12571/APP/2016/2647 dated 12-01-17 shall be implemented and completed in full
accordance with the agreed details. Thereafter, the living roofs shall be retained and
maintained in perpetuity.

REASON: To ensure the development contributes to a number of objectives in
compliance with policy 5.11 of the London Plan (2016); and the National Planning Policy
Framework (2012).

11 NONSC External Lighting

Prior to first occupation of the development, details of external lighting shall be submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such lighting details as agreed
shall be provided prior to first occupation of the development and shall remain in
perpetuity.

REASON

To safeguard the ecological interest of the site and to ensure highway safety in
accordance with policies 6.3 and 7.19 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

12 COM15 Sustainable Water Management

Prior to first occupation of the development, the sustainable water management scheme
as approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2927 dated 12-01-17 shall be
implemented and completed in full accordance with the agreed details. Thereafter, the
approved details as set out in the scheme shall be retained and maintained in perpetuity
as agreed.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding, conserves water supplies, and suitable infrastructure is in
place to support and improve water quality in accordance with policy EM6 Flood Risk
Management in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 Strategic Policies (Nov 2012); policies
5.12, 5.13, 5.14, and 5.15 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning Policy
Framework (2012).

13 COM30 Soil Testing for Contamination

Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils shall
be independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for
gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON: To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subject to any risks
from soil contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 5.21 of the London Plan (2016); and National
Planning Policy Framework (2012).

14 NONSC EA Condition 1

If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local
planning authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a remediation
strategy to the local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall
be dealt with and obtained written approval from the local planning authority. The

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved.

REASON

To ensure protection of controlled waters in accordance with policy OE8 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and policy 5.12 of the London
Plan (2016) .

15 NONSC GLAAS - Archaeological

For land that is included within the stage 1 WSI as approved under application ref.
12571/APP/2016/2343 dated 30-08-16, no demolition or development shall take place
other than in accordance with this approved WSI. For heritage assets of archaeological
interest that have been identified by the stage 1 WSI (approved under application ref.
12571/APP/2016/2343 dated 30-08-16) then for those parts of the site which have
archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the stage 2 WSI, no
demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed stage 2
WSI which shall include:

A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and
methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent
person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works.

B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis,
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the condition
shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the
programme set out in the stage 2 WSI.

REASON

To safeguard the potential archaeological interest of the site in accordance with policies
BE1 and BE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Polices (Nov 2012); policy
7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

16 NONSC Removal of existing hardstanding

Prior to first occupation of the development, all existing hardstanding which was for staff
parking associated with the previous office use accessed from the northern entrance shall
be removed as illustrated on drawing No. 182-PL-1001-02 Proposed Site Plan.

Reason:

To reduce the number of car parking spaces in accordance with sustainable transport
objectives as described in chapter 6 (policy 6.13) of the London Plan (2016); the design
objectives as described in chapter 7 of the London Plan (2016); and the National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

17 NONSC Cycle Storage

Prior to first occupation of the development, a scheme shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority with details to provide a total of 50 secure cycle
parking spaces or with details of such a combination of cycle spaces and innovative
measures that meet the objectives of the London Plan standards. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority the approved details shall be
implemented as approved and thereafter be permanently retained.

REASON

To ensure that the development provides a quantum of cycle parking in accordance with
policy 6.9 of the London Plan (2016).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



18 RES16 Car Parking

Prior to first occupation of the development, 50 car parking spaces (inclusive of 5 disabled
bays, 10 electric charging bays with a further 10 bays with passive provision) shall have
been provided. Thereafter the parking bays/areas shall be permanently retained and used
for no other purpose than the parking of motor vehicles associated with the consented
residential units at the site.

REASON

To ensure that the vehicular access, servicing and parking areas are satisfactorily laid out
on site and meet the objectives of policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2
Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

19 NONSC Details of gate

Prior to first occupation of the development, the pedestrian/vehicular gates/barriers into
the site as approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2647 dated 12-01-17 shall be
implemented and completed in full accordance with the agreed details. Thereafter, the
gates/barriers shall be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

REASON
In order to ensure that the development achieves an appropriate level of accessibility in
accordance with policy 3.8 of the London Plan (2016) and the HDAS -Accessible
Hillingdon.

20 NONSC Details of Access Road

Prior to first occupation of the development, the main access road into the site as
approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2647 dated 12-01-17 shall be
implemented and completed in full accordance with the agreed details. Thereafter, the
access road shall be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

REASON

To provide adequate access and safeguard highway safety in accordance with policy
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012) and policy 6.3 of
the London Plan (2016).

21 COoM7 Refuse Management Plan

Prior to first occupation of the development, the refuse hold at basement level and main
refuse store shall be provided as shown on drawing Nos. 182-PL-2093 Rev 01, and 182-
PL-250 Rev 01, in accordance with the Supplemental Planning Statement and 'Response
to comments from Waste Development Manager' document, dated November 2015.
Thereafter these arrangements shall remain in place in perpetuity.

REASON

In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012) and policy 5.17 of the
London Plan (2016).

22 MCD10 Refuse Facilities

Prior to first occupation of the development, the refuse facilities for the site as approved
under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2647 dated 12-01-17 shall be implemented and
completed in full accordance with the agreed details. Thereafter, the refuse facilities shall
be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012) and policy 5.17 of the
London Plan (2016).

23 RES18 Accessible Homes/Wheelchair Units

Three of the residential dwellings within the replacement extension shall be constructed to
be wheelchair adaptable meeting the standards for Category 3 M4(3) dwellings, with all
remaining units excluding the units within the original listed building being accessible and
adaptable meeting the standards for Category 2 M4(2), as set out in Approved Document
M to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015 edition. All such provisions shall remain in place
in perpetuity.

REASON

To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock is achieved and maintained which
meet the needs of disabled and elderly people in accordance with policy 3.1, 3.8, and 7.2
of the London Plan (2016) and the National Planning Policy Framework (2012).

24 NONSC Minimising Water Usage

No part of the residential development hereby approved shall be occupied until evidence
has been submitted to the council confirming that the development has achieved not less
than the internal water usage (WAT1) standards equivalent to Code for Sustainable
Homes level 4 targets. Evidence requirements are detailed in the "Schedule of evidence
required for Post Construction Stage from WAT1 of the Code for Sustainable Homes
Technical Guide. Evidence must demonstrate an internal water usage rates of 105l/p/day
which must be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, unless
otherwise agreed in writing.

REASON
In the interests of sustainability in accordance with policy 5.3 (Sustainable Design &
Construction) of the London Plan (2016).

25 NONSC Overlooking

Prior to first occupation of the development, the privacy screens for the development as
approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2897 shall be implemented and
completed in full accordance with the agreed details. Thereafter, the privacy screens shall
be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of future occupiers in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved UDP Policies (Nov 2012).

26 NONSC Outdoor Amenity Areas

Prior to occupation of the relevant dwelling, each dwelling shall be provided with outdoor
amenity areas for future use of their residents as hereby approved. Thereafter, the
amenity areas shall so be retained in perpetuity.

REASON

To ensure the continued availability of external amenity space for residents of the
development, in the interests of their amenity and the character of the area in accordance
with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) and policy 7.1 of the London Plan (2016).

27 NONSC Completion of works to the Listed Building

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



Prior to the first occupation of the residential development hereby approved, works to
repair and convert the listed building are to be completed.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

28 NONSC Details of Finish

Prior to first occupation of the development, the details (external materials/details of finish)
for the development as approved under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2897 shall be
implemented and completed in full accordance with the agreed details. Thereafter, the
approved details shall be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

29 NONSC Gym and Pool for Residents only

The gymnasium and pool at basement level hereby approved shall be used for residents
of the development only and shall not operate commercially or be open for public use.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of occupiers of the development to ensure there is
appropriate transport arrangements in accordance with policies 6.3 and 6.13 of the
London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2016) and national guidance.

AM13 AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



AM14
AM15
AM2

AM7
AM8

BE10
BE11
BE12

BE13
BE15
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BEZ23
BE24

BE38

BE39
BE8
BE9
EC2
EC3

EC4

EC5
EC6
EM2
EM6
H11
H4
H6

H8

H9

R16

OE1
HDAS-LAY

LPP 2.6

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

Proposals for the demolition of statutory listed buildings
Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily
listed buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders
Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions
Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments
Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation
importance

Monitoring of existing sites of nature conservation importance and
identification of new sites

Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats
Retention of wildlife habitats on derelict or vacant land

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
(2012) Flood Risk Management

Provision of affordable housing

Mix of housing units

Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential
development.

Change of use from non-residential to residential

Provision for people with disabilities in new residential developments
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2016) Outer London: vision and strategy

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



LPP 2.8
LPP 2.18

LPP 3.1
LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.6

LPP 3.8
LPP 3.9
LPP 3.10
LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 3.13
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.4
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.8
LPP 5.9
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.18
LPP 5.21
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5

LPP 6.9
LPP 6.11
LPP 6.12
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.9
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

(2016) Outer London: Transport

(2016) Green Infrastructure: the multi functional network of open and
green spaces

(2016) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Children and young people's play and informal recreation
facilities

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2016) Definition of affordable housing

(2016) Affordable housing targets

(2016) Negotiating affordable housing on individual private residentic
and mixed-use schemes

(2016) Affordable housing thresholds

(2016) Climate Change Mitigation

(2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Retrofitting

(2016) Renewable energy

(2016) Innovative energy technologies

(2016) Overheating and cooling

(2016) Urban Greening

(2016) Green roofs and development site environs

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

(2016) Waste capacity

(2016) Construction, excavation and demolition waste

(2016) Contaminated land

(2016) Strategic Approach

(2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
(2016) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

(2016) Cycling

(2016) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion
(2016) Road Network Capacity
(2016) Parking
(2016) Lifetime Neighbourhoods
(2016) An inclusive environment
(2016) Designing out crime
(2016) Local character
(2016) Public realm
(2016) Architecture
(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Heritage-led regeneration

(2016) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2016) Improving air quality

(2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

LPP 7.18 (2016) Protecting open space and addressing deficiency

LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands

LPP 8.1 (2016) Implementation

LPP 8.2 (2016) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy

LPP 8.4 (2016) Monitoring and review

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies (Nov 2012)), then London Plan Policies. On the 8th
November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan:
Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old
Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

4 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

5 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

6

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London Borough
of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating, electrical
installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon Education and
Business Partnership. Please contact: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon
Training Ltd: contact details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The
Runway, South  Ruislip, HA4 6SE Tel: 01895 671 976 email:
petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk.

7 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

8 121 Street Naming and Numbering

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8
TUW (Tel. 01895 250557).

9 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

10 145 Discharge of Conditions

Your attention is drawn to the pre-commencement conditions which must be discharged
prior to the commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning control should you
commence these works prior to the discharge of this/these condition(s). The Council may
consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of this condition(s). For further
information and advice contact - Planning & Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

1 148 Refuse/Storage Areas

The proposed refuse and recycling storage areas meet the requirements of the Council's
amenity and accessibility standards only. The proposed storage area must also comply

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



with Part H of the Building Regulations. Should design amendments be required to comply
with Building Regulations, these should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for
approval. For further information and advice contact - Planning & Community Services,
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250400).

12

The Council's Waste Service should be consulted about refuse storage and collection
arrangements. For further information and advice, contact - the Waste Service Manager,
Central Depot - Block A, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB8 3EU (Tel. 01895 277505 / 506).

13

The applicant is advised that the detailed design of the underground car park must be
undertaken with the input of fully qualified Structural and Highways Engineers.

14

You are advised that the Council is in the process of introducing no right turns from Harvil
Road into 'The Drive' and into Highfield Drive during 7.00 am to 10.00 am. For further
details please consult the Council's Highway Team.

15

Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a suitably
qualified archaeological practice in accordance with English Heritage Greater London
Archaeology guidelines. They must be approved by the planning authority before any on-
site development related activity occurs. Condition 15 is exempt from deemed discharge
under schedule 6 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure)(England) Order 2015.

16

Unless specified on the approved drawings, the Local Planning Authority's agreement
must be sought for the opening up of any part of the interior of the building.

17

This permission is liable for a contribution under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
and a separate CIL liability notice will be provided for your consideration.

18

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE. Building
Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel. 01895
250804).

19

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted for their advice
when importing soil to the site. (Condition No. 14)

20
You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any
difficulty in carrying out the works other than within the normal working hours set out in the
conditions, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises. For
further information and advice, contact the Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155).

21 147A Damage to Verge - For Private Roads:

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a private road and
where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads. The applicant
may be required to make good any damage caused.

22 162 Potential Bird Hazards from Buildings

The applicant is advised that any flat/shallow pitched or green roof on buildings have the
potential to attract gulls for nesting, roosting and loafing and loafing purposes. The
owners/occupiers of the building must ensure that all flat/shallow pitched roofs be
constructed to allow access to all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs
ladders or similar.

The owner/occupier must not allow gulls, to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks
must be made weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the breeding season.
Outside of the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked
regularly to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof. Any gulls found nesting, roosting or
loafing must be dispersed by the owner/occupier when detected or when requested by
BAA Airside Operations staff. In some instances it may be necessary to contact BAA
Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal takes place. The contact would be Gary
Hudson, The Development Assurance Deliverer for Heathrow Airport on 020 8745 6459.

The owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof. The breeding
season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier must obtain the
appropriate licences where applicable from Natural England before the removal of nests
and eggs. For further information please see the attached Advice Note 8 - 'Potential Bird
Hazards From Building Design'.

23 ITO5 Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981: Note that it is an offence under this act to disturb
roosting bats, nesting birds or any other protected species. Therefore, it is advisable to
consult your tree surgeon / consultant to agree an acceptable time for carrying out the
approved works.

You are also advised that the submitted Ecological Report: Great Crested Newt Surveys
and Mitigation Strategy, by TMA refers to the proposed mitigation strategy which is likely to
require prior approval from Natural England.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site known as Harefield Place measures approximately 3.69 hectares and comprises
office accommodation with associated parking and landscaped grounds. The land falls
dramatically away from the existing buildings to the south west and rises up to a plateau to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



the north east, beyond the main front of the building. There are some remnants of early
landscaping remaining such as a large informal pond located to the east of the house.

The original house is grade Il listed and dates from the late 18th century. It comprises a
building of 2 storeys, an attic plus basement. The centre block is 8 windows wide, with 3
windows wide projecting end pavilions. It is constructed of stock brick with a stone cornice
and stone-coped parapet concealing hipped slate roofs with a modern cupola. There are
gauged, near-flat brick arches to the sash windows (all modern) with glazing bars and a
central Doric porch. Below this is a two leaf, 6-panel double door with elliptical patterned
fanlight over. The garden front has a 7-window centre block with stepped, set-back side
wings of 2 and 3 bays and stone pilasters to the corners. There is a segmental one-storey
bow to the right of centre and a number of dormers to the roof.

The grade Il listed building was originally known as Harefield Lodge and was built in
1785/86 by Architect Henry Couchman for Sir Rodger Newdigate. It was significantly
extended around 1805 by Jane Parker and again in the early 20th Century. In 1935
Harefield Place was acquired by Middlesex County Council for use as an annexe to
Hillingdon County Hospital. It was named the Harefield Country Hospital and had 51 beds
and 12 cots. In 1958, the old stable was demolished because of its dangerous condition
and its site made into a car park. At this time, the driveway was also resurfaced. The
Hospital closed in 1965 but before this the wards were temporarily converted to provide
accommodation for nursing staff from Hillingdon Hospital.

The building was vacant between 1965 and 1978 and as a result fell into a dilapidated
condition. In 1981 consent for its change of use to office and for the presently existing side
extension was granted and subsequently constructed. From 1991 the building was used by
Blockbusters as their headquarters. The building has been partially vacant since 2004 and
fully vacant for over two years since Blockbuster went into administration in December
2012, consequently its condition has deteriorated rapidly over the last few years.

The site is located on The Drive, a private road, approximately half a mile north of the A40
motorway, one mile from Ickenham Village Centre and situated within the Parish of
Harefield which is part of Uxbridge District. 'The Drive' which delineates the eastern
boundary of the site comprises of mainly two storey-detached houses which are of mixed
architectural style and quality set in medium to large plots. To the north of the site there is
open land and to the south and south west is Ickenham Golf Course.

The whole of the site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt, a Nature Conservation
Site of Borough Grade Il or Local Importance and the Colne Valley Park. At present the
grounds are unmaintained and overgrown. The existing site benefits from 96 car parking
spaces and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1a, on a scale of 1 to 6,
where 1 represents the lowest level of public accessibility. The site is covered by Tree
Preservation Order No. 236 and it is also within an Archaeological Priority Zone as
designated within the emerging Local Plan Part 2.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal relates to a Section 73 application to vary condition 2 (drawing nos.) for a
Minor Material Amendment (MMA) to planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649
(Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed
building and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained
apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking,
private and communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing
access with ancillary outbuildings) comprising changes to the basement layout.

Therefore, the only material change to the scheme relates to the basement. The changes
are as follows:

1. Reduction of basement floor area ("Triangular Section" measuring approximately
18sgm) located immediately south of the ramp that was to be used for storage units

3. Reduction of basement floor area ("Northern section" measuring approximately 225sqm)
located immediately north of where the ramp enters the basement that was to
accommodate 10 car parking spaces

3. Enlargement of basement on its eastern side ("Eastern Section" measuring
approximately 180sqm) and re-arrangement of general parking layout including moving the
doorway to the main core to re-provide 10 car parking spaces and to create a plant room.

Overall, the proposal would result in a reduction of floor area of approximately 27sgm.
However, the level of car and cycle parking would remain as existing.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

12571/APP/2015/3649 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed buildin
and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class
C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal ameni
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings.

Decision: 27-01-2016  Approved

12571/APP/2015/3650 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed buildin
and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class
C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal ameni
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings
(Application for Listed Building Consent).

Decision: 20-01-2016  Approved

12571/APP/2016/2343 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Details pursuant to condition 9 (Ecological Enhancement Scheme) and partial discharge of
condition 15 (stage 1 - Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation) of planning permission 1
12571/APP/2015/3649 dated 03-06-2016 (Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension.
Conversion of existing Grade I listed building and erection of a replacement extension building -
provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and
motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement,
retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing second:
servicing access with ancillary outbuildings).

Decision: 30-08-2016  Approved

12571/APP/2016/2647 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



Submission of details pursuant to conditions 5 (Levels), 10 (Living Roof), 17 (Cycle Parking), 19
(Gates/Barriers), 20 (Access Road) and 22 (Refuse Storage) of planning permission ref:
12571/APP/2015/3649 dated 03-06-2016 (Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension.
Conversion of existing Grade I listed building and erection of a replacement extension building -
provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and
motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement,
retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing second:
servicing access with ancillary outbuildings).

Decision: 12-01-2017  Approved

12571/APP/2016/2927 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Submission of details pursuant to condition 12 (Water Management) of planning permission ref:
12571/APP/2015/3649 dated 03-06-2016 (Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension.
Conversion of existing Grade Il listed building and erection of a replacement extension building
provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and
motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement,
retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing second:
servicing access with ancillary outbuildings).

Decision: 12-01-2017  Approved

12571/APP/2016/3054 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Details pursuant to conditions 4 (Demolition & Construction Management), 7 (Tree Protection)
and 8 (Landscaping Scheme) of planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 dated 03-06-2(
(Demoilition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed buildi
and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class
C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal ameni
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings).

Decision: 24-10-2016  Approved

12571/APP/2016/4137 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Application under Section 19 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 199
for variation of condition 2 (drawing nos.) for an amendment to Listed Building Consent ref.
12571/APP/2015/3650 (Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existi
Grade Il listed building and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-
contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking,
private and communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance
piers, the main vehicular entrance on 'The Drive' and existing secondary servicing access with
ancillary outbuildings (Application for Listed Building Consent) comprising changes to basement
layout.)

Decision:

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The original planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 (Demolition of existing modern
U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed building and erection of a

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with
associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings)
was granted on the 27th January 2016.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Please see list of relevant planning policies below.
UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1
PT1.EM2
PT1.EM6
PT1.EM7
PT1.H1
PT1.H2
PT1.HEA

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Housing Growth

(2012) Affordable Housing

(2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

AM13

AM14
AM15
AM2

AM7
AM8

BE10
BE11
BE12
BE13
BE15
BE18
BE19

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people witt
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): -

(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services

(i) Shopmobility schemes

(iii) Convenient parking spaces

(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

Proposals for the demolition of statutory listed buildings

Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed buildings
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24
BE38

BE39
BES8
BE9
EC2
EC3
EC4

EC5
EC6
EM2
EM6
H11
H4
H6
H8
H9
R16
OE1

HDAS-LAY

LPP 2.6
LPP 2.8
LPP 2.18
LPP 3.1
LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.6
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.9
LPP 3.10

Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of trees and woodland - tree preservation orders

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

Potential effects of development on sites of nature conservation importance

Monitoring of existing sites of nature conservation importance and identification of
new sites

Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

Retention of wildlife habitats on derelict or vacant land

(2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains

(2012) Flood Risk Management

Provision of affordable housing

Mix of housing units

Considerations influencing appropriate density in residential development.
Change of use from non-residential to residential

Provision for people with disabilities in new residential developments
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2016) Outer London: vision and strategy

(2016) Outer London: Transport

(2016) Green Infrastructure: the multi functional network of open and green spaces
(2016) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Children and young people's play and informal recreation facilities
(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2016) Definition of affordable housing

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



LPP 3.11
LPP 3.12

LPP 3.13
LPP 5.1
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.4
LPP 5.7
LPP 5.8
LPP 5.9
LPP 5.10
LPP 5.11
LPP 5.12
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.14
LPP 5.17
LPP 5.18
LPP 5.21
LPP 6.1
LPP 6.3
LPP 6.5
LPP 6.9
LPP 6.11
LPP 6.12
LPP 6.13
LPP 7.1
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.5
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
LPP 7.9
LPP 7.13
LPP 7.14
LPP 7.15

LPP 7.16

(2016) Affordable housing targets

(2016) Negotiating affordable housing on individual private residential and mixed-
use schemes

(2016) Affordable housing thresholds

(2016) Climate Change Mitigation

(2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2016) Sustainable design and construction
(2016) Retrofitting

(2016) Renewable energy

(2016) Innovative energy technologies

(2016) Overheating and cooling

(2016) Urban Greening

(2016) Green roofs and development site environs
(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
(2016) Waste capacity

(2016) Construction, excavation and demolition waste
(2016) Contaminated land

(2016) Strategic Approach

(2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

(2016) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
(2016) Cycling

(2016) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion

(2016) Road Network Capacity

(2016) Parking

(2016) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Designing out crime

(2016) Local character

(2016) Public realm

(2016) Architecture

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Heritage-led regeneration

(2016) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2016) Improving air quality

(2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

(2016) Green Belt

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



LPP 7.18 (2016) Protecting open space and addressing deficiency
LPP 7.19 (2016) Biodiversity and access to nature

LPP 7.21 (2016) Trees and woodlands
)

LPP 8.1 (2016) Implementation

LPP 8.2 (2016) Planning obligations

LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy

LPP 8.4 (2016) Monitoring and review

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF4 NPPF - Promoting sustainable transport

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment
NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 5th December 2016

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

14 neighbour notification letters were sent the 10th November 2016, site notices were erected on the
14th November 2016 and 23rd November 2016, and an advert published on the 23rd November
2016. The statutory neighbour consultation period expired the 14th December 2016. No public

consultation responses were received.
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

No comment

TFL

No objection

HISTORIC ENGLAND

No comment

GLAAS

No objection

GLA

No objection. No further referral required.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



DESIGNING OUT CRIME OFFICER (METROPOLITAN POLICE)
No objection
NATURAL ENGLAND

No comment

Internal Consultees
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

No objection

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER
No objection

HIGHWAYS

No objection

TREE & LANDSCAPING OFFICER

No objection
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of development has already been established under the original planning
permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649. The principle is considered to be compliant with
adopted local policies, the London Plan, and the NPPF.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

The proposal would not affect the density of development that was established under the
original planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has been consulted to consider the
impact of the proposed change on the Listed Building and archaeology of the site. No
objection has been raised as the proposed change is not considered to significantly affect
archaeology or the heritage value of the Listed Building. On this basis, the proposal is
considered to be acceptable.

7.04 Airport safeguarding

The proposal would not be considered to raise any new airport safeguarding concerns.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

The proposed Minor Material Amendment hereby sought relates to the basement of the
development. The original scheme would not differ in its external appearance. Therefore,
the impact on the Green Belt would be acceptable.

7.06 Environmental Impact

Please see other relevant parts of this report for consideration of the environmental impact
of the proposal.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed Minor Material Amendment hereby sought relates to the basement of the
development. The original scheme would not differ in its external appearance. Therefore,

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

the impact on the character and appearance of the area is considered to be acceptable.
Impact on neighbours

The proposed Minor Material Amendment hereby sought relates to the basement of the
development. The original scheme would not differ in its external appearance. The change
would not materially differ in its relationship with neighbouring properties. On this basis, the
proposal would be acceptable in this regard.

Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposed Minor Material Amendment hereby sought relates to the basement of the
development. It involves marginally enlarging it and altering its layout. The proposal would
not detrimentally impact the quality of the accommodation available for future occupants.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The level of car, motorcycle, and bicycle parking would remain unchanged from the original
scheme. The Council's Highway Engineer has been consulted and assessed the merits of
the change. No objection has been raised and the proposal is not considered to raise any
traffic, parking, or highway safety issues. Therefore, it is acceptable in this regard.

Urban design, access and security

The proposal is not considered to raise any new issues with regards to urban design,
access, or security.
Disabled access

The proposal would not alter the number or layout of the originally approved accessible
parking bays. The pedestrian access from the main core to the basement would be re-
positioned. However, it would not raise any concerns with regards to disabled access.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The proposal would not change the level of affordable and special needs housing provision
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

The proposed Minor Material Amendment hereby sought relates to the basement of the
development. The original scheme would not differ in its external appearance. The removal
of the Northern Section and Triangular Section (as described in the 'Proposal Scheme'
segment of this report) are likely to enable better protection of existing trees and allow for
some improved landscaping as there would be a greater root area available for plants. The
additional Eastern Section of the basement hereby sought would be largely located under
existing and proposed hardstanding. Therefore, on this basis, the proposal would be
acceptable in terms of trees, landscaping, and ecology.

Sustainable waste management

The proposal would not change the waste arrangements to the original development.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

The proposal would not change the renewable or sustainability arrangements to the original
development.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

The proposal would reduce the overall footprint of the basement. Nor would it increase the
overall width or depth of the basement. Therefore, the proposal is not considered to raise
any new flooding or drainage issues beyond that considered on the original planning
application.

Noise or Air Quality Issues

The proposal would not raise any new noise or air quality issues.
Comments on Public Consultations

Please see 'External Consultees' section of this report for consideration of comments from
the public.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



7.20 Planning Obligations

The proposal would not change any planning obligations associated with the original
planning permission.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to the determination of this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should

consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

The original planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 (Demolition of existing modern
U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed building and erection of a
replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with
associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings)
was granted on the 27th January 2016.

This application seeks a Minor Material Amendment (MMA) to change the basement layout
resulting in a reduction of floor area overall. However, it would not change the external
appearance of the original development. Despite the smaller basement, the level of car,
motorcycle, and bicycle parking would remain unchanged from the original scheme. The
Council's Highway Engineer raises no objection.

The Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has been consulted to consider the
impact of the proposed change on the Listed Building and archaeology of the site. No
objection has been raised as the proposed change is not considered to significantly affect
archaeology or the heritage value of the Listed Building.

Overall, the development is considered to remain good quality and would be acceptable,
subject to the conditions and the satisfactory completion of a section 106 Legal Agreement
as per the original application.

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (8th November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (2016)

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Technical Housing Standards - Nationally described space standards (2015)
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Affordable Housing
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance

Contact Officer: Richard Conroy Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



Uxbridge Golf Course

| . Il’ Q ’:: | E‘D
i A, g

Ny

.
' j:IJ ;:;

HIGHFIELD pyvg ~

;

‘

|

|

1

I

i

i

'

'

'

\

L] 1
!

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee

Site Address:

Harefield Place, The Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
12571/APP/2016/3950 1:2,500
Planning Committee: Date:
Major p,geg¢ | February 2017

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAREFIELD PLACE THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Application under Section 19 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 for variation of condition 2 (drawing nos.) for an
amendment to Listed Building Consent ref. 12571/APP/2015/3650 (Demolitior
of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed
building and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-
contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and
motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and landscape
enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance
on "The Drive' and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary
outbuildings (Application for Listed Building Consent) comprising changes to
basement layout.)

LBH Ref Nos: 12571/APP/2016/4137

Drawing Nos: 2009-PL-03 Revised Basement Plan Sheet 2
2009-PL-02 Revised Basement Plan Sheet 1
2009-PL-04 Revised Basement Plan Sheet 3

Date Plans Received: 14/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 14/11/2016
1. SUMMARY

The original Listed Building Consent ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 was granted on the 27th
January 2016. It accompanied planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 (Demolition
of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade |l listed building and
erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments
(Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and
communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance
piers, the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access
with ancillary outbuildings).

This application has been submitted with Minor Material Amendment (MMA) application ref.
12571/APP/2016/3950 to change the basement layout resulting in a reduction of floor area
overall.

The proposal would not change the external appearance of the original development, nor
would it adversely impact the heritage value of the Listed Building.

The Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has been consulted to consider the
impact of the proposed change on the Listed Building and no objection has been raised.

This variation to condition 2 of the original Listed Building Consent should be approved as
it would not materially affect the Listed Building and would be acceptable in planning policy
terms.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON

To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans referenced below and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence:

2009-PL-02 Revised Basement Plan Sheet 1
2009-PL-03 Revised Basement Plan Sheet 2
2009-PL-04 Revised Basement Plan Sheet 3
182-PL-300-02 Proposed Elevations AB
182-PL-301-02 Proposed Elevations CD
182-PL-302-01 Proposed Elevations EF
182-PL-400-01 Proposed Site Sections
182-PL-1001-02 Proposed Site Plan

182-PL-2001-01 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2002-01 Proposed Ground Floor Plan 2 of 2
182-PL-2011-01 Proposed First Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2012-01 Proposed First Floor Plan 2 of 2
182-PL-2021-01 Proposed Second Floor Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2022-01 Proposed Second Floor Plan 2 of 2
182-PL-220-03 Ground Floor Alterations Plan
182-PL-221-03 First Floor Alterations Plan
182-PL-222-03 Second Floor Alterations Plan
182-PL-223-03 Roof Alterations Plan

182-PL-229-03 Basement Alterations Plan
182-PL-250-01-Proposed Out Buildings 1 of 2
182-PL-251-01-Proposed Out Buildings 2 of 2
182-PL-320-02 Alterations Elevation North East 1 of 2
182-PL-321-02 Alterations Elevation North East 2 of 2
182-PL-322-02 Alterations Elevation South West 1 of 3
182-PL-323-02 Alterations Elevation South West 2 of 3
182-PL-327-02 Alterations Elevation South West 3 of 3
182-PL-324-02 Alterations Elevation South East
182-PL-325-02 Alterations Elevation North West 1 of 2
182-PL-326-02 Alterations Elevation North West 2 of 2
182-PL-2031-02 Proposed Roof Plan 1 of 2
182-PL-2032-02 Proposed Roof Plan 2 of 2

Method Statement for Works to Listed Building

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 NONSC Historic Recording

Copies of the final report (recording of the building) as approved under application ref.
12571/APP/2016/2989 shall be made available to the LPA, Local History Library and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



Historic England.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

4 NONSC Schedule of repairs and methodology of works

The scheme of repairs, method of works, and materials as agreed under application ref.
12571/APP/2016/2989 shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved details and
shall be competed prior to first occupation.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

5 NONSC Details of new works to Listed Building

The new works to the Listed Building as agreed under application ref.
12571/APP/2016/2989 shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved details and
shall be competed prior to first occupation.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

6 NONSC Details of basement door

Prior to commencement of development, details of the widened basement entrance and
doorway at the front of the building shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the works shall be carried out in full accordance with
the approved details and completed as agreed.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

7 NONSC Details of basement protection measures

Prior to commencement of development, details of the method of protecting the existing
basement wall during the excavation works shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the works shall be carried out in full
accordance with the approved details and completed as agreed.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



8 NONSC Measures to protect the Listed Building

The measures to protect the Listed Building during construction as agreed under
application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2989 shall be carried out in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

9 NONSC Sample of External Materials

Prior to occupation of the development, all external surfaces of the listed building shall be
completed in materials to match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in
writing. Details and samples shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority before commencement of any part of the development where the new materials
differ in any way from those of the existing building.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

10 NONSC Finishes to match the fabric of the Listed Building

All new works and works of making good to the retained fabric of the building, whether
internal or external, shall be finished to match the existing fabric with regard to methods
used and to material, colour, texture and profile, unless otherwise agreed in writing.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

1 NONSC Damage to be made good

Any damage caused to the building in execution of the works shall be made good to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within 3 months of the works being completed.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

12 NONSC Conservation Management Plan

Prior to first occupation of the development, a Conservation Management Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the long term
maintenance and management of the original house and garden structures.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 96



UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

13 NONSC Method of Excavation

Within the area of the existing vaults to the front of the building the excavation of the
basement car park is to be undertaken using small scale tools/equipment so that the
extent and form of the existing vaults can be understood and recorded. Information
obtained is to be included within the recording document provided under condition 3.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

14 NONSC Completion of works to the Listed Building

Prior to first residential occupation, works to repair and convert the listed building are to be
completed.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

15 NONSC Construction contract for the completion of works

The partial demolition works hereby approved shall not be commenced before contract(s)
for the carrying out of the completion of the entire scheme of works approved under
planning permission and listed building consent (Refs: 12571/APP/2015/3640 and 3650),
including the works contract, have been made and evidence of such contract(s) has been
submitted to and accepted in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

16 NONSC Details of Finish

The external materials and finish as agreed under application ref. 12571/APP/2016/2989
shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved details and shall be competed
prior to first occupation. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained in
perpetuity, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

17 NONSC Fabric Uncovered by Works

The removal of the attic floor and roof of the listed building have been agreed on the basis
that no original or early fabric remain. During the course of the these works, should any

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



original fabric be uncovered, works must stop until the advice of the Local Planning
Authority is sought on the potential to retain and incorporate such features into the agreed
works. Agreement from the Local Planning Authority must thereafter be obtained in order
to commence works again.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with policies BE8, BE9, BE10, BE11 and BE12 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Saved
UDP Policies (Nov 2012); policy 7.8 of the London Plan (2016); and National Planning
Policy Framework (2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (2015) and national guidance

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
BE11 Proposals for the demolition of statutory listed buildings
BE12 Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily
listed buildings
LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology
LPP 7.9 (2015) Heritage-led regeneration
NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment
3 145 Discharge of Conditions

Your attention is drawn to condition 13. The developer has provided a letter in application
ref. 12571/APP/2016/2989 that sets out how the works would be completed in full.

4

Unless specified on the approved drawings, the Local Planning Authority's agreement
must be sought for the opening up of any part of the interior of the building.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site known as Harefield Place measures approximately 3.69 hectares and comprises
office accommodation with associated parking and landscaped grounds. The land falls
dramatically away from the existing buildings to the south west and rises up to a plateau to

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



the north east, beyond the main front of the building. There are some remnants of early
landscaping remaining such as a large informal pond located to the east of the house.

The original house is grade Il listed and dates from the late 18th century. It comprises a
building of 2 storeys, an attic plus basement. The centre block is 8 windows wide, with 3
windows wide projecting end pavilions. It is constructed of stock brick with a stone cornice
and stone-coped parapet concealing hipped slate roofs with a modern cupola. There are
gauged, near-flat brick arches to the sash windows (all modern) with glazing bars and a
central Doric porch. Below this is a two leaf, 6-panel double door with elliptical patterned
fanlight over. The garden front has a 7-window centre block with stepped, set-back side
wings of 2 and 3 bays and stone pilasters to the corners. There is a segmental one-storey
bow to the right of centre and a number of dormers to the roof.

The grade Il listed building was originally known as Harefield Lodge and was built in
1785/86 by Architect Henry Couchman for Sir Rodger Newdigate. It was significantly
extended around 1805 by Jane Parker and again in the early 20th Century. In 1935
Harefield Place was acquired by Middlesex County Council for use as an annexe to
Hillingdon County Hospital. It was named the Harefield Country Hospital and had 51 beds
and 12 cots. In 1958, the old stable was demolished because of its dangerous condition
and its site made into a car park. At this time, the driveway was also resurfaced. The
Hospital closed in 1965 but before this the wards were temporarily converted to provide
accommodation for nursing staff from Hillingdon Hospital.

The building was vacant between 1965 and 1978 and as a result fell into a dilapidated
condition. In 1981 consent for its change of use to office and for the presently existing side
extension was granted and subsequently constructed. From 1991 the building was used by
Blockbusters as their headquarters. The building has been partially vacant since 2004 and
fully vacant for over two years since Blockbuster went into administration in December
2012, consequently its condition has deteriorated rapidly over the last few years.

The site is located on The Drive, a private road, approximately half a mile north of the A40
motorway, one mile from Ickenham Village Centre and situated within the Parish of
Harefield which is part of Uxbridge District. 'The Drive' which delineates the eastern
boundary of the site comprises of mainly two storey-detached houses which are of mixed
architectural style and quality set in medium to large plots. To the north of the site there is
open land and to the south and south west is Ickenham Golf Course.

The whole of the site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt, a Nature Conservation
Site of Borough Grade Il or Local Importance and the Colne Valley Park. At present the
grounds are unmaintained and overgrown. The existing site benefits from 96 car parking
spaces and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 1a, on a scale of 1 to 6,
where 1 represents the lowest level of public accessibility. The site is covered by Tree
Preservation Order No. 236 and it is also within an Archaeological Priority Zone as
designated within the emerging Local Plan Part 2.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This is an application under Section 19 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 for variation of condition 2 (drawing nos.) for an amendment to Listed
Building Consent ref. 12571/APP/2015/3650 (Demolition of existing modern U shaped
extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed building and erection of a replacement
extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated
basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance on
"The Drive' and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings (Application
for Listed Building Consent) comprising changes to basement layout)

3.3 Relevant Planning History

12571/APP/2015/3649 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed buildin
and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class
C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal ameni
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings.

Decision: 27-01-2016  Approved

12571/APP/2015/3650 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed buildin
and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class
C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal ameni
spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular
entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings
(Application for Listed Building Consent).

Decision: 20-01-2016  Approved

12571/APP/2016/2989 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Submission of details pursuant to conditions 3 (Recording of building), 4 (Schedule of repairs/
works), 5 (New works), 13 (Contract for complete works), and 14 (Samples/Materials) of Listed
Building Consent ref. 12571/APP/2015/3650 dated 03-06-2016 (Demolition of existing modern |
shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade I listed building and erection of a replacement
extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basemel
car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and landscape
enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and
existing secondary servicing access with ancillary outbuildings).

Decision:

12571/APP/2016/3950 Harefield Place The Drive Ickenham

Section 73 application to vary condition 2 (drawing nos.) for a Minor Material Amendment (MMA
to planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 (Demolition of existing modern U shaped
extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed building and erection of a replacement extensic
building to provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycl
and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement,
retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing second:
servicing access with ancillary outbuildings) comprising changes to basement layout.

Decision:

Comment on Relevant Planning History
Please see 'Proposed Scheme' section above for more details regarding planning history.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



4. Planning Policies and Standards
Please see list of relevant planning policies below.
UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE11 Proposals for the demolition of statutory listed buildings

BE12 Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed buildings
LPP 7.8 (2015) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.9 (2015) Heritage-led regeneration

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Neighbours were notified on the 28th November 2016 and an advertisement published 1st
December 2016. The statutory consultation period expired 21st December 2016. 2 neighbour
responses were received which raised concerns regarding the number of flats that were being
proposed and impact on transport. The number of units being proposed is not greater than the
previous approval. The change to the basement would not raise any new transport concerns. Please
see associated planning application for more details.

GLA

No objection

Internal Consultees
CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN

No objection, subject to conditions to safeguard the Listed Building.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of development has already been established under the original Listed
Building Consent. The principle is considered to be compliant with adopted local policies,
the London Plan, and the NPPF.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

713

714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The proposed changes to the basement would not significantly affect the Listed Building.
Therefore, the proposed change is considered acceptable.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The changes are located within the basement. The original development would not change
externally. Therefore, the proposal would not adversely impact the character and
appearance of the area.
Impact on neighbours

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Disabled access

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Please see 'External Consultees' section of this report.
Planning Obligations

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to the determination of this application.
Other Issues

None

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



9. Observations of the Director of Finance
None.

10. CONCLUSION

The original Listed Building Consent ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 was granted on the 27th
January 2016. It accompanied planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649 (Demolition
of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed building and
erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-contained apartments
(Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and
communal amenity spaces and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers,
the main vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with
ancillary outbuildings).

This application has been submitted with Minor Material Amendment (MMA) application ref.
12571/APP/2016/3950 to change the basement layout resulting in a reduction of floor area
overall.

The proposal would not change the external appearance of the original development, nor
would it adversely impact the heritage value of the Listed Building.

The Council's Conservation and Urban Design Officer has been consulted to consider the
impact of the proposed change on the Listed Building and no objection has been raised.

This variation to condition 2 of the original Listed Building Consent should be approved as it
would not materially affect the Listed Building and would be acceptable in planning policy
terms.

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (8th November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (2016)

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)

Contact Officer: Richard Conroy Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



Uxbridge Golf Course

/]

Notes:

|:| Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Harefield Place, The Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
12571/APP/2016/4137 1:2,500
Planning Committee: Date:
Major page 105 February 2017

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address FORMER WEST DRAYTON POLICE STATION STATION ROAD WEST
DRAYTON
Development: Residential development of 53 units, comprising 13 houses and 40 flats,

together with associated parking, access road and landscaping, involving the
part retention of the listed walls and demolition of the existing Police Station,
outbuildings and concrete hardstandings.

LBH Ref Nos: 12768/APP/2016/1580

Drawing Nos: 13041_TOPO Existing site plan
Geo Desk Sudy Ref: 1445/Rpt 1v2
Solar slate PV tiles brochure
Noise Assessment Report 11221.NIA.01
Heritage statement
Energy Assessment Rev 3 28/5/2016
ARBORICULTURAL IMPACT ASSESSMEN1
AIR QUALITY REPORTJune 201<
940-002 Sweep path - houses
940-001 sweep path - flats
16-047-53-S4-P-F-30-A Flat Types Layout amendec
603-LA-P-04 Rev A Wild flower meadow
16-047-53-P-LP- Location Plan
16-047 - 53 - P - 01 Proposed Site Plan
16-047 - 53 - P - 02 Proposed Basement Block Plan
16-047 - 53 - P - 03 Proposed Ground Floor Block Plar
16-047 - 53 - P - AS Accomodation Schdule
16-047 - 53 - P - DAS Design and access statement
16-047 - 53 - P - E - 01 Rev. A amenity space
16-047 - 53 - P - E - 02 Secure by design layout
16-047 - 53 - P - E - 03 Highways
16-047 - 53 - P - E - 04 Street lightinc
16-047 53 - P - F - FT - C C flat type layouts
16-047 53 - P - F - FT - D D flat type layouts
16-047 53 - P - F - FT - E E flat type layouts
16-047 53 - P - F - FT - F F flat type layouts
16-047 53 P HT 01 Houses block elevations
16-047 53 P HT W 01 House type floor plans
16-047 53 P HT W 02 House type elevations and sectior
16-047 53 P HT X 01 House type floor plans
16-047 53 P HT X 02 House type elevations and sectior
16-047 53 P HT Y 01 House type floor plan:s
16-047-53-P-F-FT-F Internal flat layou
16-047-53-P-F-FT-E Internal flat layou
16-047-53-P-F-FT-D Internal flat layou
16-047-53-P-F-FT-C Internal flat layou
16-047-53-P-F-FT-B Internal flat layou
6570.FormerPoliceStation.EcoMEP.Rev1
13041_TOPO (Rev B).
TRANSPORT ASSESSMENT

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



16-047 53 P HT Y 02 House type elevations and sectior
16-047 53 P HT Z 01 House type floor plan:

16-047 53 P HT Z 02 House type elevations and sectior
SuDs Report and Flood Risk Assessment
16-047-53-P-E-12 Indicative landscaping layou
Archaeological evaluation report CBAS0557

Vehicle and Pedestrain Access Control

ECOLOGICAL MITIGATION AND ENHANCMENT PLAN OCTOBER 201
16-047-53-P-E-10 Tenure layoul

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 05 Service trench layoul

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 06 Hardsurfaces layout

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 07 Refuse layoul

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 08 Site welfare layou

16-047 - 53 - P - E D - 01 Entrance gates
6-047-53-P-ED-02 Boundary wall on Station Road
16-047-53-P-ED-03 Garden wall to plots 41 and 5%
16-047-53-P-LW-01 Listed wall detail
16-047-53-P-LW-03 Listed wall elevations

16-047 53 - P - F - 01 Floor plans - Basement

16-047 53 - P - F - 02 Floor plans - first and second floor
16-047 53 - P - F - 03 Floor plans - third floor and roof plar
16-047 53 - P - F - 10 Front elevations

16-047 53 - P - F - 11 Rear and side elevations

16-047 53 - P - F - 20 Sections

16-047 53 - P - F - 30 Flat type layou

16-047 53 - P - F - 40 Area measurement

16-047 53 - P - F - FT - A A flat type layouts

16-047 53 - P - F - FT - B B flat type layouts

Date Plans Received: 22/04/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 10/08/2016

Date Application Valid: 18/07/2016 20/12/2016
22/04/2016
22/11/2016
11/01/2017
18/07/2016
02/11/2016
13/01/2017
25/11/2016
30/08/2016
18/01/2017
23/08/2016

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for a residential development involving the demolition of all
the existing buildings on the former West Drayton Police Station Site site and the erection
of a 4-storey block containing 40 flats to be located on the front part of the site and 13 3-
storey houses to be located to the rear of the site, together with associated car parking,
access and landscaping.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



The entire site is located within the West Drayton Green Conservation Area and within an
Archaeological Priority Area. Drayton Hall, which abuts the site to the north, is a Grade Il
Listed building.

The current application is a modification to a previously approved scheme
ref:12768/APP/2014/1870 dated 2/2/2016 for 43 residential units on the site. The principle
of residential development and the loss of the former Police Station on this site has
already been established by virtue of this consent.

The Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime has disposed of the site on the basis that it is
surplus to its requirements and replacement facilities are being provided in the vicinity,
which adequately meet the policing needs of the local population. In addition, the site has
been marketed since 2013, but no community based based operators have expressed an
interest in aquiring the site for these purposes.

The proposed scheme would be within the London Plan density guidelines, providing good
internal and external living space. The proposed layout would not have an adverse impact
on the living conditions of surrounding occupiers in terms of over-dominance, loss of
privacy and loss of daylight/sunlight. It is considered that the scale and layout of the
proposed development would be compatible with sustainable residential quality, having
regard to the specific Conservation Area constraints of this site.

The proposed sustainability measures will enable a reduction in C02 emissions and the
provision of on-site renewable energy. Given the applicant's agreement in principle to
provide renewable energy measures as part of the development, it is considered that this
matter could be dealt with by a suitable planning condition in the event of planning
permission being granted.

There are no adverse impacts upon ecology or archaeology and highway and pedestrian
impacts are considered to be acceptable. Flood and drainage issues can be addressed
by suitable conditions. A viable level of affordable housing provision has been agreed at
22%. The application is therefore recommended for approval, subject to conditions and a
S106/278 Agreement.

2. RECOMMENDATION

A. That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) Transport: All on site and off site highways works as a result of this proposal,
including improvements to the site access widening along the site access road
and at the junction with Station Road, (which shall be constructed as a Heavy Duty
Crossover), and the details of Keep Clear road markings adjacent to the site
access.

(ii) Construction Training: Either a construction training scheme delivered during
the construction phase of the development or a financial contribution of £35,000
(iii) Air Quality: The applicant provides a financial contribution in the sum of
£12,500.

(iv) Affordable Housing at 22% in habitable room terms, comprising 3 x three bed
houses (Affordable Rent Tenure) and 3 x three bed flats (Shared Ownership
Tenure).

(v) Travel Plan to include a £20,000 Bond.

(vi) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a contribution equal to 5% of the
total cash contribution to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



agreement.

B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 and 278
Agreements and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) If the Legal Agreements have not been finalised by 1 March 2017 (or such other
time-frame as may be agreed by the Head of Planning and Enforcement),
delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to refuse
planning permission for the following reason:

'The applicant has failed to provide measures to mitigate the impacts of the
development through enhancements to services and the environment necessary
as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in respect
of highways, affordable housing, air quality and construction training). The
proposal therefore conflicts with 'saved’ policies AM7 and R17 of the Unitary
Development Plan (2012) and the Council's Planning Obligations SPD and Air
Quality SPG, and the London Plan (2016)."

E) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the
completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

F) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be imposed:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers

16-047-53-S4-P-F-30-A Flat Types Layout amended
16-047-53-P-LP- Location Plan

16-047 - 53 - P - 01 Proposed Site Plan

16-047 - 53 - P - 02 Proposed Basement Block Plan
16-047 - 53 - P - 03 Proposed Ground Floor Block Plan
16-047 - 53 - P - AS Accomodation Schdule

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 01 Rev. A amenity space
16-047 - 53 - P - E - 02 Secure by design layout
16-047 - 53 - P - E - 03 Highways

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 04 Street lighting

16-047 53 - P - F - 40 Area measurement

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



16-047 53 - P - F - 01 Floor plans - Basement

16-047 53 - P - F - 02 Floor plans - first and second floor
16-047 53 - P - F - 03 Floor plans - third floor and roof plan
16-047 53 - P - F - 10 Front elevations

16-047 53 - P - F - 11 Rear and side elevations

16-047 53 - P - F - 20 Sections

16-047 53 - P - F - 30 Flat type layout
16-047-53-S4-P-F-30-A Flat Types Layout amended
16-047 53 -P - F - FT - A Aflat type layouts

16-047 53 - P - F - FT - B B flat type layouts

16-047 53 - P - F - FT - C C flat type layouts

16-047 53 - P - F - FT - D D flat type layouts

16-047 53 - P - F - FT - E E flat type layouts

16-047 53 - P - F - FT - F F flat type layouts
16-047-53-P-F-FT-E Internal flat layout
16-047-53-P-F-FT-D Internal flat layout
16-047-53-P-F-FT-C Internal flat layout
16-047-53-P-F-FT-B Internal flat layout

16-047 53 P HT 01 Houses block elevations

16-047 53 P HT W 01 House type floor plans

16-047 53 P HT W 02 House type elevations and section
16-047 53 P HT X 01 House type floor plans

16-047 53 P HT X 02 House type elevations and section
16-047 53 P HT Y 01 House type floor plans
603-LA-P-04 Rev A Wild flower meadow
16-047-53-P-E-12 Indicative landscaping layout

16-047 53 P HT Y 02 House type elevations and section
16-047 53 P HT Z 01 House type floor plans

16-047 53 P HT Z 02 House type elevations and section
16-047 - 53 - P - E - 05 Service trench layout

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 06 Hardsurfaces layout

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 07 Refuse layout

16-047 - 53 - P - E - 08 Site welfare layout

16-047 - 53 - P - E D - 01 Entrance gates

Boundary wall east - facing Station Road

Garden wall to plots 41 and 53

6-047-53-P-LW-01 Listed wall detail
16-047-53-P-LW-03 Listed wall elevations

Solar slate PV tiles brochure

16-047-53-P-E-10 Tenure layout

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 RES7 Materials (Submission)

Not withstanding the submitted plans, no development shall take place until details of all
materials and external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to:

(i) fenestration and doors

(i) balconies including obscure screening (where applicable)
(iii) boundary walls, retaining walls and railings

(iv) comprehensive colour scheme for all built details

(v) make, product/type, colour and photographs/images.

(vi) bricks, render, cladding, roof finishes

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 RES8 Tree Protection

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.

The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:

2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;

2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;

2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.

2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.

2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 112



damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 RES10 Tree to be retained

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs'

Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON

To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

7 RES11 Play Area provision of details

No development shall commence until details of play areas for children have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the play
areas shall be provided prior to the occupation of any unit within the development and
maintained for this purpose.

REASON

To ensure that the development makes adequate provision of children's play space in
accordance with Policy R1 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and London Plan (2016) Policy 3.16.

8 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



2.a Cycle Storage (13 secure spaces for the flats)

2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.c Surface level car parking layouts for 24 vehicles, including 2 disabled parking bays and
demonstration that 10 of the parking spaces (5 active and 5 passive) are served by
electrical charging points and parking for 5 motor cycles.

2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

2.f Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies
5.11 (living walls and roofs) and 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2016).

9 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the houses on plots 41 to 53 hereby approved.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to the adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

10 NONSC Fenestration Details

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, details of the first floor oriel bedroom windows to
plots 41 to 44 facing the Yewsley and West Drayton Community Centre shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance and to prevent
overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

11 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification); no garages, sheds or other outbuildings, nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouses shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers,
in accordance with policies BE4, BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

12 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

Not withstanding the submitted plans, no development approved by this permission shall
be commenced until a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
shall clearly demonstrate that sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been
incorporated into the designs of the development in accordance with the hierarchy set out
in accordance with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (2016) Policy 5.12.

13 RES19 Ecology

Prior to commencement of development an ecological enhancement scheme based on
the recommendations contained in the submitted Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement
Plan October 2016, Tree Assessment for Bats and Aboricultural Survey Report dated May
2014, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall clearly detail measures to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within
the landscaping and the fabric of the buildings. These shall include, living screens against
walls of the development, bat and bird boxes, habitat walls and a range of plants to
encourage and support wildlife. The scheme shall aim to include an area of land dedicated
to wildlife habitat. The development shall proceed in accordance with the approved
scheme.

REASON

In order to encourage a wide diversity of wildlife on the existing semi-natural habitat of the
site in accordance with policy EC5 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



(November 2012) and London Plan (2016) Policy 7.19.

14 RES20 Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

The approved development shall not be occupied until the traffic arrangements (including
where appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been constructed in accordance
with the approved details. Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas
must be permanently retained and used for no other purpose for the lifetime of the
development. Disabled parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at
least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.13 (20%) of the
parking

spaces shall be served by active electric charging points and 13 (20%) of the parking
spaces shall be served by passive electric charging points.

REASON

To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016)

15 RES22 Parking Allocation

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

16 RES23 Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The access for the proposed site entrance shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

17 RES25 No floodlighting

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, no floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall
be installed unless it is in accordance with details which have previously been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include
location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting
that is so installed shall not thereafter be altered other than for routine maintenance which
does not change its details.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties and to protect the ecological value of
the area in accordance with policies BE13, OE1 and EC3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



18 RES26 Contaminated Land

(i) The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:

(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate
all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other
identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use.

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement.

(ii)) If during development or works contamination not addressed in the submitted
remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme must be
agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(iii) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
verification report submitted to the Council's Environmental Protection Unit before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any
such requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) Before any part of the development is occupied, site derived soils and imported soils
shall be independently tested for chemical contamination, and the results of this testing
shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All soils used
for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination.

REASON:

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

19 RES5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the following has been
completed in accordance with the specified supporting plans and/or documents:

- ENERGY ASSESSMENT REV. 3 dated 28/5/2016

ARBORICULTURAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

AIR QUALITY REPORT dated June 2014

ECOLOGICAL MITIGATION AND ENHANCMENT PLAN OCTOBER 2016
PEDESTRIAN ACCESS CONTROL Rbm84 | CAME UK

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the the Hillingdon Local
Plan:Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

20 NONSC Noise

Development shall not begin until a sound insulation and ventilation scheme for protecting
the proposed residential development from road traffic, air traffic and other noise has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme should
ensure that internal LAeq,T and LAmax noise levels meet appropriate noise criteria. All
works which form part of the scheme shall be fully implemented before the residential
development is occupied and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working
order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON:

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed residential development is not
adversely affected by road traffic, air traffic and other noise in accordance with policy OES
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London
Plan (2016) Policy 7.15.

21 NONSC Plant and Machinery

Before the development is commenced details of any plant, machinery and fuel burnt, as
part of the energy provision and the location of the flue at the development shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. This shall include pollutant
emission rates at the flue with or without mitigation technologies. The use of ultra low NOx
emission gas-fired CHPs and boilers is recommended. The development should as a
minimum be ‘air quality neutral' and demonstrably below the building emissions
benchmark.

REASON

To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring properties in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

22 NONSC Accessibility Condition 1

The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

REASON:
To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan
(2016)policy 3.8c, is achieved and maintained.

23 NONSC Accessibility Condition 2

The development hereby approved shall ensure that 10% of the residential units are
constructed to meet the standards for Category 3M4(3) dwelling, with the remaining units
designed to the standards for Category 2M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document
M to the Building Regulations (2010) and all such provisions shall remain in place for the
life of the building.

REASON:
To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan
(2016)Policy 3. 8d, is achieved and maintained.

24 NONSC Access Gate

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the operation of any access
gate to the car park by disabled persons, and manual operation of any gates in the event
of power failure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Thereafter the secure access arrangements shall be installed in accordance
with the approved details and maintained so long as the development remains on site.

REASON
In order to ensure the development achieves an appropriate level of accessibility in
accordance with Policy 3.8 of the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES
1

When preparing any submission of details pursuant to Condition 4 of this decision
(external materials) it should be noted that the Council's Conservation Officer has advised
that the indicative brick type proposed in the application would not be considered
acceptable. You are advised to consider a traditional yellow stock brick. Suggested
examples are Ibstock Chailey, Wienerberger Smeed Dean, Freshfield Danehill Yellow or
Freshfield Lindfield Yellow Multi.

2 11 Building to Approved Drawing

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

3 11 The Construction (Design and Management) Regulations
1994

The development hereby approved may be subject to the Construction (Design and
Management) Regulations 1994, which govern health and safety through all stages of a
construction project. The regulations require clients (ie. those, including developers, who
commision construction projects) to appoint a planning supervisor and principal contractor
who are competent and adequately resourced to carry out their health and safety
responsibilities. Further information is available from the Health and Safety Executive,
Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS (telephone 020 7556 2100).

4 112 Notification to Building Contractors

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

5 113 Asbestos Removal

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

6 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work
Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

7 17 Communal Amenity Space

Where it is possible to convey communal areas of landscaping to individual householders,
the applicant is requested to conclude a clause in the contract of the sale of the properties
reminding owners of their responsibilities to maintain landscaped areas in their ownership
and drawing to their attention the fact that a condition has been imposed to this effect in
this planning permission.

8 118 Storage and Collection of Refuse

The Council's Waste Service should be consulted about refuse storage and collection
arrangements. Details of proposals should be included on submitted plans. For further
information and advice, contact - the Waste Service Manager, Central Depot - Block A,
Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB8 3EU (Tel. 01895
277505 / 506).

9 19 Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that the
development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over a
public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities plc,
Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 OEE.

Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

10 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

11 121 Street Naming and Numbering

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8
1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

12 124 Works affecting the Public Highway - General

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out
on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway. This
includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in connection
with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted. For further
information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic
Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1TUW

13 143 Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

14 125A The Party Wall etc. Act 1996
On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1)  carry out work to an existing party wall;

2)  build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

3) in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control will
assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the
necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

15 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/01 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

16 132 Trees in a Conservation Area

As the application site is within a conservation area, not less than 6 weeks notice must be
given to the Local Planning Authority of any intention to cut down, top, lop or uproot or

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



otherwise damage or destroy any trees on the application site. Please contact the Trees &
Landscape Officer, Residents Services, 3N/02, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW for
further advice.

17 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

18 149 Secured by Design

The Council has identified the specific security needs of the application site to be: CCTV
and boundary treatments. You are advised to submit details to overcome the specified
security needs in order to comply with condition 20 of this planning permission.

19 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

20 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

BE1 Development within archaeological priority areas

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE11 Proposals for the demolition of statutory listed buildings

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of
archaeological remains

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R11 Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for
education, social, community and health services

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 5.1 (2016) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.2 (2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2016) Renewable energy

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.14 (2016) Improving air quality

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

21 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies. On the
8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Council's Local
Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the
old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

22 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

23

In accordance with the provisions of the NPPF, the Local Planning Authority has actively
engaged with the applicant both at the pre application and application stage of the planning
process, in order to achieve an acceptable outcome. The Local Planning Authority has
worked proactively with the applicants to secure a development that improves the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. In assessing and determining
the development proposal, the Local Planning Authority has applied the presumption in
favour of sustainable development Accordingly, the planning application has been
recommended for approval.

24

In the event that works to the access road reveal human remains, they must be handled in
accordance with the relevant provisions of The Burial Grounds Act 1857.

25

You are advised that the development hereby approved represents chargeable
development under the Mayor's Community Infrastructure Levy, which is due on
commencement of this development. The actual Community Infrastructure Levy will be
calculated at the time your development is first permitted and a separate liability notice will
be issued by the Local Planning Authority.

In addition, the development hereby approved represents chargeable development under
the Hilligdon Community Infrastructure Levy. Should you require further information please
refer to the Council's Website www.hillingdon.gov.uk/index.jsp?articleid=24738"

26

All tree work should be carried out in accordance with the recommendations of
BS3998:2010 "Tree  Work -Recommendations' in order not to disturb roosting bats or
nesting birds or other species. It is advisable to consult your tree surgeon/consultant to
agree an acceptable time for carrying out any work.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application relates to the former West Drayton Police Station which is currently vacant.
The site is occupied by a three storey former police station, a 1960's building which is set
back some way from the main road and part-concealed behind two tree belts. Single and
two storey buildings are sited to the rear of the main Police Station. The front of the site
comprises an area of grass land with various trees and shrubs and an access road leading
up to the main building. The rear of the site which has been used as a car park since the
1960's is mainly hard surfaced and bordered by high boundary fencing and a listed wall.

Part of the southern boundary is formed by existing out buildings. The front boundary with
Station Road is planted with large conifer trees. Trees on the site and nearby are not
protected by TPO but are afforded protection by virtue of their location within the West
Drayton Conservation Area.

There is a fall in levels from east to west from Station Road to the main building of
approximately 2 and a half metres. The surrounding area is characterised by a mixture of

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



two and three storey buildings, which are mainly residential, with a range of commercial
uses at street level opposite the site. These buildings are predominantly 1930's style with
brick, pebble dash and painted rendered walls and clay tiled roofs.

To the south of the site is the Yiewsley and West Drayton Community Centre, whilst to the
north is the statutory Grade 2 listed Drayton Hall, set in extensive grounds. The site falls
within the West Drayton Green Conservation Area and the proposed Colne Valley
Archaeological Priority Area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a four storey block at the front of the site
containing 31 flats, 6 pairs of semi detached 3 storey town houses and one detached
house at the rear of the site, together with associated car parking, access and
landscaping.

The current application is a modification to a previously approved scheme
ref:12768/APP/2014/1870 dated 2/2/2016 for 43 residential units on the site. 10 additional
units are now proposed (9 flats and one detached house).

This application was originally submitted for the erection of 37 houses. However the
application was amended to provide a mixture of houses and flats, similar to the approved
scheme.

A summary of the revised mix of housing is set out in the following accommodation
schedule:

Type of Accommodation

1 bed 2 person: flats x 2

2 bed 3 person flats x 31

3 bed x person flats x 7

3 bed 5 person houses x 12
4 bed 6 person house x 1

Total 53

The development would retain the open area in front of the site providing amenity space for
residents of the proposed apartments, together with a children's play area.

Access to the site would be via Station Road, utilising the existing access arrangement.
The single access road would run through the site providing access to the flats as well as
the houses located to the rear. The remaining areas would be retained or returned to soft
landscaping as private amenity spaces for the occupants of the development.

The 13 houses would be served by 25 car parking spaces generally situated within a
courtyard between the residential units to which they serve, with landscaping. The 40 flats
would be served by 40 car parking spaces within a lower ground floor car park. There is
also provision for 40 cycle spaces in this lower ground floor car park.

The proposal will involve the demolition of all the existing buildings on the site.

The application is supported by a number of reports that assess the impact of the
proposal. A summary and some key conclusions from these reports are provided below:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



- Heritage Statement

This statement sets out the history of the site and provides a context of the development in
relation to the nearby Drayton Hall (Grade 2 listed) and the West Drayton Green
Conservation Area, together with commentary on the listed garden walls at the rear of the
site (part retained).

- Design and Access Statement

This report outlines the context for the development and provides a justification for the
design, number of units, layout, scale, landscaping, appearance and access for the
proposed development.

- Energy Assessment

The sustainability credentials of the scheme are assessed in the design and access
statement respect of renewable energy resources and achieving savings in terms of CO2.
The assessment concludes that the use of Photo Voltaic panels is the preferred option for
renewable energy technology.

- Arboricultural survey

The statement has been prepared to ensure good practise in the protection of trees during
the construction and post construction phases of the development.

- Biodiversity Survey and Report

The report summarises the findings of a walk over survey, desk study and protected
species assessment. Recommendations for protected species surveys have been made.

- Noise Impact Assessment

The assessment concludes that the site is suitable for residential development subject to a
suitable scheme of mitigation measures being incorporated into the design.

- Transport Assessment

The assessment considers the accessibility of the site, examines predicted generation
trips by all modes, assesses the effect of the development on surrounding transport
infrastructure and considers surfacing and refuse collection facilities. The assessment
concludes that the development benefits from good levels of public transport accessibility,
that net trip generation can be accommodated on the surrounding transport infrastructure
and that the development through its design, will encourage the use of sustainable modes
of transport.

SuDs Report and Flood Risk Assessment

The assessment concludes that the proposed development will greatly reduce the surface
water run off leaving the site, and therefore reduce flood risk at the site and elsewhere.

Archaeological Evaluation Report
The report recommended that no further archaeological works be undertaken at the site.

Geo Desk Sudy Ref: 1445/Rpt 1v2

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



A geo-environmental desk study and site investigation report has been submitted, which
shows that there are unacceptable concentrations of lead and poly aromatic hydrocarbons
within the made ground. A number of recommendations are made, including further geo-
technical and geo-environmental site investigation and a pre-demolition asbestos survey.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

12768/APP/2014/1870 Former West Drayton Police Station Station Road West Drayton

Demolition of the existing Police Station, outbuildings and concrete hardstandings, part retentior
of the listed walls and the construction of 12 semi-detached houses, together with a 4 storey
block of 31 flats, with associated car and cycle parking and access road.

Decision: 02-02-2016  Approved

12768/APP/2014/4071 Former West Drayton Police Station Station Road West Drayton

Alterations to the garden wall situated in the rear area of the former police station site including:
existing bricked up opening to be re-opened; formation of two new openings to match existing
opening; formation of new inner wall; and formation of a rooflight (Application for Listed Building
Consent).

Decision: 08-02-2016  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Planning permission (ref:12768/APP/2014/1870) was granted on 2nd February 2016 for
residential development involving the demolition of all the existing buildings on the former
West Drayton Police Station Site site and the erection of a 4 storey block at the front of the
site containing 31 flats, with 6 pairs 3 storey semi detached houses at the rear of the site,
together with associated car parking, access and landscaping.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision
PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management
PT1.EM7 (2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation
PT1.H1 (2012) Housing Growth
PT1.H2 (2012) Affordable Housing

)

PT1.HEA (2012) Heritage

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

BE1 Development within archaeological priority areas

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE11 Proposals for the demolition of statutory listed buildings

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE3 Investigation of sites of archaeological interest and protection of archaeological
remains

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

EC2 Nature conservation considerations and ecological assessments

EC5 Retention of ecological features and creation of new habitats

H4 Mix of housing units

H5 Dwellings suitable for large families

H8 Change of use from non-residential to residential

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE5 Siting of noise-sensitive developments

OE7 Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R11 Proposals that involve the loss of land or buildings used for education, social,
community and health services

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 5.1 (2016) Climate Change Mitigation

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.2 (2016) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
LPP 5.3 (2016) Sustainable design and construction

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



LPP 5.7 (2016) Renewable energy

LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.14 (2016) Improving air quality
)

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology
LPP 8.3 (2016) Community infrastructure levy
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 15th August 2016

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



17th August 2016

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The application has been advertised under Article 13 of the Town and Country Planning General
Development Management Order 2010 as a Major Development. The application has been
advertised as a development that affects the character and appearance of the West Drayton Green
Conservation Area and the setting of the Grade 2 listed building, Drayton Hall.

106 surrounding property owners/occupiers have been consulted. At the time of writing the report, 6
letters have been received objecting to the proposal. The contents are summarised below:

- Will the block of flats be laid back from the main road and are the trees adjacent to the road way
going to remain and where will the entrance be located?

- | am concerned about safety and security to my property. Will you provide anti-climb facilities or
security so my garden cannot be entered by residents?

- Will flats or top windows be over looking into my property?

- Will this be a private housing estate or council?

- Will building work be carried out during and throughout the evening?

- | have grave concerns at yet more homes being built in this area without the supporting
infrastructure. Almost every primary school in the borough is already being enlarged and there is
currently no local secondary school in West Drayton.

- My biggest concern is the deterioration of the service provided by the existing local doctors.

- | am all for sites such as these being developed but such a densely populated area needs a police
station

- Planners cannot keep adding dwellings without providing services and taking into account the
impact on local roads.

- | am pleased to see that houses are being provided but there are far too many children living

in flats with no gardens

- This is a conservation area and the surrounding areas are already saturated with new housing
developments making the area too congested.

. This will cause a lot of noise and disruption.

. The houses being built may overlook my house and garden.

. The plan are for too many houses. | would support fewer houses built in a way that didn't mean
they could overlook my house.

HISTORIC ENGLAND

Our specialist staff have considered the information received and we do not wish to offer any
comments on this occasion.

Recommendation

This application should be determined in accordance with national and local policy guidance, and on
the basis of your specialist conservation advice. It is not necessary for us to be consulted again on
this application. However, if you would like further advice, please contact us to explain your request.
We can then let you know if we are able to help further and agree a timetable with you. In returning
the application to you without comment, Historic England stresses that it is not expressing any views
on the merits of the proposals which are the subject of the application.

Please note that this response relates to historic building and historic area matters only. If there are

any archaeological implications to the proposals it is recommended that you contact the Greater
London Archaeological Advisory Service for further advice (Tel: 020 7973 3712).

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



HISTORIC ENGLAND (GLAAS)
Recommend No Archaeological Requirement

The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) provides archaeological advice to
boroughs in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and GLAAS Charter.

Having considered the proposals with reference to information held in the Greater London Historic
Environment Record and/or made available in connection with this application, | conclude that the
proposal is unlikely to have a significant effect on heritage assets of archaeological interest.

This site was subject to an archaeological evaluation in 2014 which showed that most of it has been
quarried removing any archaeological interest whilst no burials were found next to the historic
cemetery which it was thought might have extended into the site. No further assessment or
conditions are therefore necessary.

WEST DRAYTON CONSERVATION AREA ADVISORY PANEL

We are concerned at the spiralling number of housing units being proposed for this site with each
successive application or amendment that is made. Approval was granted in February for 43 units
(12 large houses and 31 smaller flats), we were told in May that a house-only scheme was required,
and now we have a revised proposal for 53 units (13 houses and 40 flats).

Although flats are not the typical housing form in the Conservation Area, or the area to the north-west
of this site, the scheme that was approved had been well-designed so the block containing the flats
had a stepped facade and did not fill the full width of the site. By fitting the top floor into the roof it also
gave a less massive and monolithic appearance that the present proposals. The block of flats
shown in the current, revised plans is higher, longer and possibly deeper than that approved -
presumable so it can accommodate the extra 9 flats. Its proposed design is not appropriate for this
site, as it fails to enhance the appearance of the Conservation Area, overpowers Drayton Hall and is,
we consider, over-development of this part of the site.

The houses that are now proposed do at least have adequately-sized gardens and have avoided the
dreadful pastiche facades of the previous submission. It is not clear from the plans submitted how
the listed walls are retained and incorporated into the scheme as this is an essential requirement.
Although some features of the amended plans are improvements on the earlier application (that still
has to be determined) others are completely unacceptable so we hope permission will not be
granted for this new scheme.

(Officer Note: Amended plans have been received revising the design of the block of flats).
METROPOLITAN POLICE CRIME PREVENTION OFFICER

| am content with the build design. | would ask that due to its location, it has a SBD planning
condition. In addition to the above, with regard the existing front dwarf boundary wall, | would ask that
a close boarded fence is placed on top in order ot achieve a 1.8 metre height. This is primarily to
stop rubbish and drinkers sitting on it which will spill over from the 7/11 Tescos store opposite.

(Officer Note: Brick piers and railings above the dwarf boundary wall are considered more in keeping
with the Conservation Area).

Internal Consultees
HIGHWAY ENGINEER

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



This application is for the development of the former West Drayton Police Station site. The site has
a previous planning permission (12768/APP/2014/1870) for 12 houses and 31 flats and this latest
application is for 13 houses and 40 flats which is effectively 10 more dwellings.

The site is located on Station Road West Drayton immediately adjacent to the signalised junction
with Harmondsworth Road. Station Road is a classified road on Council's Road Network and the
site has an existing vehicular access on Station Road. The site is adjacent to a traffic signalled
junction that provides pedestrian crossing facilities. There is also a cycle-way along the Station
Road frontage and a bus stop opposite. The site has a PTAL value of 2 (poor) which suggests there
will be a strong reliance on private cars for trips to and from the site. This proposal has 36x2 bed
+4x3 bed flats +12x3 bed houses and 1x4 bed house on the site. There are 66 car parking spaces,
66 cycle parking spaces and 6 motorcycle parking spaces proposed in the latest scheme. The
previous permitted scheme had 12 houses and 31 flats with the 55 car parking spaces allocated on
the basis of 1 space per flat and 2 spaces per house. If the same ratio is applied to the latest
scheme 26 spaces for the houses and 40 spaces for the flats will be provided.

A Transport Statement (TS) by GTA dated April 2014 was provided as part of the supporting material
but this document seems to relate to the previous application and not the current one. This
document has provided some historical context. The TS estimated the trips for the consented
development at approximately 0.5 trips per house during the peak hour so it would be likely that with
10 more dwellings it is unlikely that trip generation will not be significantly different than the
consented scheme with another 5 trips in the peak hours. The access arrangements are the same
as the situation that was operating when the site was a Police Station and for the consented
scheme. In terms of on-site car parking the proposed 66 car parking spaces have been provided on
the basis as the same ratios that were applied in the previous consented scheme. The provision of
66 cycle parking spaces and 6 motorcycle spaces is supported. The service road providing access
to the basement parking area has been designed to accommodate a refuse vehicle and there is
sufficient geometry to turn around.

On the basis of the above comments | have no significant concerns relating to this application given
the previous permission on the site. In terms of any likely permission | would like conditions applied
in terms of 20% active and 20% passive EV charging points for the car parking spaces provided as
well as a car parking management plan for the site. | would also like a condition relating to the
operation of a Residential Travel Plan for the site.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER

Ecology
The information submitted is an improvement and the wildflower meadow will provide a suitable
ecological corridor.

Energy

The elevations do not show the PVs outlined in the energy strategy. This is a conservation area and
it is important that the development can accommodate the PVs as this is the only method for
achieve the energy reduction.

(Officer Note: . Details of PV panels have been provided).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT

1. Noise survey was taken at the front of the existing building which slopes down from Station Road,
there is also an existing boundary wall separating the road from the site. Therefore it appears
measurement was made in the shadow zone which would underestimate the traffic noise levels

received at the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



2. The site noise exposure levels (table 4.1) are given as single figures but the building fabric and
glazing specifications (tables 6.1 and 6.2 respectively) are given in octaves. A direct comparison/
calculations cannot therefore be made. Could they provide the single figure Rw for the building fabric
and glazing.

3. No mention is made of how ventilation is to be provided.

4. | note there will be external balconies as part of this proposal but the report is silent as to noise
levels in the external amenity areas.

(Officer Note: It is considered that the issue of sound insulation can be addressed by the imposition
of suitable conditions ).

TREE AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER

The current proposal is for a residential development of 53 units, comprising 13 houses and 40 flats,
together with associated parking, access road and landscaping, involving the part retention of the
listed walls and demolition of the existing police station, outbuilding and concrete hard standings.

COMMENT

The current layout is similar to the 2014/1870 approved scheme, with an intensification of dwellings.
In this scheme the footprint of the flats extends further towards the southern boundary. The essential
master plan arrangement, including tree retention, open space provision, built development and road
layout remains similar or the same. If the application is recommended for approval, landscape
conditions should be imposed to ensure that the proposals preserve and enhance the character and
appearance of the site.

This application includes Planting Plan 4 of 4, dwg. ref. 603-LA-P-04 Rev A, which shows the
wildflower area parallel to the road. A gated fence line is indicated on plan. Although not specified on
plan, the drawing refers to Phlorum's Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Plan (document) -
which specifies a low chain link fence. This will be visually intrusive and serve no useful purpose.
However, the interface between the short-mown grass and the wildflower meadow will need some
sort of delineation to guide the mowing operatives. - Occasional low wooden posts, or a low trip rail
would be more appropriate.

RECOMMENDATION
No objection, subject to the above observations and RES6, RES8 (as submitted), COM9 (parts
1,2,4,5, and 6) and RES10.

S106 OFFICER

Heads of Terms

1. Highway Works: S278/S38 for required Highways Works subject to surrounding network adoption
status and Highway Engineers Comments

2. Construction Training: A financial contribution to the sum of: Training costs: £2500 per £1m build
cost plus Coordinator Costs - £9,600 per phase or an in kind scheme to be provided.

3. Air Quality Monitoring: A financial contribution to the sum of £12,500 is likely to be required.
However, the monetary contribution is subject to comments from LBH air quality specialists. Please
also note that this contribution was not required for the previously approved scheme for this site.

4. Travel Plan to include £20,000 Bond.

5. Affordable Housing subject to verification of the FVA (if applicable)

6.Affordable Housing Review Mechanism subiject to verification of the FVA (if applicable)

7.Project Management & Monitoring Fee: A financial contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contributions

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



Additional Comments:

The report and confirmation of Affordable Housing offer by the Council's appointed independent
viability consultant has been received. The Affordable Housing provision has been considered viable
at;

Affordable Rent Tenure: 3 x 3-Bedroom Houses

Shared Ownership Tenure: 3 x 3-Bedroom Houses & 3 x 3-Bedroom Flats.

HOUSING OFFICER
This is a much improved offer for affordable housing which is considered satisfactory.
ACCESS OFFICER

The Supporting Design & Access Statement states that the development would satisfy the Equality
Act 2010, Category M4(1) as set out in Approved Document M, as well as Part B to the Building
Regulations.

There is an immediate and obvious disparity between the standards required by the policy referred
to above, and the standards upon the development appears to have been designed.

With the exception of the four-bedroom houses proposed at the front of the site, all other houses
should meet a minimum of Category 2, M4 (2), with 10% of those upgraded to satisfy Category 3,
M4(3), as prescribed in Approved Document M.

In order to satisfy the Council that all possible options have been explored, the Design & Access
Statement should should fully discuss the other options explored prior to settling on the design which
features four inaccessible townhouses at the front of the site. The amended statement should fully
justify why the site could not be reconfigured to achieve an acceptable 'level access' solution into all
the proposed houses.

Conclusion: Revised plans should be requested as a prerequisite to any planning approval.

(Officer Note: Amended plans have been submitted deleting the town houses in front of the site and
replacing these with a block of flats. Conditions have been included as per the Access Officer's
recommendations)

FLOOD AND DRAINAGE OFFICER

The site is located in Flood Zone 1 and is at risk of surface water flooding according tothe
Environment Agency Flood Maps. A SuDS report and Flood Risk Assessment has been provided
with this application. However this doesn't satisfy all the requirements for approval of the SuDS
proposed.

Comments on the Planning Application:
A SuDS report and Flood Risk Assessment by Nimbus Engineering Consultants dated 18/07/2016
has been submitted with this application.

Sustainable Drainage

. A new surface water drainage connection to the main sewer is proposed. In addition the proposals
although sustainable appear to suggest that a new connection to the Thames Water sewer is
required which will then mean pumping from the site. At this stage this is not considered a
sustainable solution and it is unclear if the existing drainage is pumped and why a new connection is
needed.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



. A basement car park is included as part of this proposal. The investigation which provides the
information on the groundwater should be submitted. Groundwater was found at 3.2m below ground
level and standing water was found at 2.7m below ground level. A sump pump will be installed in the
basement which will remove any excess groundwater entering the basement.

. However it is not just the risk to the proposal from groundwater but the risk from the site which
must also be managed, and mitigated as the groundwater levels appear so high.

. Surface water runoff peak flow rate calculations have been provided. The flow rate for the 1 in 1
year event is 89.4 I/s and 1 in 100 year 283 I/s. The development will restrict runoff to 5l/s.

. Permeable paving or porous tarmac will be used across the site which will further increase the
permeability of the site. The permeable paving will sit over a substrate of free draining material such
as 300mm Type 6N DoTSfHW, or similar approved. This is acceptable.

. Any sloped areas will be caught by aco drains or gullies, and the surface water run off from these
will be conveyed into two attenuation tanks, as shown on drawing number C1667-01, where the flow
is attenuated for 1 in100 year storm event plus climate change, with restricted discharge of 5 I/s
leaving the site. This is acceptable.

. The majority of roof run off will be treated in rain garden planters before being discharged, also with
overflows into underground attenuation system, where the flow is attenuated for 1 in 100 year storm
event plus climate change, with restricted discharge of 5 I/s leaving the site. A list of the plants that
flourish in wet and drought conditions has been included. This is acceptable.

. 800 litre outdoor wall mounted rainwater harvesters have been proposed at each home, and where
possible at the apartment building. This is acceptable and these should be included on the drawings.
. Storage calculations for a 1 in 100 year storm event plus climate change show that 163.5m3 of
storage is required, and this storage will be provided in an aqua-cell or similar approved tank
system, conveying the restricted flow to 5 I/s into an existing surface water manhole at the proposed
development site. Two storage tanks have been included in the drawings and these are acceptable.
. A maintenance and management plan has been provided and these drainage systems should be
maintained in accordance with this.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not increase the
risk of flooding contrary to:

. Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1-Strategic Policies (Nov 2012),
. Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (March 2016) and

. To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable
Drainage of the London Plan (March 2016), and

. Conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London
Plan (March 2016).

. National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), and the Planning Practice Guidance (March
2014).

(Officer Note: A drainage strategy has been submitted. Drainage details can be secured by
condition).

URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION OFFICER

The revised plans are an improvement on the previous proposals. | remain concerned about the
increase in the width of the building across the site over that agreed as part of the approved
scheme. With regards to the current scheme, | would suggest that the ground floor windows go
down to the floor and that the expanse of brickwork adjacent to the vehicle entrance at basement
level is screened with planting and/or possibly a green wall. There would be an opportunity to include
balconies for the flats over this area.

The dark brickwork needs to be reconsidered for this scheme, | would advise a traditional yellow
stock- this would need to be the same for the houses. Suggested examples are Ibstock Chailey,

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



Wienerberger Smeed Dean, Freshfield Danehill Yellow or Freshfield Lindfield Yellow Multi- the latter
is a mix of colours that might work. We would need to see samples for agreement.

Officer Comment: A number of issues raised by the conservation officer would be detailed condition
matters. The concern regarding the increase in width is addressed in the body of the report.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of residential development and the loss of the former Police Station on this
site has already been established by virtue of planning permission
ref:12768/APP/2014/1870

dated 2/2/2016.

The loss of the West Drayton Police Station is part of a more radical strategy by the
Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime. Furthermore, it is noted that the police station was
purpose built for this use and therefore does not lend itself well to conversion to an
alternative community use.

In addition, the site has been marketed since 2013, but no community based based
operators have expressed an interest in acquiring the site for these purposes. It is worth
noting here that this is a relatively large site, which would make it unviable for typical local
community uses such as meeting halls.

Saved Policy H8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states amongst other things, that the conversion or change of use of premises to
residential use will only be acceptable if a satisfactory residential environment can be
achieved. As detailed in other sections of this report, the proposed use could provide an
adequate residential environment, notwithstanding the specific site constraints.

In light of the above considerations, it is concluded that the proposed change of use of the
land meets the policy requirements of the adopted Development Plan. No objections are
therefore raised to the principle of residential use on the site.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan has regard to density. It seeks to optimise housing potential
on sites taking into account local constraints. The site is in a suburban setting with a Public
Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of 2 (on a scale of 1 to 6). These guidelines take into
account public transport accessibility, the character of the area and type of housing
proposed.

Table 3.2 of the London Plan recommends that for a PTAL of 2, a density of 150-250 hr/ha
or between 55-145 u/ha, (assuming 3.1-3.7 hr/unit) can be achieved for the application site.

The proposal seeks to provide 53 residential units totalling 176 habitable rooms. This
equates to a density of 272 hr/ha or 88 u/ha. This level of development is well within the
guidelines set out within Table 3.2 density matrix of the London Plan, assuming a PTAL of
2, in terms of units per hectare, but slightly over in terms of habitable rooms per herctare
for a suburban site.

Nevertheless it will be important to demonstrate that the units will have good internal and
external living space, and that the scale and layout of the proposed development is
compatible with sustainable residential quality, having regard to the specific constraints of
this site, including its coservation area designation and proximity to a grade 2 listed
building. As set out in relevant sections of this report, it is considered that this residential
scheme has been designed at to meet the relevant policy standards and targets, by

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



making effective and efficient use of redundant brownfield land whilst respecting the
surrounding context.

In light of this, the 53 dwellings proposed on a site area of 0.646 ha is considered
appropriate

UNIT MIX

Saved Policies H4 and H5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)seek to ensure a practicable mix of housing units are provided within
residential schemes. One and two bedroom developments are encouraged within town
centres, while larger family units are promoted elsewhere. A mixture of 2 x 1 bedroom, 31
x 2 bedroom and 7 x 3 bedroom flats, together with 12 x 3 bedroom and 1 x 4 bedroom
houses are proposed and this mix of units is considered appropriate for this location.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is within the West Drayton Green Conservation Area towards its eastern
periphery. Part of the walls in the rear car park which relate to the adjoining Drayton Hall
are listed. Drayton Hall, a grade Il listed building, which was first listed in 1950 lies to the
north. Drayton Hall is the principal building of architectural merit within the Conservation
Area and the grounds of the Hall form a significant component in the Conservation Area.
Also to the north is West Drayton Cemetery.

ARCHAEOLOGY

The NPPF accords great weight to the conservation of designated heritage assets and
also non-designated heritage assets of equivalent interest. Heritage assets of local or
regional significance may also be considered worthy of conservation.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)states that the Local Planning Authority will only allow development, which would
disturb remains of importance in archaeological priority areas where exceptional
circumstances can be demonstrated. Part 2 Saved Policy BE3 states that the applicant will
be expected to have properly assessed and planned for the archaeological implications of
their proposal. Proposals which destroy important remains will not be permitted.

The site lies within the Colne Valley Archaeological Priority Area on the edge of West
Drayton Green Conservation Area and its burial ground in the former grounds of Drayton
Hall.

An archaeological evaluation report was submitted as part of the planning application. An
archaeological evaluation excavation was also carried out at the site.The fieldwork revealed
poor below ground survival of the 19th and 20th century outbuildings in the former walled
garden of Drayton Hall, as the walls were demolished down to their foundations for the
construction of the police station car park in the 1960s. Construction of the police station
also appears to have truncated the natural deposit at the rear, west end of the site. Quarry
activity was recorded within the front lawn of the site and at the east end of the walled car
park. Clay was extracted for an adjacent brickfield, which map evidence suggests was out
of use by 1828. The brick field extended into the north end of the site, within the footprint of
the present driveway. Infilling of the clay pits took place between the late 19 th and early
20th centuries, with that to the west being infilled earlier for the construction of the walled
garden. There was no evidence that the Post Medieval cemetery beside Drayton Hall
extended south into the northern extent of the site.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



The report recommended that no further archaeological works be undertaken at the site as
the building remains are poorly preserved and recorded on historic mapping; a large part of
site has been quarried away or truncated, and there is no evidence of the Post Medieval
cemetery.

The Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS) advise that no further
assessment or archaeological conditions are necessary.

LISTED BUILDINGS

Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that development proposals should not be detrimental to the setting of a listed
building. This includes views to listed buildings (i.e. Drayton Hall). Any development would
therefore be expected to address these matters.

The site diectly abuts the grounds of Drayton Hall, a Statutory Grade 2 listed building,

Listed Walls:

The existing car park area in the north-west zone of the site formed part of the kitchen
garden to the original Drayton Hall grounds. The walls defining this area are original, with
the exception of the eastern boundary which is modern and presumably related to the
construction of the police station. The condition of the original walls is mixed with some
parts retaining their original character, some parts rendered to disguise their poor condition
and some parts completely replaced.

The walls on the boundary will remain as garden walls to the new houses. However, the
western wall now falls in the middle of the proposed housing development and requires
sensitive treatment. It is proposed to retain the wall and integrate it with house units 38-41
inclusive.

One of the existing bricked up openings will be re-opened to form the entrance to number
38. However, new openings are proposed in the wall to allow access to the front doors to
numbers 39 & 40. The listed wall currently has two different sections of kerb at its base to
provide protection from cars. The western section of this protection will be replaced by a
public planted area. However the eastern section of kerbing will be retained to protect the
wall from the new parking layout.

The Urban Design and Conservation Officer considers that this is an acceptable solution,
allowing the wall to form a significant and unique element in the new mews area of the
development.

Setting of Drayton Hall:

With regard to the impact of the development on the setting of Drayton Hall itself, which is
located approximately 70/85 metres from the site boundaries, it is screened from the site
by an original high brick wall and a significant number intervening trees.

The development has been limited to four storeys so as not to appear overly dominant
within the setting of the heritage assets. The flatted accommodation which at 4 storeys is
the highest element of the development has also been carefully positioned towards the
front of the site, to allow a greater separation distance between the proposed development
and Drayton Hall. This also means that the most dense element of the development is read
in the context of the more urban aspects of the surrounding area on Harmonsworth Road,

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



Station Road and Sipson Road.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the
setting of the listed building, in accordance with Saved Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

CONSERVATION AREA

Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that new development within or on the fringes of conservation areas will be expected
to preserve or enhance the features, which contribute to the Conservation Area's special
architectural or visual qualities.

The site is located within the West Drayton Green Conservation Area. The West Drayton
Green Conservation Area's most notable features are the pockets of open space, the
collection of listed buildings around Church Road and most notably, Drayton Hall to the
north of the application site. Other buildings within the conservation area are mainly
comprised of typical 1930's residential development.

Demolition of Existing Structures:

The former police station was built in 1965 and is constructed mostly in a light brown brick
with pre-cast concrete panels on the east elevation and white metal windows. The
entrance is located on the north elevation which in addition to the brick is defined by
wooden doors and an adjoining slate panel. The most attractive feature of the building is
the copper roof and its landscaped setting. The rear of the site contains functional
outbuildings, some original in the matching brick, with some pre-fabricated buildings of
poor quality. The rear is also dominated by the extent of car parking and its associated
concrete hard-standing.

The main building is typical of its period and the architectural quality is not considered to
justify its retention. As such, it is not considered to contribute positively to the character of
the Conservation Area and its loss would be acceptable. Similarly, the functional
outbuildings, which are almost derelict, do not contribute to character of the conservation
area. No objections are therefore raised to the demolition of the existing buildings on the
site.

The only redeeming feature of the rear is the listed wall that originally related to Drayton
Hall. This is to be largely retained and integrated within the proposed development.

Impact on the Conservation Area:

By maintaining a tree lined frontage and grassed area in front of the flatted
accommodation, views within the Conservation Area will be largely maintained. The front of
the site would retain a fairly pleasant quality, mostly due to its setting.

The proposed homes will incorporate solar photo-voltaic roof tiles.It is noted that the pitch
of the roof is very low, the site is well shielded with trees, a significant number being
conifers, along and adjoining its perimeter and the view from Drayton Hall is a relatively
long at approximately 90 metres. It is not considered that the impact of the PV roof panels
on external views of the site, particularly from views from Station Road, the parkland to the
west of the site and Drayton Hall would be detrimental to the character of the conservation

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 139



area.

Overall, it is considered that the scheme will introduce a built form that is appropriate to its
Conservation Area context and will improve the townscape character of the area, by
removing redundant and degraded commercial buildings. The proposals will conserve and
enhance the setting for the listed wall and also enhance the quality of the conservation
area, in compliance with Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

7.04 Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues related to this development.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

There are no Green Belt issues associated with this site.
7.06 Environmental Impact

A geo-environmental desk study and site investigation report has been submitted in
support of the application. The Tier | Human Health Risk Assessment has determined that
there are unacceptable concentrations of lead and poly aromatic hydrocarbons (PAH)
within the made ground that would potentially pose a significant risk to human health of
future site occupants where these concentrations are present within private gardens. The
Tie | Controlled Water Risk Assessment has determine that there are no unacceptable
concentrations of potential contaminants within the underlying soils that would pose a
potential risk to controlled waters. The ground gas monitoring and gas risk assessment
has identified that ground gas will not pose a significant risk to the proposed development
or future residents.The risk assessment in respect to future planting identified that the
determinants in the soils will not pose a potential risk.

From the results of the site investigation a number of recommendations are made,
including  further geotechnical and geo-environmental site investigation and a pre-
demolition asbestos survey conducted by a competent person to assess the quantity of
asbestos containing materials in existing buildings.

In light of the findings of the site investigations, a condition is recommended, requiring a
written method statement providing details of a remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified, along with details of a watching brief to
address undiscovered contamination. In addition, the site may require imported top soil for
landscaping purposes and a condition is recommended to ensure the imported soils are
independently tested, to ensure they are suitable for use.

On the basis of the above, it is considered that the proposed development accords with the
ground condition and contamination policies set out in the NPPF, London Plan and the
Hillingdon Local Plan Parts 1 and 2.

7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Part 1 Policy BE1 of the Local Plan requires all new development to improve and maintain
the quality of the built environment in order to create successful and sustainable
neighbourhoods. Saved Part 2 Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part2
- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek to ensure that new development
complements or improves the character and amenity of the area, whilst Policy BE38 seeks
the retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting and
landscaping in development proposals.

London Plan Policy 7.1 sets out a series of overarching design principles for development
in London and policy 7.6 seeks to promote world-class, high quality design and design-led

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 140



change in key locations. In addition to Chapter 7, London Plan policies relating to
density(3.4) and sustainable design and construction (5.3) are also relevant.

The scale, bulk and siting of buildings are key determinants in ensuring that the amenity
and character of established residential areas are not compromised by new development.
The main constraints and opportunities of the site have been identified, in particular its
relationship to Drayton Hall and its location within West Drayton Green Conservation Area.

Layout

The flats have been located at the front of the site with the houses at the rear. The rear of
the site is more appropriate for the scale and privacy requirements of houses, whilst the
flats will utilise the open setting at the front of the site. The building line of the new flats
building would line through with the adjoining Community Centre.The existing access road
is maintained and leads into the site to form a natural divide between the flats and the
houses.

Scale

The proposed development site is somewhat visually disconnected from the surrounding
street space by virtue of its location in the open area, its set back from Station Road, and
the existing boundary tree screen on the site's street frontage. The proposed scale of the
flats building is 4 storeys, with the top floor designed as a subordinate structure with set
backs. The height of the flats building matches the height of the Drayton Hall extension.
The houses are 3 storeys high with the top floors again designed as subordinate structures
within the proposed roof form.

The Council's conservation officer has highlighted that the increased width of the block of
flats is @ concern when compared with the approved scheme. It is not considered that the
proposed building is of a unacceptable scale. It i sufficient distance away from Drayton Hall
that there would be no adverse impact on the setting of that building, furthermore the
existence of Drayton Hall means that a relatively large building is not out of keeping on this
site if sensitively designed with high quality materials.

Appearance

The principle characteristics of the design of the houses are:

- A layered approach with a brick base ground floor level, a white rendered first floor and
lead coloured profiled cladding to the second floor mansard;

- The first floor street elevations have an inset panel that would contain contrasting
materials and or colour.

- The listed wall has been integrated into the design of house units 48-51 inclusive.

The principal characteristics of the flats design are:

- A layered approach with a brick ground floor level, a combination of white rendered and
brick clad first and second levels and lead coloured profiled sheeting to the mansard.

- The street elevations at first and second floor levels are highly glazed, which is
considered appropriate given the open setting and provision of balconies.

Nevertheless it will be important to ensure that appropriate materials landscaping are
secured by condition. Subject to compliance with the above mentioned condition, it is
considered that the scheme is compliant with Policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), relevant London Plan
policies and design guidance.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 141



Outlook and Light

Policy BE20 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the Local Planning Authority will seek to ensure that buildings are laid out so that
adequate daylight, sunlight and amenities of existing houses are safeguarded. Policy BE21
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) states that
planning permission will not be granted for new development, which by reason of its siting,
bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss of residential amenity of established
residential areas.

The closest residential properties to the site is the caretaker's flat at the adjoining
Community Centre to the south of the site. There are no other residential properties in
close proximity to the site. The proposal complies with relevant guidance and is not
considered to result in an over dominant form of development which would detract from the
amenities of neighbouring occupiers, in compliance with Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Similarly, is not considered that there would be a material loss of daylight or sunlight to the
neighbouring property, as the proposed buildings would be sited a sufficient distance away
from the caretaker's flat. Given its orientation and relationship with neighbouring residential
windows, the proposals would not create a material loss of daylight or sunlight to
neighbouring properties, in accordance with Policy BE20 of the Local Plan Part 2 and
relevant design guidance.

Privacy

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the design of new buildings should protect the privacy of occupiers and their
neighbours. (HDAS) Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts, also sets
out a minimum distance of 21m between facing habitable room windows, as measured at
a 45 degree line from the centre of the nearest first floor window.

Detailed measures have been incorporated into the design of the houses backing onto the
Community Centre boundary. These include oriel windows to the first floor bedroom
windows on the rear elevations and obscure glazing to the second floor rear bath room
windows. Similarly oriel windows are proposed to the upper rear windows of the flats
which fall within the 45 degree angle of vision. It is therefore considered that there would be
no loss of privacy to adjoining occupiers of the care takers flat. The development is
therefore in accordance with Policy BE24 of the Local Plan Part 2 and relevant design
guidance.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

External Amenity Areas

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012
requirements the provision of external amenity space, sufficient to protect the amenity of
the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings and which is usable in terms of
its shape and siting. The Council's SPD Residential Layouts specifies amenity space
standards for flats. Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Supplementary
Planning Document - Residential layouts, suggests that the following shared amenity
space for flats and maisonettes is provided:

1 bedroom flat - 20m2 per flat

2 bedroom flat - 25m2 per flat

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 142



3 bed houses -60m2 per house

4 bed houses- 100m2 per house

Each of the houses achieve and in most cases exceed the private amenity space
standards. Based on the current accommodation schedule for the flats, the communal
amenity space requirements would equate to a total of 925 m2. The current development
proposal provides just over 816 m2 of usable communal amenity space, including 60 m2 of
play space provision, which would have good natural surveillance from the proposed
apartments.In addition 20 of the flats also benefit from private space in the form of
balconies. The amenity space provided is considered acceptable, in compliance with the
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) Residential Layouts and Saved
Policy BE23 of the Local Plan.

Unit size

Planning policy requires that all new housing to be wheelchair accessible or easily
adaptable for

residents who are wheelchair users. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan endorses a range of
minimum unit sizes for new residential development in London.

All the individual flats and houses meet London Plan minimum floorspace standards,
providing a good standard of accommodation to future residents. In addition, the submitted
plans and

documentation, including the Design and Access Statement illustrate that wheel chair
standards could be achieved, in accordance with London Plan Policy 3.8.

Outlook and Light

The houses have been designed to be dual aspect. A number of the 2 bedroom flats have
balconies and all have access to the communal amenity area within the scheme. Each of
the houses also have private gardens, which would receive adequate amounts of sunlight.
It is therefore considered that all of the proposed units would benefit from reasonable levels
of outlook and light, in compliance with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part 2 -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), HDAS: Residential Layouts and the
provisions of the London Plan.

Privacy

Saved Policy BE24 states that the design of new buildings should protect the privacy of
occupiers and their neighbours. A minimum separation distance of 21 metres is required to
avoid overlooking and loss of privacy. It is considered that the design of the development
would protect the privacy of future occupiers, in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and relevant design
guidance.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at Paragraph 32 states that plans and
decisions should take account of whether safe and suitable access to the site can be:
achieved for all people; and development should only be prevented or refused on transport
grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Paragraph 35
of NPPF also refers to developments and states that developments should be located and
designed where practical to give priority to pedestrian and cycle movements; create safe
and secure layouts which minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians.

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 143



Local requirements in relation to impacts on traffic demand, safety and congestion are set
out in Local Plan Part 2 policy AM7 which states: The LPA will not grant permission for
developments whose traffic generation is likely to:

(i) unacceptably increase demand along roads or through junctions which are already used
to capacity, especially where such roads or junctions form part of the strategic London
road network, or

(i) prejudice the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety

Access

Access to the site would be via Station Road utilising the existing access arrangement. A
single access road would run through the site providing access to the flats as well as the
houses located to the rear. The proposed site access road is 4.8 metres wide, with a 1.8
metre wide pavement on one side together and a 1 metre service strip on the other side.
The road is tarmacked up the entrance of the mews area of the houses to the rear. The
mews area is a shared surface, with definition in the paving design of the vehicular
movement areas.

"Keep Clear" road marking will be provided at the access to the site, across the width of
the adjacent carriageway, in order to prevent vehicles queuing across the access to the
site.

The existing access will be widened to provide a 10m radius on the left side and a 12m
radius on the right side to allow a refuse vehicle and car to turn into and out of the access.
The access road has been widened to 5.5m to allow for a car and refuse vehicle to pass
one another.

Subiject to the off site highway works, which would be subject to S106/278 agreements, no
objections are raised to the proposed access arrangements.

Traffic Generation

The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment to consider the traffic impacts on the
existing road capacity. The Highway Engineer notes that the estimated the trips for the
consented development was assessed at approximately 0.5 trips per house during the
peak hour. It would therefore be unlikely that with 10 more dwellings, the trip generation
would be significantly different than the consented scheme with another 5 trips in the peak
hours.

Given the small increase in additional trips in the peak hours and in total throughout the
day, it is considered that these can be easily accommodated on the local road network.
These small additional trips are unlikely to materially worsen the current situation on the
local highway network or the wider highway network. Considering Paragraph 32 of the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), these increases are minimal and could not
be considered in any way 'severe'. Therefore, it is considered that there would be no
unacceptable highway or transport impacts as a result of the proposed development, in
accordance with relevant policies.

Parking
The London Plan Policy 6.1 states that 'the need for car use should be reduced, with Table

6.2 stating that there should be a maximum of 1 space for 1-2 bed units. The application
proposes a total of 64 parking spaces, including 6 disabled spaces, together with 10 motor

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 144



cycle spaces. This equates to 1.22 spaces per unit. The Council's standards allow for a
maximum provision of 1.5 spaces per communal parking per residential unit, a total of 79.5
spaces in this case.

The 13 houses would be served by 24 ar parking spaces equating to 1.9 spaces per
dwelling. The 40 flats would be served by 40 car parking spaces mainly within a lower
ground floor car park, equating to 1 space per dwelling.

The site has a PTAL rating of 2 and it is considered that residents of the proposed
development would have relatively good access to all day to day facilities and to the wider
London area, via reasonable public transport connections. The proposed average 1.2
parking spaces per dwelling therefore meets the NPPF policy guidance, by being in line
with expected existing and future need, taking into account the type, mix and use of the
development. In addition, the provision of electric charging points can be secured by
condition.

It should be noted that the proposed parking ratio is similar to that provided in the approved
scheme for the site.

Overall, it is considered that the proposals strike the requisite balance between parking
restraint, to promote alternative travel modes and the provision of adequate parking. The
proposed level of parking meets Council standards as well as London Plan standards. As
such, the Council's Highways Engineer has raised no objection to the level of car parking.
The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies
AM14 and AM15 and relevant London Plan policies.

Cycle Storage

The submitted plans indicate that secure cycle storage can be provided for 40 cycle
spaces in this lower ground floor car park for the flats. Secure cycle parking for the houses
can be accommodated within individual curtilages. The scheme would therefore be in
accordance with the Council's standards and Local Plan Part 2 Saved Policies AM9.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

SECURITY
The flats overlook the main amenity area providing good visual contact with the site. Details
of fencing and other security arrangements, including the boundary treatment and CCTV
have been secured by condition.

7.12 Disabled access

The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services
from direct discrimination on the basis of a protected characteristic, which includes those
with a disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and
within the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment
can be incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think
ahead to take steps to address barriers likely have a defined model that meets best
practice design guidance. The submitted documentation has explained how the principles
of access and inclusion have been applied to this scheme.

The topography at the eastern end of the mews area contains the basement of the existing
building and the access road drops at this point as it slopes down towards the basement
car park. This creates the need for the gently slopping ramp approaches. however, level
access thresholds are incorporated at all entrances. The main entrance door to the new
houses will be wide enough for wheelchair-access and buggy access. The pedestrian foot

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 145



path from the Station Road will be within accepatble gradients for the people with mobility
difficulties. All private paths leading to the entrance of the houses will meet Building
Regulations requirements. In addition,10% of the parking provision will be designed as
disabled parking with larger bays for access.

With regard to the proposed units, since 1 October 2015 and the introduction of the
National Housing Standards, other standards such as the Lifetime Homes and Wheelchair
Housing Design Guide have been superseded by the Mayor's Housing Standards MALP
2016. London Plan policy (and Housing SPG) Policy 3.8 Housing Choice is relevant to
accessibility. London Plan policy 3.8c requires all new homes to be built to lifetime homes
standards. London Plan Policy 3.8d requires ten per cent of new housing to be designed to
be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for residents who are wheelchair users. From
October 2015 for major residential schemes this is interpreted as requiring ten per cent of
new housing to meet Building Regulation M4 (3) 'wheelchair user dwellings' and the
remainder to be built to M4(2) (equivalent to lifetime homes). Appropriately worded
conditions are recommended accordingly, to ensure compliance with these standards.

The topography at the eastern end of the mews area contains the basement of the existing
building and the access road drops at this point as it slopes down towards the basement
car park. This creates the need for the gently slopping ramp approaches.

The Access Officer has made a number of observations in relation to the application as
originally submitted. These have been addressed by the provision of revised plans.

Subject to conditions, it is considered that lifetime homes equivalent and wheel chair

standards can be achieved, in accordance with the London Plan Policies 3.8, 7.1 and 7.2

and in general

compliance with the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon".
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

The development would introduce a total of 43 dwellings, therefore triggering the affordable
housing requirement threshold of 10 units as set out in London Plan policy 3.13. Policy H2
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies relates to Affordable Housing with the
Council seeking 35% of all new units in the borough delivered as affordable housing. The
Council note however, subject to the provision of robust evidence, it will adopt a degree of
flexibility in its application of Policy H2 to take account of tenure needs in different parts of
the borough as well as the viability of schemes.

On this basis, 18 of the 53 units proposed in the scheme would have to be provided as
affordable housing to comply with the requirements of Policy H2, to be secured by way of
the S106 Agreement.

A full Financial Viability Appraisal (FVA) has been carried out in support of this application,
which has been reviewed by an appropriately qualified, third party, financial consultant. The
original FVA was for a level of affordable housing set at 15%, but this was found to be too
hard to justify on the face of developer profits. After several rounds of negotiations the
viable level of affordable housing provision has been set at 22% in habitable room terms,
comprising 3 x three bed houses (Affordable Rent Tenure) and 3 x three bed flats (Shared
Ownership Tenure).

The differences in the level of affordable housing between applications for this site relate to

the fact that the originally approved scheme was a speculative proposal, without proper
viability testing, as well as further uncertainty in the residential market due to a changing

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



political environment.

The NPPF states that planning obligations should not be so onerous as to make schemes
unviable, and that where appropriate the development economics of proposals should be
taken into account. In this case there would be substantial benefits arising from the
scheme which would outweigh the limited provision of affordable housing.

The FVA has been scrutinised and is considered to be accurate. The Housing Officer is
satisfied with the level of provision and tenure provided and it is not considered that a
greater level of affordable housing could be achieved in this case.

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

TREES AND LANDSCAPING

Local Plan Part 2 Policy BE38 stresses the need to retain and enhance landscape features
and provide for appropriate (hard and soft) landscaping in new developments. An
arboricultural survey has been carried out making an assessment of existing trees on and
within the vicinity of the site.

The tree screen to the road, the trees to the boundary side of the drive, and the tree group
to the community centre boundary will all be retained. The trees to the south side of the
drive and the smaller trees dotted around the grassed area will largely be removed to
facilitate the new development.

It is proposed to use some of the cut from the construction of the new lower ground floor
car park to significantly level the existing slope of the grassed forecourt area. This would
make the area more usable for amenity reasons.

The tree screen to the western boundary will be largely retained. The tree survey identified
significant trees on the adjoining sites on the northern and southern boundaries, however
these trees would not be affected by the development as they will adjoin the gardens of the
new houses.

At present there is no soft landscaping or any form of planting to the rear of the site. The
small loss of trees to facilitate the development will be mitigated by the replacement of
significant areas of hard surfacing by garden areas and public planting beds and the
inclusion of a significant number of 'urban’ trees around the new mews area. An additional,
sense of space would be created by adoption of an open front garden policy with the
boundaries defined by planting rather than fences.

It is proposed that the access road will be tarmacked with a traditional paved footpath from
the site entrance to the entrance of the mews area at the rear. The mews area would be
shared surface with permeable block paving. The paving design would allow for definition of
the vehicular use area.

At present the site is enclosed by a variety of boundary wall constructions: low brick wall to
the street front, cast iron railings to the former graveyard and listed wall to the rear northern
boundary and part western boundary. These will remain as existing, subject to any
necessary maintenance. New piers and railings will be constructed along the street
frontage above the low brick wall to enhance the security of the site. This is considered
acceptable in terms of the visual amenity of the conservation area. The security fence to
the residual western boundary and part southern boundary will be retained with the barbed
wire top removed and disguised with suitable climbing plants. The southern boundary is

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 147



defined by existing outbuildings and poor quality timber fencing. These will be replaced by
to the front southern boundary new timber fences.

The Trees and Landscape Officer raises no objections subject to conditions to ensure that
the detailed landscape proposals preserve and enhance the character and appearance of
the area and off It is considered that the scheme is on the whole acceptable and in
compliance with Saved Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

ECOLOGY

Local Plan Part 1 Policy EM7 and Saved Policy EC2 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seek the promotion of nature conservation interests.
Saved Policy EC5 seeks the retention of features, enhancements and creation of new
habitats. London Plan Policy 7.19[c] seeks ecological enhancement. Although the trees in
the site may be valuable for biodiversity, the application site itself is not considered to have
a high ecological value, due to the lack of potential for protected species.

A Phase 1 Habitat Survey, protected species assessment and bat survey of the site have
been carried out as part of the recently approved application. The Council's Sustainability
Officer noted that the proposed development results in the loss of several trees and
although the site is unlikely to have significant value for wildlife, the National Planning Policy
Framework requires a net gain in biodiversity value.

An ecological report has been submitted in support of the current application, which
includes details of a designated wild life area.

A condition similar to that imposed on the approved scheme, requiring details of an
ecological enhancement, to promote and enhance wildlife opportunities within the
landscaping and the fabric of the buildings is recommended. The scheme could include,
living screens against walls of the development, bat and bird boxes, habitat walls and a
range of plants to encourage and support wildlife, together with an area of land dedicated to
wildlife habitat.

Subject to compliance with this condition, it is considered that the ecological mitigation is
satisfactory. The proposal therefore complies with Policy 7.19 of the London Plan which
requires that development protects and enhances biodiversity, and Local Plan Part 1 Policy
EMY7 and relevant Local Plan Part 2 polices.

7.15 Sustainable waste management

There is a bin store within the ground floor of the building containing ten 1100 litre wheelie-
bins with easy access from the road. Waste storage for the houses is provided within their
curtilege.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

Sustainability policy is now set out in the London Plan (2011), at Policy 5.2. Part A of the
policy requires development proposals to make the fullest contribution to minimising
carbon dioxide emissions by employing the hierarchy of: using less energy; supplying
energy efficiently; and using renewable technologies. Part B of the policy currently requires
non domestic buildings to achieve a 35% improvement on building regulations 2013.Parts
C & D of the policy require proposals to include a detailed energy assessment.

The scheme suitably demonstrates a 40% reduction in CO2 improvement on building
regulations 2010, largely through the use of PV panels. The roof plans show 400 sq.m of

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 148



PV panels and these are these incorporated into the design.

Subject to a condition securing the on site renewable energy, it is considered that the
scheme will have satisfactorily addressed the issues relating to the mitigation and
adaptation to
climate change and to minimising carbon dioxide emissions, in compliance with Policies
5.2, 5.13 and 5.15 of the London Plan, Policy PT1. EM1 of Hillingdon Local Plan Part 1 and
the NPPF.

7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policies OE7 and OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seek to ensure that new development incorporates appropriate
measures to mitigate against any potential risk of flooding. The site falls outside any flood
zones as defined in the Council's own Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) and is
within flood zone 1 on the Environment Agency maps. A flood risk assessment is therefore
not a requirement, although a Drainage Strategy would need to demonstrate that it would
incorporate sustainable drainage techniques and reduce the risk of flooding in accordance
with the requirements of Policies 5.11, 5.12 and 5.13 of the London Plan and the NPPF.

SuDs Report and Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted in support of this
application.

A basement car park is included as part of this proposal. A new surface water drainage
connection to the main sewer is proposed which will then mean pumping from the site.

The Council's Flood and Drainage Officer has assessed the submitted documentation, and
whilst generally satisfied with the proposed drainage strategy, has requested further
information regarding the need to rely on pumping water from the site.

The applicant has explained that the reason storm water from the police station will need to
be pumped, is due to the site being much lower than the road, and by the time the surface
water network reaches the road, due to the depth of the attenuation tanks, the discharge
cannot be conveyed by gravity. With regard to storage in the event of pump failure, the
storage provided by the manholes and the pipe network at the site do not contribute to the 1
in 100 year storm event plus climate change, as this is all provided in the proposed storage
tanks. Therefore the storage provided in the surface water pipes and manholes will be
more than sufficient to deal with any pump failures, which are expected to be unlikely, as
there will be a duty and standby pumps system.

The drainage strategy would have to demonstrate the surface water run-off generated to
and including the 1 in 100 year critical storm will not exceed the run-off from the
undeveloped site following the corresponding rainfall event. The scheme would also need
to include provision of on-site surface water storage to accommodate the critical duration
1in 100 year storm event, with an allowance for climate change. This could be secured by
condition in the event of an approval.

Subject to compliance with this condition, it is considered that the scheme will have
satisfactorily addressed drainage and flood related issues, in compliance with the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 Policies OE7 and OES, Policies 5.13 and 5.15 of the London
Plan and the aspirations of the NPPF.

7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

NOISE

The Government's National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) which replaces PPG2

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 149



(Planning and Noise) gives the Government's guidance on noise issues. Policy 7.15 of the
London Plan seeks to reduce noise and minimise the existing and potential adverse
impacts of noise on, from, within, or in the vicinity of, development proposals. A noise
assessment has been carried out in support of the application and concludes that the
principle of residential accommodation in acceptable in this location, subject to mitigation
measures outlined within the report.

The application site is on a busy high road. It is therefore reasonable to expect that traffic is
likely to be high enough to affect the residential amenities of future occupiers.

A baseline noise survey was undertaken to establish prevailing noise levels across the
development site. The acoustic assessment contains recommendations, which, if
implemented, would reduce noise to levels that comply with reasonable standards of
comfort, as defined in British Standard BS 8233:1999 'Sound insulation and noise
reduction for buildings - Code of Practice'. It concludes that the site is suitable for
residential development subject to a suitable scheme of mitigation measures being
incorporated into the design. Further detail on noise control measures will be provided
during detailed design.

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit notes that the survey may underestimate the
traffic noise levels received at the site and further information would be required. It is
considered that the issue of sound insulation can be addressed by the imposition of a
suitable condition. Subject to compliance with this condition, it is considered that the
scheme would be in compliance with Policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Local Plan part 2.

AIR QUALITY

The proposed development is within the declared AQMA. The development is introducing
sensitive receptors into a poor air quality area. As part of the approved scheme, the
Council's Environmental Protection Unit requested a Section 106 obligation of up to
£12,500 for contributions to the air quality monitoring network in the area. It is
recommended that this planning obligation be rolled forward to the current scheme, in the
event of an approval.

Subiject to the above mentioned planning obligation, it is considered that the impact of the
development on the air quality of the area can be mitigated, to the extent that refusal of the
application on these grounds would not be justified, in accordance with Policy EM8 of the
Local Plan Part 1.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The main issues raised have been dealt with in the main body of the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) is
concerned with securing planning obligations to supplement the provision recreation open
space, facilities to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community,
social and education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other
development proposals. These saved UDP policies are supported by more specific
supplementary planning guidance.

The Council's Section 106 Officer has reviewed the proposal, as have other statutory
consultees. The comments received indicate the need for the following contributions or
planning obligations to mitigate the impacts of the development, which have been agreed
with the applicant:

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 150



(i) Transport: All on site and off site highways works as a result of this proposal, including
improvements to the site access.

(i) Affordable Housing at 22% in habitable room terms, comprising 3 x three bed houses
(Affordable Rent Tenure) and 3 x three bed flats (Shared Ownership Tenure).

(iii) Construction Training: either a construction training scheme delivered during the
construction phase of the development or a financial contribution

(iv) Air Quality: The applicant provides a financial contribution in the sum of £12,500.

(v) Travel Plan

(vi) Project Management and Monitoring Fee: a contribution equal to 5% of the total cash
contribution to enable the management and monitoring of the resulting agreement.

The applicant has agreed to these proposed Heads of Terms, which are to be secured by
way of the S106 Agreement. Overall, it is considered that the level of planning benefits
sought is adequate and commensurate with the scale and nature of the proposed
development, in compliance with Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 -Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

There are no enforcement issues associated with this site.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 151



2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable.

10. CONCLUSION

This application represents modifications to a previously approved scheme to provide an
additional 10 residential units on the site. No objection is raised to the principle of the
residential use of this site. The density of the proposed development falls within London
Plan guidance.

It is considered that the discussions and negotiations between relevant parties on the
design and layout of the development and the extent of amendments undertaken have
yielded a scheme suitable for its context. The scheme will introduce a built form that is
appropriate to its Conservation Area context and the townscape character of the area, by
removing redundant and degraded commercial buildings.

The archaeological position of the site has been extensively explored and has been
satisfactorily addressed. It is not considered that the scheme would be detrimental to the
setting of the nearby listed Drayton Hall.

Furthermore, the development would not result in unacceptable impacts on the amenities
of neighbouring properties and would provide good environmental conditions for future
occupiers.

The applicant has offered an acceptable package of contributions to be secured by way of
a proposed S106 Agreement. In addition, access, parking, drainage, ecology and highway
safety issues have been satisfactorily addressed.

It is recommended that the application should be supported, subject to a Section 106 Legal

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 152



Agreement and conditions.

11. Reference Documents

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (8th November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

London Plan 2016

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

The Greater London Authority Sustainable Design and Construction (2006)
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Council's Supplementary Planning Document - Air Quality

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010)

Contact Officer: Karl Dafe Telephone No: 01895 250230

Major Applications Planning Committee -
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 153



El Sub Sta

Notes:

Site boundary

Graveyard

" ot
|, Shelters T}
. ' \

L
I
'
v

!
Sheltef; :

Youthl. '
Centre

Site Address:

Sports Facili

.

; ooy

! e Ty

+ Cycle Way LA A
|

Y

\\\\\\
- )

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database

rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref:

Former West Drayton Police Station,
Station Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Scale:
12768/APP/2016/1580 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major page 154 February 2017

MILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Annex

Plans for
Major Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 1st February
2017

THILLINGDON

UUUUUU

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address WARRENDER PRIMARY SCHOOL OLD HATCH MANOR RUISLIP

Development: Provision of new two-storey classroom block comprising 8 new classrooms,
staff room, library/ICT suite, technology suite, studio, breakfast club, plus
ancillary facilities; increased parking provision; rearrangement of sports
pitches and provision of new multi-use games area (MUGA) together with
associated steps and ramp; removal of existing modular building and
demolition of existing breakfast club building; and ancillary development.

LBH Ref Nos: 4311/APP/2016/4295

Date Plans Received: 29/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 29/11/2016
Date Application Valid: 29/11/2016 16/01/2017

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 156



207/ HYM / 0014 LESE ;

ey agary tuwng
ONINNY1d

i) LS

e 00 s

] | =ngmalin

g =0 -—c

T =] :

sy = = e

L il Yo e

= == - pauimeg
ug|d inofeq ais Buysixy
100435 Kl Japusiep)

oo Zies odal v Rl
a5 N AYE IN
ok 0|
Al w0, i Aiph wion
B0 TN, NOp S
s Duymanioos  adgo pasgsbay

=555 SIgVOdV &

Wl e wa

By
U S - Guoiy)

AL N alouge
s&:!twumski: 0% 1 S oe S B
el 5

suoisuedxT [00UIS NOGONITIHE

Anu3 jo wiod eg i

1931044
fiounog uopBulliH
jo yBnouog uopuon
JualD
nauky] | U | e e

Page 157




pansesal jybukdon &) B s Ounste £0-107d - 00UDS ARURA L3 RS SIS LODGOE 0500 |

¥ 06 SEG0 002 LT B8 g L O e =y ] e ]Hﬂ
0SZL-1 3eds
L0 | UYL LLEGE ——
‘uoismEs sy fimwa] I | I | | T B e
wgzlL oalk 71 08 gz 0
Uongdussag) Alipgiing
0048 bESE WP by B0 Aty
5] ey ang muiien ....
wing [ p— N - ;
o_aum.:u__h.u e HY oy - z
SOz suny o pom—
- oo 2
KANVIHNE % P i)
i SO poutican|

ue|d uoneso a)s
jooyos Alewld Jepuaiiepn

AL -

0D SIPEJIR MMM

000 Zh8L 0Z(0)  1BL

avE LN Y6 LN

uopUo] UopuGe

AR, NI, bE fem Hop, vE

8sNCH SIOYOHY  @sSnoH SIOvOdY
saiyo Buneuy D 200 16

=521 | SIgVOIV &

T R CEEAE R W

15 W iy Ay Lopl

uneD uoplanmi - CHOE PYH BESINH IR IRIEH 10
0 DN uop | |EUS ANBUILL] JOPARLIE Y

Page 158

i s

suolsuedxy
|ooyog Anug
JO w04 enxg
-L03AroHd
[lounog uopBullji{
Jo yBnolog uopuo]

3l

ddy | 42 | wo uondussag) seg pey)

310 AT

“S310N




0zl

el

amtrg by bing
)

{H]
P

i

it

3t

'ii 11

Page 159

OLD HATCH MANOR

1hard Lanchcape Lierd
) vt oo
e B e A

Martariag | emhobion of matng mbile
L i i b s ot

Notes,

Crinwig i S i i etropurtion e st 1
gty

T g - Bt L
i e

T E [ S G

! i
= g st s ey
i Dutn, o i

Adgury

m—-.. ) o i
[T iy~ Lt yr=yho s
100 bt et bencrg.

13 o s pmbe b

i

raimag, b g o ared sl st
Heghery § b e, R 1o g, i s st st

i

Lk Bt HLL Enpertfrevings s ot

Piest ket
p= o b s ey
T
o campa e
Bt acld ek B 10T o d b 1
[ et B 25 Sk M b
Frern o Bk S B 58 22, mh— 3
Sop b ek Wik B S e b

[ ol bt B
e et 23 -}
e e Vo Bl e fravenss B L e
W T ok e R |

= =l
o kg
e i 1 e et Memm
R
b it
T e L
i ok & e
S Wy et
Ot T ek oSl by N &
e T ot WA by st
Lo heed e s vt
]t e et
0% il s o e i
[ ————
= e o
== -
el ek, e

4 gty ar] g, comatien ok gy wth S repe—— et = 1 T (9]

i b 5 ST
.

e o i st o i

[ro—
#3 o i i, s b b
b, o i
o L7
D s e

MEES-200 "

oy



T N e ) e s £

10 yBnoiog uopuoT

s o ks a0n g w7 R

Dok s o Vi 77

B




v oy
ST s

uoissiwgng Buluuelgq

s

NVd NOLLN3 L3y
3341 ONILSIXT
i)

v s s |
e w3 ) o i, S, o 52 Ly

uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

SO T

L

uopBuljjiH jo
ybGnoiog uopuo

jooyos Aiewg

13puaiepy
PR

sy )
panowas 39 of saad) Bupspog .

)
paurela aq of saa Bupsg %

[ EBEN]

i A A o A P A

THE RIDGEWAY

—

ﬁ

o B




RTOE0L BT

T T i

o g h

e

e
meih RS O049009I-090
s - ‘s

Buiuued

NY1d
SINIWNIONVHEY
TYHINIO
i

RO .. S—

DILNOSITIVI |

uopBulijiy

jo ybnolog uopuoy

looyas
fewig 1apuaiep

% -
.
NOUNSI0 | AIVD OMAGH
0 5y oS S
Lo o Y TR 0

_
PR R, MG ¢
s s
N S TR
o T U1 T T S
e b L T TR |

som [
Hog/iols
weid [
wooisseiy [
uonenaiy |
uonesnsiuwpy [

puaban uswypedsq

s g oy s S

Posin 5 il wm il e 38 S

I va o v inase
P e gerayr

Page 162



TELEL L SOTIAE

0 Tl g2 B

-5

oh o s
Buiuued
SNOILYA3T3
JIVIS JOHY1

s o0t v
PPRPNRSMRR, -1 s o S

IHLNOSITIVD

uopBuliiy
Jo yBnolog uopuoT

]

looyas
fewig 1apuaiepy

Dwa g oy e e

P ) I B g e o b

1Sy St o s s
st ) B 0% e TS ik i [
PRIy 5 Y Pyt P S s
LI A3 el i 8 ki Y




(I E T

Y 1 T L 01

v 00}0E-Y

i o)
Bujuued
S3IOVINIaE®
SNOILD3S LIS
0380d0¥d

Al
WA TR RIS LI

1o g0 e 4
N3 T g ) e sy 2 TR

SI0¥IEY 40 AINVLINENDD HEISI0 ¥

ALNOSITIVO

uopBul|iH
jo yBnoiog uopuo]
AWy
|ooyas
fuewig 1apusiepy
P
TS o
_.“.7_
HOELATHIERD Lve | oM ATy
e L
& pagrpdn sleus Ot Hy




-1

e e T e ™

Vid _ LO-H-WIN-EN-DHY-LEB00VN

3INSSI Y3AN3L

1NOAYT 3AILYOIAN|
L1NVd J00H
Tl -

e e

002 Bl 68 vy L
i v i

g s
i s, 1 g Ve v
o STV AT
=g v g ey

=5 SIAvOUV &

e e

Waig

g
uoisuedx3 jooyas |

fIBLIu Japusuepy
L23roud

j1ounog
wopBul||iH Jo yBnouog uopuo

W3l

“ON39E

‘S3U0N

DNV B0 UGS LB 3
ASILVHES ADHINT HIOHIHEVM

SHL O M4 JEVE T WALEAE Ad

FHL MO HCOLYWHOIN TROW B0 TLON
Iy 514008 THE

NO VI Ad 3ivrxOALY Iy 2 L 8
ALY 51 WILSAS Ad 40O0H NO AV

et SO ANIWIDNYHEY IMLVIIONT

VOO HEAMIS WY LN
HOOOH! SINASIS WELSAS D Lds
03 LK MESNIONGD HOOGET NG

WY

AHVHR 40 3L SHIANEE S3L4353V0
OHEID X0 BOGAN| OHE DL
DHLIINNCD LING SHA BOOALNO ¥

Page 165




rage—1oo




g
ElSubsta
) \ 3

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Warrender Primary School
Eastcote & East Ruislip

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale;
4311/APP/2016/4295 1:1,500
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 167 February 2017

~NILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address BERKELEY PARK APARTMENTS MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT
HARLINGTON

Development: Proposed Change of Use from C1 (APARTMENTS HOTEL) to SUI-GENERIS
Homeless persons hostel use and associated external works

LBH Ref Nos: 31642/APP/2016/4411

Date Plans Received: 08/12/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 07/12/2016
Date Application Valid: 08/12/2016 12/12/2016
19/01/2017

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 168



Flelds

0B

SRS

HALL LANE

Ash Apartments

El
Sub Sta

Holiday Inn
Hotel

Oak Apaortments

SITE AREA = 0.37 hectares

Apgﬁnm ents

Bl Sub Sta
BATH ROAD S
24 7m 24.7m
Harlington Corner
S
0 25 50 75 100 125m
Scale 1:1250 216
] [—' B Sub Sta / [ |
NOTES: - DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS D . The Ci must verify all di ai fha site befora setiing out,

DA

commencing work, or making any shop drawings. Any discrepancies must be reported to the Contract Administrator before proceeding.

A Rev Revision notes Initials Date
HILLINGDON Project Scale Drawn by
Lounon BERKELEY PARK APARTMENTS, 1:1250 @ A4 | SAM
MARLBOROUGH CRESCENT, UB3 5FG Date Checked by
RESIDENTS SERVICES, CAPITAL PROGRAMME Description 25/1116
26/10, CVIC CENTRE, UXBRIDGE, MIDDLESEX, B8 1UW SITE LOGATION BLAN Drawing No. v,
Fex 01895, 277, 224 pic 4 2016/D/204/P/001




v ¢00/¥02/a/910z

S—" e
LikEE £ I8 0051

| ETU) 3
NY'ld 2LIS
WO

945 BAN 'SFAVH
ANGDEIED HENOHOETHYW

SININLEVLY MEvd ATT3MUEE
LD

¥IT LLT SERLO %04

N1 EEN IHINGD 1M "01/3T
INAVUICH TYLEYD SIONIS SINIOISTY

|
NOGOONITTIH

L

= ] T =

I I e e e K]

8% =530VdS ONIMHYd ¥VI TVI0L

§30VdS 038 681
SLINM IVL0L £

SN uosied w/g PAE L ON ¥
suun uossad p pag z o LE
spun uossed 5 pag EON §
sjjun uosiad g peq pON £

‘NOLLYAQOWWOD0V
a3s0d0¥d 40 3INAIHOS

AT el v TV L T
FLre ST Py [ERAA T 7] e

e ey b2y 5 S 1 Ll S 8 e Pt
4 Tt Bt k4§ . e S

005: 1 ejoag

R Rt Dl e

| ) I T I

wpg or 0T 0e [+]8 0
Y .3 S
../ N e
0, G TILOH NNI AYOINTOH
WSS i psed | Bupped
NN oy
,./. 5% ,,..{.‘. A
Ry
SN N0
b S i e, =
s et

—

349 HONOHOE Y

i
—eeeef BIOIS B

[ [T]

|

sseif ¥ Y400|g

SAVYD IHL

3

ONYT WHYH ONILSIXS

133418 HOIH




v | €00/d/¥02/a/9102

A3 Uh SAUMNHIT

n:_oala 2@9&;
ETL) 1

HEY - L MO8 40 AYIHAND 1%14 O380(0Hd

HAIM SNV SNILSIXT
O | i DEH

SLNINLEYEY HHYd ATTIHEEE

AT

LT SERLD iAnd
111 062 SRAD HAl
MNi AN CTHINGD DIND "01/3T
NSO WLYD SIS SINIOISTY
f—

INCDCL a1 4

W

o | —c— =

Jyrvi | e | vy 3

siecnu Jey uy Bujbueys oN

§30vdS 038 vE
SLINNTVIOLE

s)up uosiad Z paq | oN L
sliuf) vosied p pag Z o g
NOLLYOOWWO2OY 03S0d0Nd

S)un vosiad g olpnig oN L
s|jun wossed Z peq | oN g
ONLLSIXT

‘NOLLYOOWWO20Y 40 31NA3HIS

Al frm FTvre o

00Zi\ ®pag

|
woz St o4

NV1d 400714 ANOD3S

wompay
Jafiuno

_
3=

_ :.Ezv-..m\\. j o]
P

e

s \._ﬁw__. A =

EH Aw@ =

_ —Wd/_“ IIEH _.W
W

3=

Wooipog ¥ I}
E | .@V

.
uieg L)
i =

| Lo pag
- _qmm___zn.._

|
1~ 0

NV1d 0074 1SHId

Jabunon

(¥ Te T
| ehunay

wonpag

.,}.ﬁ@

— (IPH

I pn
| aliunoy

NV1d 400714 ANNOHO

woaipag
{ abunory

(H]

_
=

S

Lonipag
J @B

Luonipag

—t———————

Page 171




Y | ¥00/d/¥0e/a/9L02

HY0 - 2 H2078 40 AVTHIAD LY 1= 0380H0Hd
HLIM SNY Id NILSIXE

bt
SININLHVAY Hevd AST3ME3E

e

FEL (LT SERID ¥y

" 111 05T S8R10 Wy

MOL BN XISTIO0M 'IVONEKN ‘JHINID JIND '01/3T
INAYEO0H TYLVD

NOUDNITTIH

L

wo ] S T

Lify | [ Pmenc; wywpowairze pesodong| ¥

ooz}
wol S v £ Z L O

NVId ¥0074 ANOD3S

NVd d00714 LSyl

§30vdS 03849
SLINN TVLOL 8}
S}|Ur) UCS1d  Spog ¢ 8BIET ON €
s}un uosied y peq Z oN |
s)jun uossed Z peq | oN 4
NOILYOOWWOI2Y 0350d40dd

s)up uossed Z peq | oN ¥i
s8)INg 0PN ON ¥
ONILSIX3

INOILVOOWWODDV 40 3TINJ3HOS

AN e OIS D6 S0 B0

Dy 25214 300y Fpt s S, g g by
PO R sy ARSRID 558 Lt Dunatin 85 i B
Tema e

Elion

Page 172




v | £00/d/02/a/9102

9t-Libe _ aa eva0z: L
HOUG

HOOTH IULINID 40 AV IHIAQ S1v14 0350d0Hd
H.LIM SNV Td ONILSIXA
oy

SINIWLHYEY MHvd ATT1IHYIE

oud

¥IT LLT G6RI0 XD
ill O0SZ SBRIO *19)
Mni BB 'XISIIQAIN ‘IDQHBXN “TWINID DA '01/3T
INAVNI0Nd WLIYD
SIJNANIS SINIGISIY

aieg _w_m._cg Laisinoy _.,um

L/i | - [ Preaies omds @ ¥ siovhor| ¥

SRGWOU 3100 ﬂcxm_.xu |
sasqunu qun pasodoiy O
aq 1! N4

$30vds aag €&
SLINN TY.LOL £

syun uosued ¢ pag z oN T
S}un uosiadg Pagg oN G
NOILYQOWWOJ2Y a3S0doNd

spun uosiad-Z peq | ON §i
ONILSIX3

‘NOILYJOWWODDY 4O 37NA3HOS

_ ~ NVId 30013 _ANNOYHO _Dmmomom&
. ) fra— ;
i | | | | | i
i I i 1 1 i 1
L R b
N | T + P
e = D L
Lot
wooagag j . ]
S— /32nn00 \
o V \
- 3 b e ! \
. e a
) Ve
. ool 5021 F 7®8
wol s v £ T o_owm ik = usy | o0l
AYO T olg 2018 Alnad .
H>018 |
B . e ﬁ‘ \
— - D i/\
TN NN TR P — / ﬁ
gﬁ%&fﬂﬂu i . : ONLSX3 .
NVYId 80074 ONODIS Q3S0d0dd Nveh 400714 LS¥ld 3350d0¥d
p i — ﬂ
| Jmﬁﬁm | = et @ otrswmu, = i .
e ikl Rl \ il . bl
) D f 2] a3
VR wwo ﬁ B rave {7 \ | Ve @ ;E
H\\ s ¢ I} “ e 1 / wU ave /7y e ¢ -
\\\ Y s 4 B \“ Fay o
\ | Pa | red B pag fg. P08 ;EMHW#ME*M L s wog | P4 POl g o s RS
vz - ] Loy il J S - RS
MO ZANg ~FamiAag NYd 400 QIHL d3S0d0yd

$

O
S

3
;
-

\E
N\

a& TR

.

4m

/2huopy L P agony [

s 5 ~ TWEoRpsy T T/AUSSIpEY .

) A T r —~ sidoygony
A, et o Li B . P

\ i s m,\\\ i p \ mﬂ §
w0 L o e

Page 173




S00/d/¥02/a/9L0T

YO 2 HIOTE 40
SNOILYATTS SNILSIKE
—_—

SINSW LAY Mevd ASTINEIE

s

L1 44 SERID xmj
11E DG SEELG sl
| ogan _ﬁ! IOGIEENN CIMINID N ‘013

S

L 1
NOTON T

$30vdS 038 99
SLINM TYLOL 8L
SHun vosled  5peg Z ebIEON £
siun vosied y paq  ON 24
siunuosied Z paq L ON €
NOLLYQOWWODOY 0350d40dd

syun uossad z peq | oN ¥1
SOUNS OIPMIS ON ¥
ONILSIXI

*NOILYQOWWOJ2Y 40 3TNA3HIS

N0 8L TV TP (00 O
Emmeat b sy oA 5 5 Pt 0

ik

., pher iy
(B Y 0N Jea e

8

ok &k £ .2

ANUZS._O ON) SNOILVAI T3 ONILSIX3

NOIWLYATI HLHON

—— Deram i} KO0 T NED =N

Page 174




v | 900/d/¥02/0/9102

W13 - E HO0TE 40 INIWADNYEEY S1V14
0I50d0Hd DNIMOHS SNV DNILSINT

HOLLHIEIT

SININLHVEY HEYd ATTENNEE

AT

% LT §6BID g

111 0SE S6RM0 el

M1 gEN THINGD UMD '01/3T
INNVESOES TWLYD ‘SIJAKIS SINIOISHY

st
NOUGOODNIT T4
v | e | e
SN LN msum_xmu
syaglunu yun pasodoid m
$30¥dS 034 sy

SLINM TVLOL &

SHun uosiad p paq Z ON 9
s)un uosiad g pag y oN £
NOILYOOWWO22Y 03S0d0Nd

sjun uosiad g paq | oN Z}
{ONLLSIX3

‘NOLLYOOWWOJDY 40 3TNQ3HIS

IRV L i TV LEN O

s By AR 5k et S 5 e Pl
[ y—

s

s ey
wuoj 0 Joop

BOURIIUG M —|

NOIYATISE 1SV3A

SIONVHO ON - SNOILVYAT I ONILSIX3

un sabie)
gy o} Joop
SOUEAUD MaN

PRAOWR

NV1d 0014 ANNOYHO

]

Page 175

373 HLHON




‘@E

-
Vg

;—ﬁgizg%i::] 7to12
e
g SO
Ty b U
| e as

24,7m

[iSheltey

gl
fa

) El Sub Sta

Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary Berkeley Apartments OF HILLINGDON
Ui - Residents Services
For identification purposes only. Heathrow V|||age Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the

R : Planning Application Ref: Scale:

opyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act). 31642/APP/2016/4411 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant )’-
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: NS

© Crown copyright and database

rights rdnance Surve = - /| I {— )7} .
o Major paqe 176 | February 2017 MILL INGDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAREFIELD PLACE THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Section 73 application to vary condition 2 (drawing nos.) for a Minor Material
Amendment (MMA) to planning permission ref. 12571/APP/2015/3649
(Demolition of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing
Grade I listed building and erection of a replacement extension building to
provide 25 self-contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement
car, cycle and motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces
and landscape enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main
vehicular entrance on The Drive and existing secondary servicing access with
ancillary outbuildings) comprising changes to basement layout.

LBH Ref Nos: 12571/APP/2016/3950

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 177



| T

ii.iﬁ%!”

L
S|
ol
il iis
. § g b
- i g& i
i $ E% !
il
% =




= Salwoy anaibloutyy ﬂuu:r_u._mn_mx

.,...
] E_ 0044 >
-B ) - oy
~oveolEn t\/'\

Zioug ung Wsweseg pasny | WRULAP ‘B BUL 9061 PIRRIEH ==, e
3 B

A L 4 . SR T A % o & g
: U
i Lo owes
NG
e TWIHEL G LS
\ e b 5 , | .
b il | weth B ; | .
O e el e O el _
i - _ sy - — o mﬂ_ = H o [
g (- O i |2 W i e e
= e i e sasrvos s = ,.E. ] | bt i
| ) e 29 | ) Sme—g (]

5%
)
)
@
@
@
(7

[} ] .@ @ ]
b 5 S 8 =] 2 S —
¥ N3 E——
[0
f/ el | ..mn[__»w_ﬂ_i_ju |




l
et prisoihy
-
ONI =
MNY I =
e Q.nﬁ
531 ] _.
29 s
:ﬁ_.“ d




Uxbridge Galf Course

Y

o O i 0 3
% ol By 3
_@&}ij_b_l_a_n]ﬁ""_”““” 7

oy

Yy

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee

Site Address:

Harefield Place, The Drive

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.

@© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
12571/APP/2016/3950 1:2,500
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 181 February 2017

HHILLINGDON

LONDON




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address HAREFIELD PLACE THE DRIVE ICKENHAM

Development: Application under Section 19 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 for variation of condition 2 (drawing nos.) for ar
amendment to Listed Building Consent ref. 12571/APP/2015/3650 (Demolitior
of existing modern U shaped extension. Conversion of existing Grade Il listed
building and erection of a replacement extension building to provide 25 self-
contained apartments (Class C3), with associated basement car, cycle and
motorcycle parking, private and communal amenity spaces and landscape
enhancement, retaining existing entrance piers, the main vehicular entrance
on "The Drive' and existing secondary servicing access with ancillary
outbuildings (Application for Listed Building Consent) comprising changes to
basement layout.)

LBH Ref Nos: 12571/APP/2016/4137

Date Plans Received: 14/11/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 14/11/2016

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 182



| T

ii.iﬁ%!”

L
S|
ol
il iis
. § g b
- i g& i
i $ E% !
il
% =




= sawsy snaibiousy ﬂuu:r_u._mn_mx

.,...
] E_ 0044
-B ) - oy
~oveolEn N

Zioug ung Wsweseg pasny | WRULAP ‘B BUL 9061 PIRRIEH ==, e
3 B

. i | =r—
w1 e |® (8] |8 |8 [® [®]
3
= P2

[ ] ]
9|9 =
b 5 S = & 2 S —

[ =

f/ el | ..mn[__»w_ﬂ_i_ju |




l
et prisoihy
-
ONI =
MNY I =
e Q.nﬁ
531 ] _.
29 s
:ﬁ_.“ d




Uxbridge Golf Course

(5

Hez=w

g
fa= o | Iﬂ
e e

O

.

LONDON BOROUGH

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with

Site Address:

Harefield Place, The Drive

OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Planning Application Ref:

Scale:
12571/APP/2016/4137 1:2,500

Unless the Act provides a relevant

exception to copyright.
@© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey

100019283

Planning Committee:

Date:
February 2017

HHILLINGDON

LONDON

Major page 186




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address FORMER WEST DRAYTON POLICE STATION STATION ROAD WEST
DRAYTON

Development: Residential development of 53 units, comprising 13 houses and 40 flats,
together with associated parking, access road and landscaping, involving the
part retention of the listed walls and demolition of the existing Police Station,
outbuildings and concrete hardstandings.

LBH Ref Nos: 12768/APP/2016/1580

Major Applications Planning Committee - 1st February 2017
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 187



e o e

v sl 96 030

i L o it

fhid 11 pooh apamil e w0 ey
g

[ 2

-] 4

| £l

HOD 1A ONNOHD SV ONIMONRS 3 { M
M1 HO0TE 035040k Z3dAL Z3AdAL ¥ Z3AdAL | E

| 4

sumpu b L
v niwuu

NOLAYHO LE2M 'OV0H NOLLYLS
NOLVLS 300710 HIWHDS

ey i

ONIMVED SNINKY T : i s 4 Z¥ 1od £ 107d b 107 9v 107d Emg -
iiiii . . | ‘ 1 107d i

017 S3IW0H H3IW3Hd SNEvIH

ONINNY'1d

Frm——

A
™

TINT ST

Boamil) aymedos s
D 3 i o

ATV JE 0L SITL

AUVIDEIOE N D0

L Ul

VD TN LIS BV WL
W $ L Rty | ‘linoietin 2" sy Asagy
FHINTD SFTNSE VNIV
I saawsag ubssag Buiping snwn

 Er—




ErdEs LDl

B o] O — i i ] R Ll
03 sl LLOE NVF

i i [ a1
SONITIEM K8

NV HOOT8 INIWISYE 03504044

RN MR IR el

vagunl g b i

i

NOLAVHO LSAM 'OVOH NOILYLS
ROHIVAS 300704 HAWHOA

ey ot

017 S3N0H H3IW3Hd SNHYIH

ONINNY1d

I s e e i O e e
|
|
:

CERNCCR 308 0L 53k

Scamil A a5

B 3 i wd

3
|
|
|

]

L,|
|
|
J

I i
i

A3dAL
9k 107d

lrﬁ | u..

I E e B ae =4l
SR T E T b T
b= o ~im |

|
|
TI=
I
=

LR oo ez

L G s

WD WU A, LS BUELG B

WL LT Bty yn0aogunl L snoy Asogy

FHINTD SFTNSE YNV
1 s=auag ubisaq GuIping snuir

e

— =k




Wr3ais Lrral
Lhsen ot B st P I R i
0 Doz’ LE YT

£ ive 1 )

1NOAVT 3DIVE ALINIWY
EHRIMVED SININNY |

e T

MOLAVHO LSIM, 'OV0H MOILYLS
NORLVAS 300104 HAWHOA

Bl Liakad

017 SINCH HIIWIH- SNHYIN

i

ONINNV1d

]

ey

[ £ DENES 00 IE
AT R R AT LB L
S R0 et
DEW L 9a30 L ST
T SR TS -0l I
[ eom -sieaid [N
e 'R N ErTe |
ESE A Rl L T 1
£ TP TS L b
TEHE 2T oseE Ryl
AV B0 TS ALNINY
GG R AR Oy o

O | SOEG BUELD BL
1

FHINTD STINSITE VNIV
pi saauuag ubisaq Buippng snur

2 3dAl
¥ 107

Paage 190

Z 3cdhl
¥ 107

I

7 Fcdhl
¥y LO7d

A 3dAL
G¥ L0d

A Al
oF Lo

A Al
¥ 107




¥ Lr3dis LFoL
o | — oy |
Ly ooE LNy
i e T =
LNOAVT 30WS ALINIWY
EMIMVERD SININIY |l

) T

NOLAVHO LS2M 'OV0H NOILYLS:
NCUVLS 3010 HIWKOS

iy i

017 SINOH HIIWIH SNHYIN
vy

ONINNY1d

it

TR NI T AUy clSl.J_:r.._u...__ y

CERET K Pl £ ENES R ia

S he T 2 RaE e BRdlY
cone-maace D00 emtioadn R
ORI - BT0 LS 1m0

oemcsdes. 00 cenceamdn I
owowmd BN osmcuein [
oow gy TR osc-nooo [
e L mmnaon B
ELE LT LT

TEME CIEPGTI | DEWECLEED
VBN TS ALY
G S LN S

e ey (ol posin, |

O T K LS i e ey I

O s LITEG BUZID R
whLY & e A
FHINID SEINSNE YR
I sadwas ubisaq Guiping snuwiry
s s

ik 107 H__

[Z =

..I
o]

Zaoal T |
¥ 100d p

(@]
O
al

T Fchhl
¥ 107d

Z Al
Er 107




- Wrd-dEs 1r0-9L

) e e o
1 0oLk £10Z NV
3% i T o

14 OHD ONY INIWISVE 035040
ONIOTNE LININLHYAY
SONITIAMA £5 - SNIMVED SHINNY I

R e

MOLAYHO 1S3IM OV0H NOLLVLS
NOUYLS 320 HIWH0A

e Lt

Q17 SINOH H3IWIHd SNHYIM

)

ONINNV1d

i

il e

_.

oo Toont mm T oons Tea

NOSEARNG
WOHINGS DHKTINE W04 SLOOAVT INIAEINYHEY
TEINED Live0 TN SONMYHO LEYNASHd
ALY SN
H04 ALUNECS SHMYED TeY SONMYED SRINNY G
NOUINMISHOD BOJ INISHOD DN 34

P

WOS A - LEOEES BLZL0 L
WNL stk & A

SHINID SSINISOE YNTHY
P17 seawusg ubiisaq Guiping snwi
ia mwneoed

“n tan e T wa

mu_ IC

|
|
[1:3

Serae
ettt
o o i L}
<
g

{
|

_._.m:.._!c..i:.. ez

Tam +!~.—+

t 51 +!~.—+ o6 t

+!~.—+ ik +

]
1
(B
N i N R
"f u.n. .q.n.

SHETE

08z \m.:+!~.—+ Em +Ec+!:- [=ra +.nw+ (TR ;eﬂ.._\.nw+ [ +u-!+8n.; s +Eﬁ+m—=+

s

01-1 S107d - 40074 ONNOHD

;En_+ [

Hdvd HvD - INIW3SYE

;ﬂn+ oerz ;Gﬁ+=ﬁ¢+uﬁ—»

etz +=.2+En.+ etk sEn.siﬂs.

o _smn—+ﬁ:+—nn— ..Ec..ﬂn...

STORT

Zwid

— —— T _!H J@
B : — M al oL e L ﬂ...—lu
nY ﬂ___\Je SR D_U Ny’
Z 1puwog “ | Jopusod g
U= S SN, N

..NM. +=ﬁ_+ﬁn—+=ﬁ—+iﬂ\ BOTE \”s—+=ﬁ—+ﬂ=_‘

ot o Hos shL Heacaz *

Page 192



- Z0rd-d s 1r0-9L

) o e o
1 0oLk £10Z NV
3% i T o

14 ONODFS ANV LSHIH OFS0d0M
ONIOTNE LININLHYAY
SONITIAMA £5 - SNIMVED SHINNY I

R e

MOLAYHO 1S3IM OV0H NOLLVLS
NOUYLS 320 HIWH0A

e Lt

Q17 SINOH H3IWIHd SNHYIM

)

ONINNV1d

i

il e

_.

WOS A - LEOEES BLZL0 L

WNL
FHINID SSIMISITE VNIHY
P17 saowsas ubisag Buippng snwn
ia e

oo Toon T s o e

“at ooz T o +mw.l+ [0 tm*l: dewt Teiatoest

it oan t me Tan T o fowwid oon Toiated’ v T ooz T e T oon Teams 7

02-11 S107d - HOOTd LsHld

S48z t R

™D
Lty 9
~—
(0]
(@]
Q)
0£-1Z S107d - HOOT14 ANOO3S o
Swee } t ] T
L ™~
= _ | _ = = = = ﬂw
— — T
N i
= = = !
— — ——
1z 101d 9z 10ld

j Al 3 1“ | sz iold ¥z 101d £z 1old :
_ N -
U
o (N | |

| sopuagy g
ks




B RS Lviral

by ook £10Z N

iy | e — o

i = am

N 00 § HOOTS GHIHL 38040
DMIOTNE INFNLHYAY
SONITTEM £5 - ENIMVERD SININNY o

AT e

MOLAVHO LETM 'OV0H NOLLYIS
NOUVLS 30110d HIWHDA

idomiaind

017 S3IN0H H3IWIHd SNHYIN

i

ONINNV1d

e,

—— # _

A TR L 400
e

M M M
lllll B g
ATHga T DL OWITIN SUrTe (R
e T T
HaM WL 0 Ov3k 38 T3 & AR WL
HUFLE ShEAOmc 3 SIsROTOL 3 THleski @
SIMLIATTIR M RO SN ING T
ke W
| E AN TR R S WL

_
IWOLCNTHESND B KA (09 S3LNLI S
o_mun—.ﬁ}nﬁ:a..ﬂuigxuﬂ.b

WVOTIRA M - LSRRI L
Pi7 seaiag ubisag Buiping snwy

Ot-L€ SLOTd - HOOTd QdIHL

Tan®

|

!

I

!

:_

|

|
il

|

E

!

:___

!

e

Page 194




W Ol-dd s Av0-a1

i g e e

W 0ak-L LLDE N

i L e i

NOHYAT I LNOR S
OFSCH0HS DHUTHAE LNIN LYY DY
SONITIZMIT £5 - DNIMYHO SNINNY 1d

NOLAVHC LSIM 'O¥0H NOILYLS
NOLIVLS 3000 MIWHO0A

iy i

AL7 SINOH HIAIWTHd SNEYIH

G

ONINNY1d

[y

THNIY 3y TR § NN RO 17

~Ti=0) 'r}

o kot v [ vh
Ao posanses o wer) [ 6
sy pref gt ([
wonspug Asi o [ 10
PP Mooy . o
t.mnﬂ!..un.nnml [

o S

s S sy @

s 1 e Bony Buppen
"__-Es-.!sué__—l—:

Aai qep ity
o hewn wriminny [ 9

el
B e I

RIS £ R kI UALSZ Wi
o i LgMe YIOMOEUG UM | PIH l £

I saoineg ubisaq Buping !

gﬁ; |

(NOILYLNZIHO SMIDYS 15V 'OVOH NOILYLS SNIOYL) NOILYAZIE LNOHL 03504044

I |

ANECREGN] 55 puin © LY [ ]

Page 195



bt Ll

o e e

34 ooty £L0Z v

T v = il

SNOUYATTE 3005 ONV HvSY
0IF0d0HE ONIOTINE INIWIHVY
SONITIEMD £5 -~ ONIMVED SNINNY I

R e

NOLAVHG LS3M 'OF0H NOLLYLS
NOLVAS 3D10d H3WH0

Sy sl

HILNID ALINOWNOD [ HLAOS SNIOVS O¥OY ONVHLNI MIN [ HLHON DNIDYS
017 SINOH HIIWIHA SNEYIN NOILYASTS 3015 0350d0%8d NOILYAZTE 3015 0350d08d

)

ONINNV1d

o

e

=i

- R _eu__ FLWELELEEU“-UEFEPFF EELEm H .- ni&___EEﬁE_

ek e porer [ v e Jea o) ssevay
Aucoeq passsanues At vy [ <1
sprrpye gt ponn L [ 7

OHYALYNOD SNISOH M3N/ LS3M DNIDVL

NOILYAZT3 ¥Y3H 0350408d
—FleE -- W_IM-_ -- m_-m-- m_-. |
= =
W 1 —
el || ,.-l‘_--

- | i

i Al b l 113

..u.:.!a-_a&-u_
SOl sn

woq faib ye [ 6

o —

s g weny —— B
P A s Gy Cuappers

e
AU HD nas)

oo e wenirey [ ©

Sucmbpopns I

Bumt =0 [

) £ RS OSSR UNISE i,
sevions g cen oo o oy [ ©

PR M | 4

WO S A LS BUZI0 B
e £ AL A

SHINID SSISNE TNV
P17 seowueg ubisaq Guipiing snwr
i

Page 196



- 4-M-1H-d€5 1¥0-91
NOISIAZH ‘ON_ONIMVHE HIENNN_BOr

£Y 0ok’ 9L0Z 3NN
3215 133HS ELS EIL]

SNOILYAZT3
M 3dALISNOH
ONIMYHO ONINNY1d

NOLLEHIS30 INIMYE]

NOLAYHA 1S3M
avod NOILYLS
NOILYLS 32170d H3WH04

SSIMAAY ALHIJOHd

SIWOH Y3INIHd SNEVYIN

ANIND

ONINNVY'1d

ue|d Jooy

QY0234 NOISIAZH

wg  wy wg wg w 0
004} 3TWIS uva IWIS

LI3M0Md 3HL OL ONUYI3Y SIH0d3Y ININSSISSY
HIHLO ANV °NOIYWHOINI NDIS30 SHIINIONI H3HLO

SHOISNINIO 3HL SNMCTI0L 0L 3avsiAdy SI L
SIHENMTIN NI 38v  NMOHS SNOISNIWIO TTV

COELNYED NI3E 3AvH

SIWADHACY TIV SNYIA SONMYED NOLLINMLSNOD
NOLINELSNDD H0d H3NddNS ONY STHNLIVANNYA
QL S3YINONI HO04 FNEVLINS 34V SONIMYED HIONZL
NOISSINENS

TOEINGD ONITNNE HOA SLNOAYT INIWIONVHHY
TYHINID LVHO JHY SONIMYHO AHYNINMIH
THAQHY DNINNY IS

¥4 JILUNENS SHIMYHD Jdv SONIMYED ONINNYIL
"NOWDNHLENDD HO4 INISNOD ON 3AVH ONY
A0 S¥30I  03S0d0Hd Y SONIMYHD Ld3DNOD

Y'odsnW MM - BOPELBSASI0 (RL
ADD 0ZML ‘faung ‘usaig piaysiBul ‘sns euciain, 07
pi seoinisg uBisaq Buiping snwiy

A OENOCH

=)

__ao“ _Sw.: a)old Um:ao_ 2 ppaj

jw bs $ ssolg

Joo|4 puooeg

jw bs g6 ssoig
wbs g’ 1oN
100]4 }sii4

‘wbs g| |suod ad rr||..H|HUL_

:oo.w _Smt 3 (1yofd omSo_ 2 ppba|

1ubi|jo04

jw bs gg ssolg
wbs /¥ 18N
100|4 punols)




- I-M-LH-d€8 1¥0-91
NOISIAZH ‘ON_ONIMVHE HIENNN_BOr

£Y 0ok’ 9L0Z 3NN
3215 133HS ELS EIL]

SNOILYAZT3
M 3dALISNOH uoneas|3 spis uolpsg

ONIMYHO ONINNY1d
NOILJIHIS30 INIMVHD

- ——— e

</

NOLAYHA 1S3M
avod NOILYLS
NOILYLS 32170d H3WH04

SSSO0Y _ALi3J0ud L s e |

\\ 3SNOH HOLYIN
0L SHOIHE WS Ad3N3 LTSI e

SHNYHS IALLYELSNTI " _ Al
SIWOH H¥IINIHd SNYVIN EOVARGEHNO SeetIng n . i A

ANIND

ONINNVY'1d m

350d8Nd

QY0234 NOISIAZH

uoneAs|3 juol4
— HNON0D MIIH8
¢ HO4 3INA3HOS
BYVe—— STVINILYW
Ee———ii TYNN3LX3 335
= 3IN@3HOS
Ef STWINILYW TYNHILX3
=85 =! 3HL 33S SIN3S
{ 40 Yivd HOW3 ¥O4
A + AMVA OL 13NV LISNI NI
| WNOTOD ¥O STVINILYW
ONIH38 ¥V IVIS HO 581
H400HAOTd HSINIA J00Y SHOOQSMOTONIM
[T T T T T T | A¥1d L0343 OV HLIM WNININNTY
400Y 13dVHVd HOINE ]
wg  wy  wg wg wp ki
0014 3OS @ 3wos Aque _ bt
ALV1S 03LY00 ¥3IMOd .A;_| FLIHM HLOOWS
“LO3MONd 3HL OL ONUVI3Y SIMOQIM ININSSISSY 1S0d 1331S Q3SINVATYO 4
W3HLO ONV 'NOLYWHOANI NDISIQ SHIINIONI H3HLO |
HLIK KOUSNNTNOD N Y3 38 OL | NSO 3kl auvos |
ONIMYSO 3HL WOB3 ITVIS NY_O3Lv) HILSVIN LIHM LIV HLIM 400y
SNOISNINIQ 3HL ONMOTIOH OL F1GVSIAY SI LI i - - =
STALINTIA NI 38¥  MMOHS SNOISNINID TV Q3HSINIL 114405 HOHOd OUVENYIN 015311,
SNIOD 103443 31V1S
‘QILNVES NIZE IWH
STAGHAY TIV SNYIN SONMVHD NOLLONHISNOD | L 123443 INOLS S
"NOLLONHLSNDO HO03 ¥3NddNS ONY SIENLIVANNA
OL S3YINONI ¥0d4 FIBYLNS 3V SONMYH0 ¥IONSL S1aNvd
I e e e | H¥NOTOD AZWD ILVIS ONdN 38 (e e e e e DIVLIOA OLOHd
= =
ey OL S3dld NMOG ¥YINONID ONY
TYADHAAY ONINNYIA HIddOH 'SA009D HILVM NIy
404 GILUNBNS ONIMVHO FHY SONIMVEO SNINNYId
"NOLLONMLSNDD 404 INISNOD ON AYH ONY
ATNO S¥30I 035040Hd 3M¥ SONIMYHO Ld30NOD
ZII0N
HNOOSIWLINMA = BAVELBSESLO BL
ADD 0ZML faung 'usa19 piayaibu3 ‘Jaaig euojpIN 07
P17 seoiues ubisaq Buip|ing snwi
M OEN0CH

Page 198



- 4X-1H-d€8 1¥0-91
NOISIAZH ‘ON_ONIMVHE HIENNN_BOr

£Y 0ok’ 9L0Z 3NN
3215 133HS ELS EIL]

SNY1d 50074
X 3dAL 3SNOH
ONIMYHO ONINNY1d

NOLLEHIS30 INIMYE]

NOLAYHA 1S3M
avod NOILYLS
NOILYLS 32170d H3WH04

SSIMAAY ALHIJOHd

jw bs ¢ ssolg jw bs g6 ssoig jw bs ¢g ssoin
SIWOH ¥IINIYd SNEVIN wbs /g 1eN wbs g'gt 19N wbs gt 1eN
i ue|d jooy 100|4 puodag 100|4 1sdi4 100|4 punols

|[om paysi|

ONINNVY'1d

3504HNd 1ubygo0.

Tayoy

QY0234 NOISIAZH

| i i ! t
w.._cooL |Dyefu payosd pajnojdp pge|

I
| = I
| ‘wbs g| |auod ad| 1
[ —= 1
I

Buljoos| jojsfu pglyosl pafinojdp pgs)

wg  wy wg wg w 0
004} 3TWIS uva IWIS

LI3M0Md 3HL OL ONUYI3Y SIH0d3Y ININSSISSY
HIHLO ANV °NOIYWHOINI NDIS30 SHIINIONI H3HLO

SHOISNINIO 3HL SNMCTI0L 0L 3avsiAdy SI L
SIHENMTIN NI 38v  NMOHS SNOISNIWIO TTV

COELNYED NI3E 3AvH

SIWADHACY TIV SNYIA SONMYED NOLLINMLSNOD
NOLINELSNDD H0d H3NddNS ONY STHNLIVANNYA
QL S3YINONI HO04 FNEVLINS 34V SONIMYED HIONZL
NOISSINENS

TOEINGD ONITNNE HOA SLNOAYT INIWIONVHHY
TYHINID LVHO JHY SONIMYHO AHYNINMIH
THAQHY DNINNY IS

¥4 JILUNENS SHIMYHD Jdv SONIMYED ONINNYIL
"NOWDNHLENDD HO4 INISNOD ON 3AVH ONY
A0 S¥30I  03S0d0Hd Y SONIMYHD Ld3DNOD

Y'odsnW MM - BOPELBSASI0 (RL
ADD 0ZML ‘faung ‘usaig piaysiBul ‘sns euciain, 07
pi seoinisg uBisaq Buiping snwiy

A OENOCH

Page 199



- IFX-1H-d€5 1¥0-91
NOISIAZH ‘ON_ONIMVHE HIENNN_BOr

£Y 0ok’ 9L0Z 3NN
3215 133HS ELS EIL]

SNOILYAZT3
X 3dAL 3SNOH
ONIMYHO ONINNY1d

NOLLEHIS30 INIMYE]

NOLAYHA 1S3M
avod NOILYLS
NOILYLS 32170d H3WH04

SSIMAAY ALHIJOHd

SIWOH Y3INIHd SNEVYIN

ANIND

ONINNVY'1d

350d8Nd

QY0234 NOISIAZH

wg  wy wg wg w 0
004} 3TWIS uva IWIS

“LI3M0Md JHL OL ONILYI3Y SLMOd3d

oM paysy

Buiuado mau

WOOH ONIAT :
| I_ _ L]

1 034

buluado mau

adA] A Jad se uoleas|e apis pue Jeay

dn payoug suiowal buwade Bunsixe -

o

&

uoneae|3 ol i ooade )
(@)

]

Buuado
Bunsixa

!
-

HIHLO ANV °NOIYWHOINI NDIS30 SHIINIONI H3HLO

SHOISNINIO 3HL SNMCTI0L 0L 3avsiAdy SI L
SIULINMTIN NI 34 NMOHS SNOISNINIO TTv

COELNYED NI3E 3AvH

SIWADHACY TIV SNYIA SONMYED NOLLINMLSNOD
NOLINELSNDD H0d H3NddNS ONY STHNLIVANNYA
QL S3YINONI HO04 FNEVLINS 34V SONIMYED HIONZL
NOISSINENS

TOEINGD ONITNNE HOA SLNOAYT INIWIONVHHY
TYHINID LVHO JHY SONIMYHO AHYNINMIH
THAQHY DNINNY IS

¥4 JILUNENS SHIMYHD Jdv SONIMYED ONINNYIL
"NOWDNHLENDD HO4 INISNOD ON 3AVH ONY
A0 S¥30I  03S0d0Hd Y SONIMYHD Ld3DNOD

Y'odsnW MM - BOPELBSASI0 (RL
ADD 0ZML ‘faung ‘usaig piaysiBul ‘sns euciain, 07
pi seoinisg uBisaq Buiping snwiy

A OENOCH

1M d31sN

|

|||||||||||||||||||||||||||




- d-A-IH-d-€8 1¥0-91
NOISIAZH ‘ON_ONIMVHE HIENNN_BOr

£Y 0ok’ 9L0Z 3NN
3215 133HS ELS EIL]

SNY1d 50074
A 3dAL3SNOH
ONIMYHO ONINNY1d

NOLLEHIS30 INIMYE]

NOLAYHA 1S3M
avod NOILYLS
NOILYLS 32170d H3WH04

SSIMAAY ALHIJOHd

SIWOH Y3INIHd SNEVYIN

ANIND

ONINNVY'1d

350d8Nd

QY0234 NOISIAZH

Ue|d jooy

jw bs ¢ ssoig
wbs ¢ 18N
100|4 puoosg

Buljoou|l jojagu p _:Ew paiinojgp _umw_

| _
i s |
== ‘wbs g| jsucd ad|
———== I

I

bulloos| jojatu p ___o_w painojdp n@w_

jw bs g6 ssolg

0p-5!
woos Buig)

wbs 9'G 18N
Joold 3sdi4

wg  wy wg wg w 0
004} 3TWIS uva IWIS

LI3M0Md 3HL OL ONUYI3Y SIH0d3Y ININSSISSY
HIHLO ANV °NOIYWHOINI NDIS30 SHIINIONI H3HLO

SHOISNINIO 3HL SNMCTI0L 0L 3avsiAdy SI L
SIHENMTIN NI 38v  NMOHS SNOISNIWIO TTV

COELNYED NI3E 3AvH

SIWADHACY TIV SNYIA SONMYED NOLLINMLSNOD
NOLINELSNDD H0d H3NddNS ONY STHNLIVANNYA
QL S3YINONI HO04 FNEVLINS 34V SONIMYED HIONZL
NOISSINENS

TOEINGD ONITNNE HOA SLNOAYT INIWIONVHHY
TYHINID LVHO JHY SONIMYHO AHYNINMIH
THAQHY DNINNY IS

¥4 JILUNENS SHIMYHD Jdv SONIMYED ONINNYIL
"NOWDNHLENDD HO4 INISNOD ON 3AVH ONY
A0 S¥30I  03S0d0Hd Y SONIMYHD Ld3DNOD

H'od' SN MM - BOPELBSESI0 TRL
ADD 0ZML ‘faung ‘usaig piaysiBul ‘sns euciain, 07
pi seoinisg uBisaq Buiping snwiy

A OENOCH

jw bs gy ssoln
wbs g'gg 18N
100]4 punols)

Page 201



¥
NOISIATH

FALHdES
'ON NI

4¥0-91
HIEWNN B0

£
35 3FHE

ool
IWI5

9102 ANNT
w0

NODILOIS ONY SNOILYATTS
A 3dALISNOH
SNIMTHO ONINNY T

MNOULRIDSIE THIMYED

NOLAYHO 1S3M
avOH NOILYLS
NOILYLS 33110d H3WH0H

SSIH00¥ ALHIA0Hd

SAWOH HIINTYd SNEVIA
N3N

ONINNVY1d

350dHNd

OHODIH NOISIAY

TIONANY BODI0D HOIVH XIMEIGLELEL | ¥

uonens|3 spig

MMM AALALMEN MALACALR! MAIALMEM! MEAMACH
wg.  wy  wg Wz W 0
0041 ATYOS HvE IS

“103M0Hd JHL O ONUYVIIN. SIHOL3Y INIWSSISSY
HEHLO ONY NOWYWHDANI NOIS30 SHITINIONT H3HLO
HLM NOUINATNOD NI Ov3d 38 0L 51 ONIMvED 3HL

ONIMYE0 3HL WOEd 3IWOS LON 00 ONY J3viS
SNDISNINID 3HL SNIMOTI04 DL FIEVSIAGY St 1l
SIHUANITIN K 34¥  NMOHS SNOISNIND 11V

TQALNVED NI3E 3NVH

STVACHY TV SNYIA SONMYNG NOLDNMISNOD
'HOLWINHELSNGD HOd HINDDNS ONY SIMNLIVANNYN
Ol SIWINONI HO4 FTEVLINS 34 SONIMYED MIONSL
NOISSHNENS

TOEINGD BNITNINE H04 BELNOAVT INIWEONVHLY
TWHANID LT JHY SONIMYHD AHYNINCTNG
TWADHdY ONINNYT

HO4 QILUNENS SNIMYHD Jdv SONIMVED SNINNY T
“NOLLINELISNOD #04 INISNOD ON 3AWH ONY
ATHO S¥30I  035040Hd FHY SONIMYED Ld30N0D
BTN

AV OOENUN MMM  BOPELESESL0 181
ADD OEML faung ‘usaig pisysiBul 1Rang euopl, 02
Py seoies Ubiseq Bulpling snuwi

Ml TGS

uonosg

k=ptelto -]

O334ov 38 0L
SIWES 40 Hivd HOV3
— — HO- AHYA OL T3NYd L3SNI

_ NI #0700 B0 STYMI LYW

SANVHS MOONIM
A38N0T00 LY Muva

HIANIY ILIHM

S713NYd OIWLI0A OLOHd

uoljeAa|g juol

AJED
ALYIS d3LV0D HIMD
150d 13315 QISINVATYD

Page 202



- 4Z-1H 1¥0-91
NOISIAZH ‘ON_ONIMVHE HIENNN_BOr

£Y 0ok’ 9L0Z AON
3215 133HS ELS EIL]

SNY1d 50074
Z3dAL 3SN0OH
ONIMYHEO DONINNY 1d

NOLLEHIS30 INIMYE]

NOLAYHA 1S3M
avod NOILYLS

NOILVLS 30M0d ¥INHO jw bs g ssoig jw bs gg ssoig

SSIUAQY AL3AONd jw bs oG 18N jw bs gt 18N
ue(d jooy J1oo|4 )81 100|4 punoig

SIWOH Y3INIHd SNEVYIN

ANIND

ONINNVY'1d

350d8Nd

QY0234 NOISIAZH

00zs +

wg  wy wg wg w 0
004} 3TWIS ¥ve IS

LI3M0Md 3HL OL ONUYI3Y SIH0d3Y ININSSISSY
HIHLO ANV °NOIYWHOINI NDIS30 SHIINIONI H3HLO
HLUM NOLINNPNOD NI O¥3d 38 0L 51 DONIMYE0 JHL

CONIMYSO 3HL WOWd ITWIS LON 00 ONY O3LVLS
SNOISNINIQ 3HL INMOTIOL 0L FNEvSIMaY SI L
SIHENMTIN NI 38v  NMOHS SNOISNIWIO TTV

COELNYED NI3E 3AvH

SIWADHACY TIV SNYIA SONMYED NOLLINMLSNOD
NOLINELSNDD H0d H3NddNS ONY STHNLIVANNYA
QL S3YINONI HO04 FNEVLINS 34V SONIMYED HIONZL
NOISSINENS

TOEINGD ONITNNE HOA SLNOAYT INIWIONVHHY
TWHINID LAVHD JHY SONIMYHO AHYNINMIHd
THAQHY DNINNY IS

¥4 JILUNENS SHIMYHD Jdv SONIMYED ONINNYIL
"NOWDNHLENDD HO4 INISNOD ON 3AVH ONY
A0 S¥30I  03S0d0Hd Y SONIMYHD Ld3DNOD

HUOYSAWIIMMM - BOPELESES.O0 (FL
ADD 0ZML “faung 'uasug piays|Bul ‘Jaans eucoip 07
pi seolnies ubiseq Buipjing snuwir|

A OENCH

0006
Page 203




IZ-AH-dEC L0891
NOISIAZY 'ON_ONMYED HIENNN BOr

£ ool 9LOZ ACN
35 3IHE IWIS EILD]

NOILO3S ONY SNOILYAINS
Z 3dAL3ISNOH
SNIMYHO ONINNY TS

MNOURIDSIT DHIMYHD

uonossg

NOLAYHO 153M
avOoH NOILYLS
NOILYLS 33110d H3WH0-

SSIMAOY ALMIAONd

oStz

SIWOH YIINTHd SNEVIH
)

ONINNVY1d

350dHNd

oovE

QuoD3y HOISIAZY

wg  wp Wy wg Wy 0
0oLt 3TvOS HYE JWIS

193P0ud JHL 0L NI SLHOM3Y ININSSISSY

SIHANITIAN K THY  KMOHS SKOISNING ._|_¢_
TQANVED NI3E 3NWH

Ol S3MNONI HO4 FIEVLNS Iy SONMYED H30NEL
HOISSINENS

TOHINGD BNITTNE MDA ELNOAYT INGNGIHYMMY
TWHINID LAVED FHY SONIMVNG AMYNINTIHS
TADHEAY DNINNYTE

HO4 QILUNENS. SNIMyHD Jdv SSNMvEd ONINNY G
"NOLLONHISHOD ¥04 INISNOD ON JAVH ONY

ATHO SYIOL 035040 FHY SCHIMYSD Ld30N0D

AV OOENL MMM - BOPELBSESL0 1BL
ADD DZML faung ‘usaig pisysiBul 1eang euoplp, 02
Py seoies Ubisaq Buipling sniwi

) G

uoheae|3 Jeay

STaNYd —_ |

owLon T I _ I

OLOHd

uoneAs|3 2pIS

&5 AZ¥E
m‘ ) | JLYIS O3LYOD ¥3IMOod
.. = = 1504 13315 QISINVATYD
HIAANIY YN THSY ILIHM

=1

)

35UV IE 0L

SIN3S 40 Hivd HOV3 =

HO4 AMYA OL 13NV 13SN) ——
NIENOTOD O STYIE3 LY —— SMIIHe

SIWVHA MOONIM

AIHNOT0D ALYTIS Mevd xrinan
SFL 400
103443 318

Page 204



EO-MT-dES Lv0-81

W 05 QLOZ ATNF

0% s T s

N OWY NOILYATTE DMIOTING LS
OFSOL0OH FHNLINYLSHIING
WYL TIWM 03181

AT e

NOOROT NOLAYHO 1S3M
"OWOH NOILYLS "NOILLYLS 3217104
NOLAYHO LSIM HIWHO S

I s

SANOH H3INTHd SNEYIH

[¥i- + =3 + Ly

.
ONINNY1d
el
Gl worl
[TTTTTTITTT YT
g . ]
051 3% W INE

OIS - GOFELBSOSLD 1L
N0 0EML Raung “uaaig prRgHiu3 1aans Lo 07
P saaaag ubisag Buiping snwry

uoneAa|y Jeay

UopeAs(3 Juoid

Page 205



Tl FdEs Ll
PO SO S
Iy il LE N

1% v i -

ONIVISONYT IAILYDIONI
ANOAYT OIS0C0H
EINIMWEI SININKY I

e v

HOLAVHO LSIM "0¢0H NOLLYLS
NOLLYLS 300706 HIWH0A

i

QL7 STNOH HIIWTHd SNHYIN L

ONINNVY1d

Z3daL 2 3dAL
oF L LT ¥ 107

I
_
_

A L W) RS \x.ﬁ(
» i e APNOAYT 1031 MY
g Sy NV 18038
ADONWIOI 0L 433
OO0 O
(| ) _

I

:

E o
.00%

il
&2

ORI WA - LIIRES SUZI0 Pl
WRLL L TP AL TNy * asnoj Koy
FHINTD S5IMISTIR VNIV

e

Page 206

©



- ASd Lrra

R o — ey

34 ooty L o]

i iive = il

TYID TIVM AHVONNOE O350d0d
MAA TIVM AHVONNOS 1IIHIS
EMIMVED SININRY Tl

TILVEA TIVM AHVONNOS 038040804

T e

NOLAVHO LSTM 'OWO0H NOLLVLS
NCHLVAS 3D10d HIWHO0S

N e

017 S3IN0H H3IWIHd SNHYIN

)

ONINNV1d

TIWM AHYONNOE 13THLS DNILSIKG

TIWM AHVONNOE 1F3HLS A35040Hd

VMDY TV B0 AL IR
TR Livis S TORANHO LA
At T

WOO TN M - BEREIEGES AN L
ADHIOZRAL AN ‘USE) PR PRNS IR,
P17 seawuag ulisaq Buipjing snwr

B A




El Sub Sta

Notes:

Graveyard

British L
Club

@01

P
: Youthl, ~ “-—--- £
Centre ||

Sports Facili

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Former West Drayton Police Station,
Station Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services

Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Planning Application Ref:

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Scale;
12768/APP/2016/1580 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Major Page 208 February 2017

o0

HILLING DON

LONDON




	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meetings held on 26 October 2016 and 11 January 2017
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	6 Warrender Primary School - 4311/APP/2016/4295
	7 Berkeley Apartments - 31642/APP/2016/4411
	8 Harefield Place, The Drive - 12571/APP/2016/3950
	9 Harefield Place, The Drive - 12571/APP/2016/4137
	10 Former West Drayton Police Station - 12768/APP/2016/1580
	PART I - Plans for Major Applications Planning Committee

